
 
Tony Kershaw 

Director of Law and Assurance 

 
If calling please ask for: 
 

Tracey Guinea on 033 022 28679 
Email:  tracey.guinea@westsussex.gov.uk 
 

www.westsussex.gov.uk 
 

 
County Hall  
Chichester 

West Sussex 
PO19 1RQ 

Switchboard  
Tel no (01243) 777100 

 

 

 

26 August 2021 

Planning and Rights of Way Committee 
 

A meeting of the Committee will be held at 10.30 am on Tuesday, 7 September 
2021 at County Hall, Chichester, PO19 1RQ. 
 

Note: In response to the continuing public health measures, there will be limited 
public access to the meeting. Admission is by ticket only, bookable in advance via: 

democratic.services@westsussex.gov.uk 
 

The meeting will be available to watch live via the Internet at this 

address: 
 

http://www.westsussex.public-i.tv/core/portal/home 
 

Tony Kershaw 

Director of Law and Assurance 
 

 
 Agenda 

 

1. Declarations of Interest   
 

Members and officers must declare any pecuniary or personal interest in any 
business on the agenda. They should also make declarations at any stage such 
an interest becomes apparent during the meeting. Consideration should be 

given to leaving the meeting if the nature of the interest warrants it. If in doubt, 
contact Democratic Services before the meeting. 

 
2. Minutes of the last meeting of the Committee  (Pages 3 - 20) 

 

The Committee is asked to confirm the minutes of the meeting held on Tuesday, 
29 June 2021 (cream paper). 

 
3. Urgent Matters   

 

Items not on the agenda that the Chairman of the Committee is of the opinion 
should be considered as a matter of urgency by reason of special circumstances. 

 
4. Planning Application: Waste  (Pages 21 - 98) 

 
Report by Head of Planning Services. 
 

The Committee is asked to consider and determine the following application: 
 

Public Document Pack

Page 1

mailto:democratic.services@westsussex.gov.uk
http://www.westsussex.public-i.tv/core/portal/home


WSCC/004/20 - Restoration of the former Standen Landfill site with a 

woodland and pasture landfill cap system.  Evergreen Farm, West 
Hoathly Road, East Grinstead, RH19 4NE. 
 

5. Date of Next Meeting   
 

The next meeting of the Committee will be held at 10.30 am on Tuesday, 
12 October 2021. 
 

 
 

 
To all members of the Planning and Rights of Way Committee 
 

 
 

Webcasting 
 

Please note: this meeting is being filmed for live and subsequent broadcast via the 

County Council’s website on the internet. The images and sound recording may be 
used for training purposes by the Council. 

 
Generally the public gallery is not filmed. However, by entering the meeting room and 
using the public seating area you are consenting to being filmed and to the possible 

use of those images and sound recordings for webcasting and/or training purposes. 
 

 

Page 2



Planning and Rights of Way Committee 
 

29 June 2021 – At a meeting of the Committee held at County Hall, Chichester, 
PO19 1RQ. 
 

Present: Cllr Burrett (Chairman) 

 
Cllr Atkins, Cllr Ali, Cllr Duncton, Cllr Gibson, Cllr Hall, Cllr Joy, Cllr McDonald, 
Cllr Montyn, Cllr Oakley, Cllr Patel, Cllr Quinn and Cllr Sharp 

 
Also in attendance: Cllr Bence, Cllr Johnson and Cllr Russell  

 
Part I 

 

1.    Declarations of Interest  
 

1.1 In accordance with the County Council’s Constitution: Code of 
Practice on Probity and Protocol on Public Participation in Planning 
and Rights of Way Committees, the following Members declared 

that they have been lobbied in relation to the following planning 
applications: Agenda Item 4(a): WSCC/052/20, Agenda Item 4(b): 

WSCC/020/21/S257 and Agenda Item 6: WSCC/004/20 -  
Cllr Burrett (Chairman), Cllr Atkins (Vice-Chairman), Cllr Ali,  
Cllr Duncton, Cllr Gibson, Cllr Hall, Cllr Joy, Cllr McDonald,  

Cllr Montyn, Cllr Oakley, Cllr Patel, Cllr Quinn and Cllr Sharp.  
 

1.2 In accordance with the County Council’s Code of Conduct,  
Cllr Gibson declared a personal interest in Item 5: Proposed 

upgrade to part of Public Footpath 76 Golf Links Lane to Bridleway 
as Part of a Route Linking Selsey with Medmerry, as a member of 
The British Horse Society. 

 
1.3 In accordance with the County Council’s Code of Conduct, the 

following Members declared a personal interest in Item 6: planning 

application: WSCC/004/20 because they are members of the 

National Trust: Cllr Burrett (Chairman), Cllr McDonald and 

Cllr Sharp. 

 
2.    Minutes of the last meeting of the Committee  

 
2.1 Resolved – That the minutes of the Planning and Rights of Way 
Committee held on 30 March 2021 be approved and that they be signed 

by the Chairman. 
 

3.    Urgent Matters  
 

3.1 There were no urgent matters. 

 
4.    Planning Applications  

 
WSCC/052/20 – Construction of a single carriageway with shared 
cycleway/footway, roundabouts, road markings, traffic signals, 

bus stops, provision of hard and soft landscaping, construction of a 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



substation building, installation of a noise barrier, and other 

associated works on land to the north of Eastergate and north-
west of Barnham, PO22 0DF 
 

WSCC/020/21/S257 –Town and Country Planning Act 1990, 
Section 257 Stopping up or Diversion of a Public Footpath, 

Bridleway or Restricted Byway.  Proposed diversion of Public 
Footpath 318 at land to the north of Eastergate and north-west of 
Barnham. 

 
4.1 The Committee considered a report on planning application 

WSCC/052/20 by the Head of Planning Services.  The report was 
introduced by James Neave, Principal Planner, who gave a presentation on 
the application including details of the consultation and key issues in 

respect of the application.  The Committee also considered a report by the 
Head of Planning Services in relation to application WSCC/020/21/S257, 

including amendments to paragraph 4.1 of the report, as amended by the 
Agenda Update Sheet (copy appended to the signed copy of the minutes).  
Mr Neave introduced the report and gave a presentation on the proposals, 

details of the informal consultation and key issues in respect of the 
application, plus the legal provisions for both the making and confirming of 

an order.  The Committee was asked to make separate decisions on the 
substantive recommendations for each of the applications.   
 

4.2 Mr Richard Blott, local resident, spoke in objection to application 
WSCC/052/20.  Initiatives to alleviate local traffic congestion are 

supported but this application is fundamentally flawed.  Lack of 
transparency in the Traffic Assessment leaves no confidence in traffic 

forecasts.  There would be significant, unquantified road safety risks and 
failure to mitigate risk on adjoining highways.  There would be 
unnecessary damage to existing local amenity and ecological damage. 

No binding commitment has been given for timely delivery of the 
north/south link.  There should be genuine consultation to resolve 

outstanding problems, an independent audit of the Traffic Assessment and 
modelling for all affected highways and junctions, full compliance with the 
Design Manual for Roads and Bridges with reference to road safety 

including a non-motorised user (NMU) survey and preservation of the local 
amenity, and a binding commitment for the timely funding and delivery of 

the north/south link.  
 
4.3 Mrs Heather Godsmark, local resident, spoke in objection to 

application WSCC/052/20.  There would be safety concerns due to the 
number of property entrances and road junctions including the Eastergate 

Lane/Fontwell Avenue T-Junction, where a recent serious accident 
occurred.  Lack of a NMU survey is unsound.  Roundabouts have no 
controlled crossings and this would divide communities and reduce safe 

passage and access to facilities.  The road would promote intolerable 
traffic congestion.  Dwellings would be significantly adversely visually 

impacted due to the 2 metre bank and a 3 metre ‘rusty’ acoustic fence, for 
which there are other solutions.  There would be pitiful planting.  The 
proposed new development could further reduce visibility.  The raised 

causeway could block and funnel water towards Barnham Lane ditch and 
adjacent dwellings and drainage pond capacity could reduce from silting 

and weed invasion, leading to the risk of flooding. 

Page 4

Agenda Item 2



 

4.4 The Committee noted a written statement in objection to application 
WSCC/052/20 from Mr Chris Allington, Chair of Barnham and Eastergate 
Parish Council.  The Parish Council submitted a full and robust objection to 

the application, but the Committee report mischaracterises and minimises 
those objections.  Residents are fully supported in their objections.  The 

principle of the road is not challenged.  The Committee was asked to send 
the planning application back to the designers so that mitigation plans, 
including impacts on the local community and the environment, can be 

better developed and agreed with key stakeholders, including the Parish 
Council.  This would not delay the delivery of the road by more than a 

number of weeks. 
 
4.5 Mr Stephen Reed, Project Manager, WSCC Major Projects Team, 

spoke in support of application WSCC/052/20 and application 
WSCC/020/21/S257.  Eastergate, Westergate and Barnham have poor 

road and rail connectivity.  The area suffers congestion which discourages 
investment and contributes to poor economic performance.  The proposed 
road and also Phase 2 would support the West Sussex Transport Plan, 

local growth in housing and commercial development, expand the Green 
Infrastructure Network and improve reliability of journey times.  The 

principle of the development is established in the Arun Local Plan.  The 
road scheme would meet national highway standards.  Updated road 
safety audits would be undertaken at detailed design stage and on 

completion of construction.  Surveys to inform ecological mitigation have 
been undertaken.  Landscape design would create new habitats, including 

native hedgerows.  Species on the east side of the acoustic barrier would 
assist with screening residential properties.  The diversion of footpath 

3018 would provide ramps from ground to road level.  The illuminated 
offset crossing would reduce the impact on bat foraging, and safeguard 
existing trees.  The position has improved sight lines.  It would be a 

slightly longer route, but no objections have been received. 
 

4.6 Cllr Trevor Bence, local County Councillor for Fontwell spoke on the 
applications.  The most severely affected residents would be those in 
Chantry Mead and Murrell Gardens.  25 properties would be closest to the 

new road and to the acoustic barrier which, for some, would be only 16 
metres from their back garden boundary and instead of country views 

they will now face a 3 metre fence.  The residents understand the point of 
the development; however, to support them the Committee is asked to 
provide an opinion on covering the ‘rusty’ fence and an improved 

landscaping scheme with better planting and maybe a bund.  Flooding 
would also be of concern to residents.  There are concerns about whether 

the attenuation ponds would be sufficient, noting that residents previously 
had easement rights over maintenance of Barnham Lane Ditch, which had 
its course changed over 10 years ago. 

 
4.7 In response to points made by speakers the Principal Planning 

Officer clarified that Appendices 5c, 5d and Cross-section E-E, at Appendix 
6, show the proposed landscaping scheme near residential properties in 
Chantry Mead and Murrell Gardens. 

 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



4.8 During the debate the Committee raised the points below and a 

response or clarification was provided by the Planning, Highways, and 
Legal Officers, where applicable, as follows: 
 

Need for and principle of the development 
 

Points raised – The principle of and need for the development is 
set out in the Arun Local Plan.   
 

Response – None required. 
 

Noise Levels 
 
Points raised – What would be the change in noise levels on 

completion of the project?  Did the noise modelling take into 
account the future development at Phase 2 and likely use of electric 

vehicles?  Would noise reduction surfacing be used on the road? 
 
Response – Paragraphs 9.60 to 9.68 of the Committee report detail 

matters relating to noise, including the expected changes in noise 
levels for residential receptors.  Noise modelling included 

consideration of a 15 year future scenario, taking into account 
predicted future vehicle use.  Noise reduction surfacing is not 
proposed.  The main mitigations against noise would be the 

proposed acoustic barrier, including the requirement for a 
verification report on its effectiveness.  Environmental Health 

Officers have not raised an objection to the proposals. 
 

Landscaping 
 
Points raised – Condition 6 ‘Landscaping Scheme’ and Condition 

17 ‘Landscaping and Ecological Management Plan’ (LEMP) should be 
amended to require a ten-year replanting scheme rather than the 

proposed five years, so as to ensure long-term replacement and 
maintenance of planting.  The discharge of landscaping conditions 
should be made visible to the local County Councillor and to 

Barnham and Eastergate Parish Council.  The conclusion of the 
Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA), which states there would 

be a large landscape and visual impact, appears to contradict the 
conclusion in the Committee report.  How many trees would be lost 
and gained?  Councillor Bence’s request for additional planting 

where the road borders residential properties should be considered. 
 

Response – Should the Committee wish to propose the 
amendments to Conditions 6 and 17 for a longer period of 
landscape maintenance this would be considered by Officers to be 

acceptable.  It is acknowledged that there would be an impact on 
landscape and visual amenity, but the conclusion in the Committee 

report takes the proposed mitigation into account and is an ‘on 
balance’ conclusion.  Paragraph 9.48 of the Committee report 
details the trees to be removed.  Paragraph 9.52 notes that there 

would be a 10% biodiversity gain and a 44% gain in area-based 
habitats.  The detailed landscaping scheme, when submitted, would, 

Page 6

Agenda Item 2



as appropriate, be discussed with WSCC Landscape and Tree 

Officers. 
 
Drainage matters – A29 Realignment 

 
Points raised – What, if any, are the drainage concerns or impacts 

in relation to the proposed road due to the impermeable barrier, 
including land drainage, shallow groundwater paths and field drains? 
 

Response – Drainage matters are dealt with in paragraphs 9.83 to 
9.92 of the Committee report.  The catchments to the north and 

south would be seeking betterment – water draining from the road 
to the attenuation ponds would be released at a controlled rate into 
the ditch.  An interim solution allowing flow under the carriageway 

to the ditch would be put in place at the southern end until housing 
development comes forward.  The drainage strategy has been 

reviewed by the WSCC Drainage Officer as the lead local flood 
authority and also the Environment Agency, no objections have 
been raised.  A number of conditions to help safeguard against 

drainage issues are proposed: Condition 7 ‘Drainage Scheme’, 
Condition 15 ‘Infiltration of Surface Water’ and Condition 16 

‘Drainage Verification Report’. 
 
Concerns regarding proposed shared cycleway/footpath – 

conflict of use, safety and climate change 
 

Points raised – Shared cycleways/footpaths can lead to conflict of 
use and the current proposals do not meet many of the 

recommendations in Gearchange and the Local Transport Note 
(LTN) 120 - Cycle Infrastructure Design and also NPPF 110 in terms 
of safety for all users, accessibility for the disabled and also 

encouraging use of sustainable transport meaning it will not achieve 
its potential in supporting climate change.   

 
Response – As set out in the LTN, shared cycle/footpath 
arrangements are acceptable in certain circumstances, which 

include the proposed development being considered by the 
Committee.  Therefore, segregated arrangements are not required. 

 
Concerns regarding proposed shared cycleway/footpath – 
Position of streetlamps 

 
Points raised – Condition 13 ‘Lighting’ should be amended to 

ensure that streetlamps are set back half a metre from the edge of 
the cycleway/footpath, as recommended in guidance. 
 

Response – The requirement for a half metre separation is 
generally only sought where there would be a solid and continuous 

barrier.  Since the streetlamps would be spaced evenly along the 
route it is not considered essential that they are set back.  Should 
the Committee wish to propose the suggested amendments to 

Condition 13 this would need to allow for practical implementation 
only where possible. 

 

Page 7

Agenda Item 2



Cyclist safety - crossing points at roundabouts and when 

leaving the cycleway/footpath at either end of the proposed 
route 
 

Points raised – Major development schemes can take a long time 
to be implemented and sometimes other Government guidance, 

such as Local Transport Note (LTN) 120 ‘Cycle Infrastructure 
Design’ and documents such as ‘Gearchange’ mean that the original 
plans do not necessarily match current thinking on design of 

specifics, such as cycleways and where they meet existing roads.  
The Halo junction at the southern end of the proposed route would 

be a concern because drivers may not be looking in the direction 
cyclists are travelling.  Crossing points on the plans are shown only 
as pedestrian crossings, would these be intended for cyclists as well 

and, if so, would the reservations be long enough to protect a bike 
with an attachment, such as a child bike trailer?   Would cyclists be 

expected to dismount at crossings?  Cyclists should not have to 
dismount or stop to cross a road, to do so would be especially 
problematic for disabled cyclists.  Would there be an option in future 

to change the uncontrolled crossings to Toucan crossings? 
 

Response – The proposed cycle path has been considered by WSCC 
Highways and designed in accordance with national guidance.  It is 
acknowledged that there is currently limited cycle provision in the 

locality, but the proposal would be a betterment on existing 
provision.  There would also be opportunities to explore further 

sustainable transport provision when Phase 2 comes forward, 
including access to all schools in this locality.  Cyclists and 

pedestrians at the Halo crossing would have priority; this junction 
has been designed in accordance with guidelines.  The crossings are 
intended for pedestrians and cyclists and the reservations are long 

enough for a cyclist and pedestrians together. Cyclists will be 
required to dismount at crossing points.  Toucan crossings are not 

required as part of the current application, but there would be the 
possibility to accommodate this in future, if required. 
 

Traffic Assessment 
 

Points raised – What period into the future does the traffic 
modelling cover?  What volume of traffic would be expected in the 
future, given that the proposed route is only a single carriageway?  

 
Response – The traffic modelling used was that used for the Arun 

Local Plan, which was undertaken for a single carriageway.  It was 
robust and includes future growth plans, going beyond the Local 
Plan to include growth around Barnham, Eastergate and Westergate 

and it looked at AM, PM and inter-peak hours.  Traffic would be 
predicted to improve at points along the network including Fontwell 

Road and the War Memorial roundabout. 
 
Lighting 

 
Points raised – Would the dimmed lighting at night apply to 

Footpath 318? 

Page 8

Agenda Item 2



 

Response – It is not specifically stated what lighting would apply to 
Footpath 318, but the night-time lighting scheme would take into 
account ecology at the crossing point.   

 
Phase 2 development 

 
Points raised – Phase 1, the current application for the proposed 
road, and Phase 2, the strategic housing and commercial 

development, should have been considered together.  Clarification 
was sought regarding the figures for the future housing 

development, which are contradictory in the Committee report. 
 
Response – The Committee must consider the current proposal as 

it is.  The proposal takes into account future development and 
includes limbs on the roundabouts for the future BEW development; 

these would be blocked with concrete barriers until such a time as 
the proposed development is moved forward.  The latest proposal 
for the number of new homes is 4,300; at this stage this is only a 

master plan. 
 

Agricultural land 
 
Points raised – How much agricultural land would be lost?  How 

would farmland be accessed? 
 

Response – The development would require around 12 hectares of 
land, however, the majority of this is not in productive agricultural 

use.  Access to farmland is not clear, however, this is likely to 
depend on ownership and to be from the north/south.  
 

Acoustic fence 
 

Points raised – Concern was raised regarding the height and 
design of the acoustic fence and the impact on residential 
properties.  It was noted there is no right to a view. 

 
Response – The proposed acoustic fence would not be higher than 

necessary, and the landscaping scheme includes climbing plants as 
well as trees and shrubs. 
 

Provision for buses 
 

Points raised – The proposed route does not include laybys for 
buses to pull off the carriageway, which being a single carriageway 
could lead to traffic flow slowing.  Would bus shelters be provided?  

Floating bus stops should be considered. 
 

Response – There are two proposed bus stops on the road, one on 
either side of the route.  No detailed infrastructure is shown on the 
current plans, except reference to illuminated information boards.  

Should the Committee wish to propose any amendments to 
conditions to require details of bus shelters this would be considered 

by Officers to be acceptable.   

Page 9

Agenda Item 2



 

Objection from Walberton Parish Council 
 
Points raised – Why was Walberton Parish Council’s objection not 

listed in the responses from Statutory Consultees? 
 

Response – The relevant Parish Council as a Statutory Consultee is 
Barnham and Eastergate Parish Council.  Walberton Parish Council is 
a neighbouring Parish Council and so is included as part of the third 

party representations. 
 

4.9 An amendment to Condition 13 – ‘Lighting’ of planning application 
WSCC/052/20 was proposed by Cllr Oakley and seconded by Cllr Sharp.  
The condition should be amended to allow that street-lamps adjacent to 

the cycleway/footpath be set back by half a metre, where practicable, for 
reasons of safety and so as to avoid conflict with users.  The Committee 

voted on the amendment, which was approved unanimously.  The final 
form of wording of the condition was delegated to the Head of Planning 
Services.  

 
4.10  The following amendments to Condition 6 – ‘Landscaping Scheme’ 

and to Condition 17 – ‘Landscape and Ecological Management Plan’ (LEMP) 
of planning application WSCC/052/20 were proposed by Cllr Oakley and 
seconded by Cllr Ali: 

 
Condition 6 – Landscaping Scheme 

 
…  

 
Thereafter the approved scheme of landscaping shall be 
implemented in full in accordance with the approved timetable.  

Any trees or shrubs which, within a period of five ten years from 
the date of planting, die, are removed or become seriously 

damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season 
with others of similar size and species. 
 

… 
 

Condition 17 - Landscape and Ecological Management Plan 
(LEMP) 
 

…. 
 

e)   Details of initial aftercare and long-term maintenance which 
shall be for a period of no less than ten years; 
 

… 
 

h)   A work schedule, including a five ten year project register, an 
annual work plan, and the means by which the plan will be rolled 
forward annually; 

 
… 

 

Page 10

Agenda Item 2



The Committee voted on the amendments to both conditions, which were 

approved unanimously.    
 
4.11 A new Condition for planning application WSCC/052/20 requiring 

the installation of bus shelters was proposed by Cllr Oakley and seconded 
by Cllr Hall.  The Committee voted on the inclusion of the proposed new 

condition, which was approved unanimously.  The final form of wording of 
the condition was delegated to the Head of Planning Services.    
 

4.12 The substantive recommendation to planning application 
WSCC/052/20 including changes to Conditions and Informatives as set out 

in Appendix 1 of the Committee report including amendments approved by 
the Committee, as noted in minutes 4.9, 4.10 and 4.11, above, was 
proposed by Cllr Duncton and seconded by Cllr Atkins and approved by a 

majority. 
 

4.13 Resolved – That planning permission be granted for planning 
application WSCC/052/20 subject to the Conditions and Informatives as 
set out in Appendix 1 of the report and amended as agreed by the 

Committee. 
 

4.14 The substantive recommendation to planning application 
WSCC/020/21/S257 was proposed by Cllr Atkins and seconded by Cllr 
Duncton and approved by a majority. 

 
4.15 Resolved – That an order be made under S257 of the Town and 

Country Planning Act 1990 for the diversion of Footpath no. 318. 
 

4.16 The Committee recessed at 1 p.m. and reconvened at 1.45 p.m. 
 

5.    Proposal under Section 26 of the Highway Act 1980  

 
Selsey: Proposed Upgrade of part of Public Footpath 76 Golf Links 

Lane to Bridleway as Part of a Route Linking Selsey with 
Medmerry. 
 

5.1 The Committee received and noted a report by the Director of 
Highways, Transport and Planning, Place Services including amendments 

to paragraph 6.1 of the Committee report as amended by the Agenda 
Update Sheet (copy appended to the signed copy of the minutes).  The 
report was introduced by Nicholas Scott, Principal Rights of Way Officer, 

who gave a presentation on the proposals, details of the informal 
consultation and key issues in respect of the application, plus the legal 

provisions for both the making and confirming of an order. 
 
5.2 The Committee noted a written statement in support of the 

application from Mr Peter Glover, local resident.  The proposals would be 
wholeheartedly supported.  The existing use of the lane by all forms of 

traffic has been understated in the Committee report and not based on 
consultation with residents or substantive periods of observation.  
Whatever the current legal restrictions, the lane is used by all manner of 

motorised vehicles including HGVs, farm traffic, heavy plant and private 
cars, as well as pedestrians and cyclists.  The claims of the Country Club 

that there would be an unsustainable increase in traffic is nonsense 

Page 11

Agenda Item 2



because the 300-plus chalets also generate substantial traffic.  There are 

safety concerns due to the lane being narrow and so signage and traffic 
calming measures were suggested.  No-one locally is aware of any owner, 
although part of the route is maintained by the Country Club.  Mr Glover’s 

comments are endorsed by Mr David Sword, another local resident. 
 

5.3 The Committee noted a written statement in support of the 
application from Mr Mike Nicholls, Chairman, Project Team, Selsey to 
Chichester Greenway.  The route is a strategic link between Selsey High 

Street and the RSPB via Ferry Farm and Medmerry.  The proposals would 
allow access to route 88 which stretches over 12.5 miles on the east of the 

B2145 to Chichester via North Mundham, and to the Greenway cycle route 
aiming to run over 8.5 miles on the west of the B2145 to Chichester.  The 
proposed route has passed the feasibility study, has passed an ecological 

impact assessment and has 95% land permissions.  It would help combat 
climate change, link communities, serve residents, commuters, pupils and 

visitors and link to other parts of the peninsular.  It would also enhance 
use of the canal.  The proposal is supported by local councils, businesses, 
stakeholders, Sustrans and landowners. 

 
5.4 Cllr Donna Johnson, local County Councillor for Selsey spoke on the 

application.  The Manhood Peninsula generates 70% of the tourism in 
Chichester District.  In summer there is a noticeable increase in cyclists.  
The proposal would support ambitions to make Selsey a destination for 

ecotourism.  Medmerry, one of the UK’s largest managed coastal 
realignment schemes, is a much visited stretch of coastline.  The B2145 is 

one of the country’s busiest B roads and traffic can exceed optimum usage 
at certain times.  Whilst the redesignation will not solve issues such as the 

narrow, twisting nature of the road, it would make a valuable contribution 
to alternative access to Selsey and Medmerry.  It is understood that not all 
owners along part of Golf Links Lane are happy with the proposal; 

however, the route would contribute to the convenience and enjoyment of 
the local community and visitors and ensure a safer environment in which 

to cycle or ride.   
 
5.5 During the debate the Committee raised the points below and a 

response or clarification was provided by the Principal Rights of Way 
Officer, where applicable, as follows: 

 
Need for the upgrade of Footpath 76 
 

Points raised – The proposal is a long-term ambition and long 
overdue.  There is still a lot of work to be done in the area to 

improve access, but this upgrade to Footpath 76 would be an 
important part of that.  It would also help support and improve 
tourism in Selsey. 

 
Response – None required. 

 
Reason that the proposal should be determined by 
Committee 

 
Points raised – Since there were no objections, what is the reason 

why the proposal needs to be determined by Committee? 

Page 12

Agenda Item 2



 

Response – The proposal was considered appropriate to be 
determined by Committee due to the fact that part of Golf Links 
Lane is unregistered, and also because of the previous opposition 

expressed by Selsey Country Club in 2019. 
 

Replacement of the kissing gate 
 
Points raised – Can it be confirmed that the kissing gate at the 

western end would be replaced with a new gate suitable for 
pedestrian, cycle and disability access? 

 
Response – That is correct. 
 

Use of the route 
 

Points raised – It is clear that the proposal would regularise the 
existing use of the route. 
 

Response – None required. 
 

5.6 The substantive recommendation was proposed by Cllr Montyn and 
seconded by Cllr Duncton and approved unanimously by the Committee. 
 

5.7 Resolved – That the Director of Law and Assurance be authorised to 
make, and confirm in the event of no objections, an order under Section 

26 Highways Act 1980 to upgrade a length of public footpath 76 along Golf 
Links Lane to a bridleway. 

 
5.8 The Committee recessed at 2.26pm and reconvened at 2.40 pm. 
 

5.9 During the recess Cllr Oakley and Cllr Quinn left the meeting. 
 

6.    Planning Application: Waste  
 

WSCC/004/20 – Restoration of the former Standen Landfill site 

with a woodland and pasture landfill cap system.  Evergreen Farm, 
West Hoathly Road, East Grinstead, RH19 4NE. 

 
6.1 The Committee considered a report by the Head of Planning 
Services, including an additional condition as amended by the Agenda 

Update Sheet (copy appended to the signed copy of the minutes).  The 
report was introduced by Chris Bartlett, Principal Planner, who gave a 

presentation on the proposals, details of the consultation and key issues in 
respect of the application.  The Committee was asked to note a plan 
showing cross-sections A-A, B-B and C-C that was missed from the printed 

version of the agenda papers. 
 

6.2 Zara Luxford, General Manger, Standen House (National Trust), 
spoke in objection to the application.  Standen House is dependent on its 
150,000 visitors a year to make a profit and continue with its conservation 

work.  Having to negotiate heavy HGV traffic to access Standen House is 
likely to deter visitors.  The proposed window for HGV movements 

including return journeys would mean one HGV movement every 6 

Page 13

Agenda Item 2



minutes, and more likely would mean HGVs moving in convoys at times.  

Therefore, the Transport Assessment is incorrect and out of date.  62 HGV 
movements is a 60+ percentage increase in HGV movements along West 
Hoathly Road.  This should not be considered to be negligible nor would it 

be easily accommodated.  The narrow road would present major problems 
for HGVs and cars trying to pass an HGV travelling in the opposite 

direction, potentially causing congestion or accidents.  There are also 
concerns about the sandstone rock outcrops on the road around the 
entrance to Standen House.  The following mitigation measures were 

recommended: signage, traffic lights, speed limited, priority for visitors to 
Standen House, briefings to haulage contractors, marshals/banksmen, 

community liaison and a Construction Manager.   
 
6.3 The Committee noted a written statement in objection to the 

application from Mr Philip Wade, local resident.  The transport plan is 
strongly biased.  The proposed additional 62 HGV movements per day 

would be totally dangerous.  It would be an increase from 25 to 87 HGV 
movements per day.  The features and concerns of the proposed route 
from Imberhorne Lane to Evergreen Farm were described; these include 

the width restrictions at certain points, bends, bridges and road sections at 
risk of collapse or damage.  The route was not built to take the proposed 

frequency of heavy traffic, which would likely lead to further damage and 
need for repairs.  An alternative route from the Felbridge traffic lights, 
south on the A22 via Brooklands Way, Turners Hill Road and Saint Hill 

Road to Evergreen Farm was proposed. 
 

6.4 The Committee noted a written statement in objection to the 
application from Mr Peter McNamee, local resident.  The proposal does not 

accord with Policy W13(c) of the West Sussex Waste Local Plan because it 
does not protect landscapes.  The Committee report has not explained the 
criterion for proving what an “overriding need for the development” is.  

The need would be shown if the site was shown to actually be polluting the 
environment.  Whilst contaminants are present if you bore down into the 

mass, it has not been shown that gases are being released.  It is stated 
that the stream does not meet standards for a freshwater stream but no 
comparisons were provided.  There is no way to assess the potential level 

of risk.  The site is currently used as a commercial campsite and horses 
have been allowed to graze on the paddock.  More than 100 members of 

the public have objected, many on the grounds of road safety.  The roads 
are not suitable for so many large vehicles.  There is risk to pedestrians 
and could well be fatalities.  The only safety feature requested by WSCC 

Highways was around widening the access to the site, but there was no 
adequate risk assessment of the whole route.  Noise and dust have not 

been adequately mitigated and there is concern that the care home 
residents would be badly affected.  Overall, effects on neighbours are not 
adequately mitigated. 

 
6.5 The Committee noted a written statement in support of the 

application from Jane Warrener, co-owner of Evergreen Farm.  The 
property was purchased in 2004 for the purposes of keeping horses, to run 
a livery and keep a range of farm rescue animals.  It became clear the 

land was not fit for purpose and the quality of grass was poor with next to 
no nutrients.  The land is excessively muddy leading to numerous 

incidents and injuries, which along with illness has led to two horses 

Page 14

Agenda Item 2



having to be put to sleep.  Mrs Warrener suffers from a rare condition, 

which she believes is caused by the effects of landfilling.  The land is in 
urgent need of restoration to return it to a workable and safe condition. 
 

6.6 Cllr Jacquie Russell, local County Councillor for East Grinstead South 
and Ashurst Wood spoke on the application.  Despite mitigation there 

would be a significant impact on the highways.  Whilst the route is the 
shortest, it is not without challenges.  The widening at each end of the 
narrow stretch of West Hoathly Road is noted and will accommodate 

waiting HGVs and aid visibility at the point of ingress/egress, but it would 
still be nigh on impossible for two HGVs to pass on the narrow stretch 

between Evergreen Farm and Saints Hill.  There is no room for driver 
error.  There would be 10 HGV movements every hour/1 per six minutes 
on already congested roads, part of which is 60mph.  Visibility at Saints 

Hill Green is extremely poor.  There are two bridges on the B2110, one 
being very narrow.  The Household Waste Recycling Site is a pinch point.  

The areas around Imberhorne School and the recreation ground are of 
concern.  The roads are used by walkers and cyclists and there are no 
footpaths.  Is the importation of inert waste really the only viable method 

to mitigate the presence of contaminants?  The Committee report states 
the presence of contaminated material has the “potential” to pose a high 

risk to human health, but the Environment Agency did not say that the 
work must be done and it also noted that the restoration work carries the 
risk of mobilising the contaminants.  It is stated that an alternative option 

of a full gas extraction and flare system is not warranted because gas 
being generated “will be very low and insufficient to cause large volumes 

of gas emissions”, yet the applicant contradictorily states that gas was 
identified as a high risk with risk of asphyxiation/fire/explosion, making 

the site unusable by humans or animals and damaging the environment.  
The report does not suggest any alternatives to capping.  It also states 
that there would still be a leachate collection swale/blanket suggesting 

capping would not be 100% effective.  Therefore, if a swale/blanket is 
effective, why is this not suggested as the first step to address the issues?  

Have biological treatment options been considered?  The long-term 
benefits of capping need to be weighed against the deficits to the 
community.   

 
6.7 During the debate the Committee raised the points below and a 

response or clarification was provided by the Planning, Highways and 
Legal Officers, where applicable, as follows: 
 

Acceptability in terms of Waste Planning policy 
 

Points raised – It is not clear whether the proposed level of inert 
material to be imported, which is approximately enough to fill half of 
Wembley Stadium, is necessary and whether it accords with Policy 

W8(e) of the Waste Local Plan.  Have the options ‘do nothing’ or ‘do 
less’ been considered, in order ensure compliance with Policy 

W8(a)?  Is it necessary to have 1 metre of soil for the grassland and 
2 metres for the woodland?  
 

Response – It is for the Committee to determine whether or not 
the level of imported material is appropriate.  The 2 metre level of 

soil on top of the clay cap is necessary for tree roots.  It may be 

Page 15

Agenda Item 2



possible to reduce the level of soil required if the Committee wishes 

to consider this.   
 
Importation of inert materials  

 
Points raised – Clarification was sought on the volume of inert 

material to be imported.  How would volumes being imported be 
managed?  What would be the origin of the inert materials to be 
imported? 

 
Response – The proposed volume of inert material to be imported 

is 126,000 tonnes.  No weighbridge is proposed for the site, so this 
would be managed by condition via the provision of periodic 
topography plans.  The origin of the inert materials is not known.   

 
HGV delivery times and number of HGV movements 

 
Points raised – The locality around Imberhorne School is busy with 
traffic/cars at school drop-off and pick-up times and the locality of 

the recreation ground is busy on Saturday mornings, so there would 
be safety concerns about the additional HGVs using the route at 

these times.  Could the HGV movement time be restricted to 9.30 to 
14.30?  Under the currently proposed HGV delivery times, the final 
HGV of the day would need to access the site by 14.30 in order to 

offload and leave the site by 15.30 so as to comply with HGV 
delivery hours.  This would mean that in reality HGV movements 

would be squeezed into a shorter time frame meaning the frequency 
would be more than one movement every 6 minutes.  Could the 

period allowed for HGV movements be extended to 100 weeks 
instead of 80 weeks, thereby reducing the number of HGV 
movements required each day? 

 
Response – The timings for HGV movements were chosen to avoid 

the rush hour at either end of the day.  If HGV movement hours 
were to be condensed further this would mean more movements 
per hour.  Extension of the period for delivery of inert material could 

potentially spread out the number of HGV movements per day.  It 
should be noted that delivery of the inert materials to site would be 

dependent on availability of materials.  The number of HGV 
movements per day would be variable – under the current 
proposals, 62 HGV movements is the average number per day not 

an exact figure.  The proposed new condition ‘Construction 
Management Plan’ requires information to be provided about the 

number, frequency and types of vehicles, which allows a degree of 
flexibility and enforcement, if required. 
 

Highway capacity, road safety and routing 
 

Points raised – The proposed HGV movements would be a 66% 
increase, which is significant.  There would be difficulties for HGVs 
accessing and egressing the site due to the sandstone outcrops.  

Clarification of the details of the passing bays was requested.  The 
road safety audit is insufficient because it was a desktop exercise 

with a 30 minute visit which took place in December 2020, which 

Page 16

Agenda Item 2



was during the second COVID-19 lockdown.  Some of the issues 

relating to highway capacity and road safety could be mitigated if 
empty HGVs leaving the site were to follow a different route – the 
route suggested was the one used by the 84 bus which goes 

southbound from West Hoathly Road to Grinstead Lane, then to 
Wych Cross and on to the A22.  Suggestions made by the National 

Trust including speed reduction, marshalling, etc. should be 
considered.  Clarification was sought regarding the matter in 
paragraph 9.44 of the Committee report requiring a bond for 

repairing damage resulting from construction traffic.  
 

Response – The road widening works would be provided and 
secured by a s.106 agreement; the half a metre widening would 
take place at either end of the narrowing of the road where the rock 

outcrop is.  The road safety audit was undertaken in accordance 
with relevant guidance and the whole route from the A22 was 

assessed.  The proposed alternative route for HGVs exiting the site 
using the same route as the 84 bus has not been proposed as part 
of the planning application - the recommendation for consideration 

is based on the current proposed route.  Regarding recovery of 
costs in relation to damage as a result of construction, this would be 

managed by the provision of a condition survey of the route in 
advance of the works and also at a periodic points, followed by 
negotiation with the operator on recovery costs. 

 
Gases and leachate 

 
Points raised – Landfill gas is up to 30 times more potent in terms 

of climate change than CO2; it is currently leaking from the site and 
the proposal is for it to be vented afterwards, so there would be no 
benefit when considered against the current situation.  

Benzo(a)pyrene is carcinogenic but is being released into the open 
air, therefore, the level of threat is questioned.  There has been no 

verification of leachate, only a mention that the owner has seen 
this, so it is questioned what the potential impact on the aquifer to 
the south-west of the site would be.  The landfill site has been 

closed for nearly 30 years - a 24 year study of landfill sites, which 
included groundwater contamination, states that after a period of 20 

years the impacts on groundwater can’t be detected.  It was 
suggested that an expert be asked to provide information to the 
Committee on the level of danger posed from the site, particularly in 

relation to the impacts on the care home and on school children.  
There was no mention in the report of options to capture and use 

the gases nor whether other methods of dealing with emissions 
have been explored.  Consideration should be given to whether the 
harm from CO2 and other emissions from the proposed HGV 

movements outweighs the potential harm from gases and leachate 
from the site.  Clarification was also sought on whether work should 

be undertaken to determine the levels of CO2 and methane being 
released from the site versus the proposed tree allocation, so that 
carbon capture can be assessed. 

 
Response – The ground investigation report states there is a 

potential for contamination including to the aquifer.  The report 

Page 17

Agenda Item 2



states that there are elevated levels of benzo(a)pyrene, CO2 and 

methane, a risk of surface water contamination, and an increase in 
contamination of the stream over three visits.  The proposal would 
remediate historic activity and provide a clay capping system with 

different levels of topsoil for areas of grassland and woodland.  The 
proposal would also protect the site from leachate into aquifers and 

nearby streams by preventing surface water penetrating the cap.  
No report on the levels of emissions from HGVs has been provided.  
Following capping, monitoring of gases and leachate and pollution 

control would be the responsibility of the Environment Agency and 
an Environmental Permit would be required.  The Committee must 

assess whether the proposal is an appropriate use of the land.  The 
matter of carbon equation is not material to this planning 
application. 

 
Site history 

 
Points raised – Why was the previous planning permission for the 
landfill site granted by the District Council?  Why was the capping 

not carried out when the landfill site closed in the 1990s? 
 

Response – Planning permission for landfill was previously within 
the remit of the District Council; this has since changed and is now 
the responsibility of the County Council.  The closure and restoration 

of older landfill sites was not always undertaken with the rigour that 
would be expected today.  

 
Landscaping  

 
Points raised – Are any of the trees subject to a TPO? 
 

Response – There are no trees with TPOs.  Condition 5 ‘Ecological 
Management and Aftercare Plan’ requires management and 

replacement of trees for a period of 5 years. 
 

6.8 The following motion was proposed by Cllr Montyn and seconded by 

Cllr Atkins: 
 

That planning application WSCC/004/20 be deferred to allow further 
work to take place between Planning Officers and the applicant to 
explore options and determine what possibilities exist to resolve 

issues in relation to: 
 Matters regarding highway capacity, road safety and traffic 

management measures, in the widest sense, and 
 The need for the volume of inert material to be imported, 

including general fill in the areas currently designated for  

woodland. 
 

The Committee voted on the motion, which was approved by a majority. 
 
6.9 That planning application WSCC/004/20 be deferred for Officers to 

explore with the applicant matters relating to highway capacity, road 
safety and traffic management and the need for the volume of importation 

of inert material, as raised in Minute 6.8 above. 

Page 18

Agenda Item 2



 

7.    Date of Next Meeting  
 

7.1 The next scheduled meeting of the Planning and Rights of Way 

Committee will be on Tuesday, 7 September 2021 at 10.30 a.m. 
 

The meeting ended at 4.32 pm 
 
 

 
 

 
 
Chairman 

Page 19

Agenda Item 2



This page is intentionally left blank



Key decision: Not applicable 

Unrestricted 
 

Planning and Rights of Way Committee 

7 September 2021 

County Matter Waste Application 

Restoration of the former Standen Landfill site with a woodland and 
pasture landfill cap system 

Evergreen Farm, West Hoathly Road, East Grinstead, RH19 4NE 

Application No: WSCC/004/20 

Report by Head of Planning Services 

Local Member: Jacquie Russell     District: Mid Sussex 

 

Summary 

Evergreen Farm contains the former ‘Standen Tip’, a historic inert landfill site, 
completed in the early 1990s and restored to rough pasture and equestrian use.  The 

site is currently in poor condition, with ground investigation works identifying 
contaminants which include elevated concentrations of benzo(a)pyrene, high levels of 
methane and risks to controlled waters through leaching. 

The proposed development seeks to import 126,677m3 (190,015 tonnes) of inert 
clay/soil waste to restore the site to a mix of native broadleaf woodland and native 

grassland meadow.  The capping of the site would help prevent direct infiltration and 
mitigate risk associated with leaching of contaminants.  A gas venting system would 
also be installed. 

The proposed development would result in a change in profiles to the site and require 
the removal of some trees/vegetation, which the applicant proposes to mitigate 

through replanting and ecological enhancements. 

The application was considered by the Planning and Rights of Way Committee at its 
meeting on 29 June 2021 (see Appendix 2 – June Committee Report), at which 

determination was deferred to enable the applicant to reconsider the volume of 
imported inert material required and the impacts of the proposal in relation to 

highway capacity, road safety, and traffic management.  Although the applicant does 
not propose any changes to the volume of material to be imported, it is now proposed 
that importation would take place over a longer period of time, that is, over two years 

(104 weeks) instead of 80 weeks as originally proposed.  This would enable the 
number of daily HGV movements to be reduced, that is, 50 movements instead of 62 

movements as originally proposed.  No changes to the routing of HGVs are proposed 
but the applicant is now proposing that there would be no working on Saturdays.  The 
development, including importation and progressive restoration, would now be 

expected to take two and half years in total.   

Page 21

Agenda Item 4



This report provides a generalised description of the site and a detailed account of the 

proposed development and appraises it against the relevant policy framework from 
national to local level. 

The main policies of relevance to this application are Policies W1, W8, W11, W12, 
W13, W14, W15, W16, W17, W18, W19 and W20 of the West Sussex Waste Local Plan 

(WLP April 2014), Policies DP12, DP16, DP17, DP26, DP29, DP34, DP36, DP37, DP38, 
DP41 and DP42 of the Mid Sussex District Plan (2014 – 2031) and policies EG1, EG3, 
EG4 and EG11 of the East Grinstead Neighbourhood Plan (November 2016). 

Apart from the National Trust, no other consultees raise objection to the proposal.  
Notwithstanding this, various consultees highlight areas of concern and request 

conditions for, but not limited to, highway matters, dust and noise impacts, impacts 
on Standen House, and landscaping. 

There have been 255 representations from third parties, 249 of those objecting and 

six commenting on the proposal. 

Consideration of Key Issues 

The main material planning considerations in relation to the determination of the 
application are whether the proposal: 

 is acceptable in principle with regard to waste planning policy; 

 is acceptable in terms of the impacts on landscape character and the AONB; 

 is acceptable in terms of highway capacity and road safety; and 

 has an acceptable impact on local amenity and the local environment. 

Acceptable in Principle with regard to Waste Planning Policy 

The WLP supports recovery operations involving the deposition of inert waste to land 

where it would meet certain criteria.  The proposed capping of the site is considered to 
meet these, and as such to represent a genuine ‘recovery’ operation that provides for 

the movement of waste up the waste hierarchy, in accordance the West Sussex Waste 
Local Plan (2014) and National Planning Policy for Waste (2014) 

Impacts on Landscape Character and the AONB 

The application site is situated within the countryside, in the High Weald Area of 
Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB), a protected designation.  The site is well-

screened by its topography and surrounding vegetation, and much of the operations 
and final form would take place with only limited visible impact.  Any impacts caused 
during capping operations would be temporary and would not be significant.  In 

addition, it is considered that the completed development would not give rise to any 
significant unacceptable impact on the character, distinctiveness and sense of place of 

the location or undermine the objectives of the AONB designation. 

Impact on Highway Capacity and Road Safety 

The proposed development would result in a maximum of 50 HGV movements each 
weekday as a result of the capping operation.  The route has been reviewed with the 
Highway Authority and is considered to be the most appropriate route to and from the 

site.  The Highway Authority have considered the potential impacts and concluded 
that, subject to securing HGV routing and a Construction Management Plan, the 

Page 22

Agenda Item 4



proposed development would not have any significant adverse impacts and, as such, 

it accords with the NPPF.  Therefore, the proposed development is considered 
acceptable with regard to highway capacity and road safety. 

Impact on Local Amenity and the Local Environment 

The site is in close proximity to a number of sensitive receptors.  Although there 

would inevitably be some disturbance in the locality as a result of the proposed 
development, this would be temporary and limited in nature.  The imposition of 
conditions to control hours of operation, noise impacts and impacts on air quality 

should ensure that there are no unacceptable impacts upon amenity and the local 
environment.  The proposed development would also have no impact on the water 

environment, nor on the setting and appreciation of Standen House.  Overall, the 
proposed development would deliver better long-term benefits for the site and 
surrounding environment once the site is capped and restored.  It is therefore 

considered that the development is acceptable in terms of impacts on local amenity 
and the local environment. 

Conclusion 

The application was considered by the Planning and Rights of Way Committee at its 
meeting on 29 June 2021, at which determination was deferred to enable the 

applicant to reconsider the volume of imported inert material required and the impacts 
of the proposal in relation to highway capacity, road safety and traffic management.  

As a result, the applicant has proposed amendments to remove working on Saturdays 
and to import the material over a longer period of time; this would result in fewer 
daily HGV movements but increase the total length of time to undertake the 

development, including for the progressive restoration of the site. 

Local and National planning policy supports recovery operations involving the 

deposition of inert waste to land where waste is moved up the waste hierarchy.  The 
proposed capping of the site is considered to represent a genuine ‘recovery’ operation 
that is required to mitigate the presence of contaminants on the site and deal with the 

physical landform. 

The site is well-screened by its topography and surrounding vegetation, and much of 

the operations and final form would take place with limited visible impact.  Any 
impacts caused during capping operations would be temporary and, given limited 
views into the site, would not be significant.  Upon completion the proposed 

development would be sympathetic to the character, distinctiveness and sense of 
place of the location and not undermine the objectives of the AONB designation. 

The HGV movements associated with the development are considered to be 
acceptable and the routing appropriate.  The Highway Authority have no objection to 

the development with regards to highway safety and capacity. 

Finally, subject to the control of hours of operation, noise impacts, impacts on air 
quality and the water environment, the proposed development would not have any 

significant adverse impacts on sensitive receptors, the local environment, nor the 
heritage asset of Standen House and its garden. 

Overall, the proposed development would deliver better long-term benefits for the site 
and surrounding environment once the capping is complete and the site is fully 
restored.  In conclusion, the proposal accords with the relevant development plan 

Page 23

Agenda Item 4



policies relating to waste, as well as other material considerations including national 

policy. 

 

Recommendation 

That planning permission be granted subject to: 

(a) the conditions as set out in Appendix 1 of this report; and 

(b) the completion of a Section 106 Agreement relating to: 

(i) the routing of HGVs to and from the application site; 

(ii) road widening works and maintaining visibility along West Hoathly Road; 

(iii) road signage along the prescribed route; and 

(iv) the securing of a Section 59 Agreement. 

 

 

1. Introduction 

1.1 Evergreen Farm contains the former ‘Standen Tip’, a historic inert landfill site, 

completed in the early 1990s and restored to rough pasture and equestrian 
use.  The applicant’s recent surveys/investigation show that the restoration 

quality is poor and that the site contains contaminated material making the 
land both unsuitable for equestrian use and having the potential to pose a high 
risk to human health from landfill gas and groundwater leachate emissions to 

controlled waters. 

1.2 The proposal is for the importation of 126,677m3 (190,015 tonnes) of waste 

clay soils/material to create a ‘landfill cap system’ to minimise emissions to air, 
water or soil, and to secure high-quality restoration to a mixture of native 
broadleaf woodland and native grassland. 

1.3 The importation of the material would take two years and involve up to 25 daily 
HGV deliveries (50 two-way movements).  The development, including 

importation and progressive restoration of the site, would take two and half 
years in total. 

2. Site and Description 

2.1 The application site extends to 4.4 hectares including the access road and sits 

in open countryside within the High Weald AONB.  The land is not currently 
being used for any form of agricultural or equestrian use due to its undulating 

topography and the exposure in places of previously-deposited materials. 

2.2 The site is situated near East Grinstead in Mid Sussex District (see Appendix 3 
- Area Plan).  It is located approximately 300m south of the boundary of East 

Grinstead’s built-up area with vehicular access proposed via West Hoathly Road 
and an access to the north of the existing Evergreen Farm residential property 

rather than the access to Standen House. 

Page 24

Agenda Item 4



2.3 The site (see Appendix 4 - Location Plan) comprises an irregular shaped 

parcel of land and is generally undeveloped fields with several equestrian 
buildings, barns, and a residential property with an associated garden situated 

on the central western part of the site.  On the north-eastern boundary of the 
site, there is an area of ‘Ancient Woodland’, which contains several pathways 

and clearings that have been in use as camping pitches.   

2.4 The south-western part of the site comprised two fields, with the western-most 
part comprising undeveloped grassland and the eastern field occupied by 

several mature trees.  The central and northern portions of the site comprised 
undeveloped grassland, which had previously been used for pasture.  The area 

is very undulating with a sloping landscape. 

2.5 A number of mature and semi-mature trees are present across the site and 
along its boundaries together with the area of ancient woodland.  Several Public 

Rights of Way (PROWs) surround the application site, but none abut it. 

2.6 The closest residential property, Beechcroft Care Centre, a care home for young 

adults with physical and learning difficulties, abuts the site on its northern 
boundary.  Trefoil Montessori Farm School also lies to the north of the site. 

2.7 About 500m to the south of the application site is Standen House, a Grade I 

Listed Building and is a designated heritage asset of the highest significance.  
The house lies within a park/garden, also known as Standen, which is a Grade 

II Registered Parks and Garden of Special Historic Interest and also a 
designated heritage asset. 

3. Relevant Planning History 

3.1 The application site includes a historic landfill known as ‘Standen Tip’.  Approval 

of the landfill was given by Mid-Sussex District Council in March 1981 for ‘the 
reclamation of land for agricultural use by tipping’.  Permission to extend the 

time period for the completion of works was approved in March 1992. 

3.2 Various permissions relating to the Evergreen Farm property (located to the 

south-west of the site and outside the red-line boundary) have been approved 
dating from the late 1980s.  These include planning permissions for a 
temporary timber dwelling house on the site (which is still present) and 

approvals for a replacement house. 

3.3 More recently, an application for the same development (i.e. restoration of the 

former Standen Landfill) was made in August 2019, application reference 
number WSCC/061/19.  As with the current application, this gave rise to a high 
number of objections with a particular concern about HGV movements, with 

some HGVs proposed to be routed through the centre of East Grinstead. 

3.4 However, prior to determination of that application, it was withdrawn due to the 

submission of incorrect certificates.  Before resubmitting the application with 
the correct certificates, the applicant took the opportunity to reassess the 
proposed routing to and from the site.  During this time, discussions were held 

with planning and highways officers and applicant’s highways consultant.  
Section 4.11 of this report sets out the conclusions of those discussions in 

relation to routing.  

Page 25

Agenda Item 4



3.5 The current application was first considered by the Planning and Rights of Way 

Committee at its meeting on 29 June 2021.  The Committee voted to defer 
determination of the application as result of concerns about the volume of 

material required and the volume and routing of HGVs.  As a result, the 
applicant has reconsidered the following matters:  

 the need for the volume of inert material to be imported, including 
general fill in the areas currently designated for woodland and; 

 matters regarding highway capacity, road safety, and traffic management 

measures. 

3.6 Although the applicant does not propose any changes to the volume of material 

to be imported, it is now proposed that the importation of the material would 
now take place over a longer period of time, that is, over two years (104 
weeks) instead of 80 weeks as originally proposed.  This would enable the 

number of daily HGV movements to be reduced, that is, 50 movements instead 
of 62 movements as originally proposed.  No changes to the routing of HGVs 

are proposed but the applicant is now proposing that there would be no working 
on Saturdays.  The development, including importation and progressive 
restoration, would now be expected to take two and half years in total.  

3.7 The applicant also sought to address concerns raised at the Committee meeting 
about the principle of the development.  These matters are considered further 

in Section 9 of this report.   

4. The Proposal 

4.1 Planning permission is sought for the importation of 126,677m3 (190,015 
tonnes) of waste clay soils/material to create a ‘landfill cap system’ to minimise 

any emissions to air, water or soil, and to secure high quality restoration to a 
mixture of native broadleaf woodland and native grassland (see Appendix 5 – 

Block Plan and Appendix 6 – Landscape Plan). 

4.2 The development is sought due to the risks posed by the historic deposit of 

waste beneath the site.  Survey work has identified elevated concentrations of 
the carcinogen benzo(a)pyrene and concentrated and high levels of methane.  
The associated assessment also identified risks to controlled waters through the 

leaching of groundwater contaminants. 

4.3 A restoration layer designed to modern standards is proposed, which would 

control the identified risk to human health.  The restoration layer would require 
a 1.0-1.1 metre impermeable clay cover system topped with layers of subsoils 
and topsoil.  This cap would mitigate the risk associated with the physical 

quality of soil encountered near the surface (i.e. brick, tarmacadam, metal and 
glass).  The installation of a capping system on site would increase overland 

flow of surface water, rather than allowing direct infiltration, thereby protecting 
controlled waters by limiting the potential leaching of the elevated 
contaminants of concern identified beneath the site.  The proposed capping 

system includes a gas venting and surface water drainage system to prevent 
gas build up below the new cap and minimise the identified risks.  Any leachate 

from the landfill would be channelled to an outfall via a small swale and wetland 
system to be installed as a secondary precaution. 

4.4 Where the afteruse would be pasture, the restoration layer over the top of the 

clay cap will be 1.0 metre thick.  Where the afteruse would be woodland, a 2.0 

Page 26

Agenda Item 4



metre thick layer is required.  The transition between the two thickness of 

restoration layer and the merging of the cap with existing contours would 
require sculpting and careful management that, in some areas, results in 

slightly greater depth of material (see Appendix 7 – Proposed Final Levels, 
Appendix 8 – Cross Section A-A to C-C, Appendix 9 – Cross Section D-D 

to F-F and Appendix 10 – Cross Section G-G). 

4.5 Around half the cap area, located on the shallower slopes of the landfill would 
be part planted with a native broadleaf woodland to extend the wooded area of 

the Ancient Woodland to the north-east of the site.  A degree of natural 
regeneration of woodland around the planted areas would be allowed to 

establish.  The steeper sections of the landfill would be grassed with mix native 
to the High Weald AONB.  Only 1.0 metre depth of restoration layer could be 
added to the steeper sections due to stability considerations. 

4.6 Construction of the cap would take place in two halves.  To help control noise 
impacts, operations would be limited to eight weeks per annum along the 

north-western boundary to protect nearby receptors.  To ensure work in this 
area would be limited to eight weeks, material would be stockpiled on site in 
advance.  Stockpiled material would be kept in bunds 3m in height along the 

boundary of the eight-week zone ready for placement.  The remainder of the 
cap would be built year-round. 

4.7 The existing topsoil is thin and contaminated with debris but would remain in 
situ.  HGVs would drive across the land and tip imported material as close to 
the placement area as possible.  One bulldozer and one 360 digger would be 

used to spread the material.  The 360 digger would normally be stationary, 
turning 180 degrees to move the material from the point of deposit to placing it 

ready for the bulldozer to spread.  HGVs would tip off haul roads that would be 
constructed when required and would also ensure mud is not tracked back onto 
the haul road.  Smaller trenching machines would construct the pipe work 

system.  Once the impermeable layer of the cap has been constructed, it would 
be topsoiled. 

4.8 The scheme would require the removal of some trees and vegetation.  Trees 
along the western boundary are generally of lower value or are immature.  The 
root protection areas of those in the western area would be compromised and 

the capping cannot be fully built without their removal.  In this location, the 
restoration layer would not provide sufficient depth to protect the clay cap. 

Mitigatory tree planting is proposed elsewhere on site where sufficient soil 
depths allow. 

4.9 The site would operate 08.00 to 18.00 Monday to Friday, with no deliveries or 
working at the weekend and on Bank Holidays.  Plant would move around the 
site according to weather and types of material imported.  Wheel wash facilities 

would be located at the egress from the site.  A road sweeper would be situated 
on site and deployed as required. 

4.10 HGVs would deliver the material to the site.  This would require 25 deliveries a 
day, that is, 50 daily movements over a two-year period.  The development, 
including importation and progressive restoration of the site, would take two 

and half years in total.  

4.11 HGVs would enter the site using one access from West Hoathly Road.  The 

proposed construction route between the A22 and the site would be via 

Page 27

Agenda Item 4



Imberhorne Lane, Saint Hill Road and West Hoathly Road.  HGVs would enter 

from the south, turning right into the site.  When leaving, HGVs would turn left 
onto West Hoathly Road and follow a prescribed route. 

5. Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) 

5.1 The development falls within Part 11(b) of Schedule 2 to the Town and Country 
Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment Regulations 2017 as an 

‘installation for the disposal of waste’, and has a development area of more 
than 0.5 hectare and is within a ‘sensitive area’, and within 100m of controlled 
waters. 

5.2 The County Council provided a Screening Opinion on 9 August 2019 confirming 
that, having regard to the selection criteria in Schedule 3 of the EIA 

Regulations, the proposed development would not have the potential for 
significant effects on the environment within the meaning of the EIA 
Regulations 2017. 

6. Policy 

6.1 Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that 
applications are determined in accordance with the statutory ‘development plan’ 

unless material considerations indicate otherwise. 

6.2 For the purposes of this application, the statutory development plan comprises 

the West Sussex Waste Local Plan (2014), the Mid Sussex District Plan (2014-
2031), and the East Grinstead Neighbourhood Plan (November 2016). 

6.3 The key policies in the development plan which are material to the 

determination of the application, are summarised below.  In addition, reference 
is made to relevant national planning policy and other policies that guide the 

decision-making process and which are material to the determination of the 
application. 

West Sussex Waste Local Plan (April 2014)(‘the WLP’) 

6.4 Policy W1 relates to the need for waste management facilities and seeks to 
prevent waste landfill/disposal operations, with an objective of zero waste to 

landfill in West Sussex by 2031. 

6.5 Policy W8 of the WLP relates to recovery operations involving the deposition of 
inert waste to land.  These are supported providing a number of criteria are 

met, which are considered further in Section 9 of this report.  These are: 

“(a) the proposal results in clear benefits for the site and, where possible, the 

wider area; 

(b) the material to be used is only residual waste following recycling and/or 
recovery or it is a waste that cannot be recycled or treated; 

(c) there is a genuine need to use the waste material as a substitute for a 
non-waste material that would otherwise have to be used; 

(d) the material to be reused is suitable for its intended use; 

(e) the amount of waste material to be used is no more than is necessary to 
deliver the benefits identified under (a); 

Page 28

Agenda Item 4



(f) there would be no unacceptable impact on natural resources and other 

environmental constraints; 

(g) the proposal accords with Policy W13 (Protected Landscapes); 

(h) any important mineral reserves would not be sterilised; and 

(i) restoration of the site to a high quality standard would take place in 

accordance with Policy W20.” 

6.6 Policies W11–W20 relate to development management and are designed to 
ensure that there would be no unacceptable harm to amenity, character, and 

the environment or to other material considerations from waste development 
proposals.  Of particular relevance to the proposals are: Character (Policy 

W11), High Quality Development (Policy W12), Protected Landscapes (Policy 
W13), Biodiversity and Geodiversity (Policy W14), Historic Environment (Policy 
W15), Air, Soil and Water (Policy W16), Flooding (Policy W17), Transport 

(Policy W18), Public Health and Amenity (Policy W19) and Restoration and 
Aftercare (Policy W20). 

Mid Sussex District Plan (2014 - 2031) 

6.7 The relevant policies are: DP12 – Protection and Enhancement of Countryside, 
DP16 – High Weald Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty, DP17 – Ashdown 

Forest Special Protection Area (SPA) and Special Area of Conservation (SAC), 
DP26 – Character and Design, DP29 – Noise, Air and Light Pollution, DP34 – 

Listed Buildings and other Heritage Assets, DP36 – Historic Parks and Gardens, 
DP37 – Trees, Woodlands and Hedgerows, DP38 – Biodiversity, DP41 – Flood 
Risk and Drainage and DP42 – Water Infrastructure and the Water Environment 

East Grinstead Neighbourhood Plan (November 2016). 

6.8 The relevant policies are: EG1 – Protection of the High Weald AONB, EG3 – 

Promoting Good Design, EG4 – Designated and Non-Designated Assets and 
EG11 – Mitigating Highway Impact. 

National Planning Policy Framework (2021) 

6.9 The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) promotes, wherever possible, 
the use of waste as a resource and the movement of waste management up the 

‘waste hierarchy’, thereby only supporting the disposal of waste as a last resort.  
It also sets out the approach waste authorities should take to determining 
applications. 

6.10 The paragraphs in the NPPF of greatest relevance to the present proposal are: 

Paragraph 11 (presumption in favour of sustainable development, and 

approving development that accords with the development plan); 
paragraphs 55 - 57 (planning conditions and obligations), 120 (making 

effective use of land), 130 (well-designed places), 131 (incorporate trees 
in design where possible), 167 (ensuring flood risk is not increased 
elsewhere); 174 (contributing to and enhancing the natural 

environment), 176 (conserving and enhancing landscape in AONB), 180 
(protecting and enhancing biodiversity and geodiversity), 183 (ground 

conditions and pollution), 185 (ensuring new development is appropriate 
for its location taking into account the impact of pollution on health and 
the environment). 

Page 29

Agenda Item 4



National Planning Policy for Waste (2014) 

6.11 Paragraph 7 of the National Planning Policy for Waste (NPPW) relates to 
determining waste planning applications.  In summary, sections of key 

relevance to this application require planning authorities to: 

 “Consider the likely impact on the local environment and amenity against 

the locational criteria set out in Appendix B (see below); and 

 Ensure that facilities are well-designed, contributing positively to the 
character and quality of the area; and 

 Concern themselves with implementing the strategy in the Local Plan and 
not control of processes which are a matter for pollution control 

authorities, on the assumption that such regimes are properly applied 
and enforced.” 

Appendix B to the NPPW sets out locational criteria for testing the suitability of 

sites, namely the protection of water quality and resources and flood risk 
management; land instability; landscape and visual impacts; nature 

conservation; conserving the historic environment; traffic and access; air 
emissions including dust; odours; vermin and birds; noise, light and vibration; 
litter; and potential land conflict. 

National Planning Practice Guidance 

6.12 This is a web-based resource which provides national planning guidance and is 

regularly updated. Of particular relevance to the development proposals are 
‘waste’ (October 2015), ‘Noise’ (6 March 2014), ‘Natural environment’ (21 
January 2016). 

EU Council Directives 2008/98/EC and 1999/31/EC 

6.13 By virtue of the Waste (England and Wales) Regulations 2011 when 

determining any application for planning permission that relates to waste 
management (article 18), or landfill (article 20), the planning authority is 
required to take into account EU Council Directives; 2008/98/EC (the Waste 

Framework Directive) (which sets out the objectives of the protection of human 
health and the environment and self-sufficiency and proximity) and; 

1999/31/EC (the Landfill  Directive (which sets out which sets out the key 
considerations for the location of a landfill and requirement to prevent serious 
environmental risk and nuisance).  Case law has confirmed that these are 

objectives at which to aim.  As objectives they must be kept in mind whilst 
assessing the application and provided this is done, any decision in which the 

furtherance of the objectives are not achieved, may stand. 

7. Consultations 

7.1 Mid Sussex District Council: No objection subject to Environmental Health 
and Contaminated Land Officer comments being addressed. 

7.2 Mid Sussex District Council – Environmental Health Officer: No objection 

subject to conditions securing a Construction Environmental Management Plan 
(CEMP) which covers dust management, noise management and lighting. 

7.3 Mid Sussex District Council – Contaminated Land Officer: No objection 
subject to a verification report has been submitted and approved showing that 

Page 30

Agenda Item 4



the scheme has been implemented properly.  Also recommend a condition 

covering any unsuspected contamination. 

7.4 East Grinstead Town Council: Neither support nor object to the 

development.  Highlights concerns relating in the main to traffic, but also that 
Mid Sussex Officers must be satisfied. 

7.5 Environment Agency: No objection subject to conditions requiring the 
submission for approval of a verification plan and a verification report, by the 
Waste Planning Authority.  Also recommends a condition to ensure that there is 

no infiltration of surface water and requiring the submission of a Construction 
Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) covering noise, odour, dust, gas, 

leachate and surface water drainage and timetables of monitoring and the 
submission of reports. 

7.6 NATS: No safeguarding objection. 

7.7 Gatwick Safeguarding: No safeguarding objection. 

7.8 Natural England: Standing advice provided raising no objection. 

7.9 Historic England: No objection to the application on heritage grounds. 

7.10 National Trust:  Objects due to the significant impacts on Standen House 
visitor attraction.  However, should approval be granted, it recommends 

conditions covering requiring the submission of a CEMP, details of signage, 
limiting deliveries, and reducing traffic movements at certain times. 

7.11 High Weald Advisory Joint Committee: Neither supports nor objects to the 
development.  Provides standing advice.  Recommends, should the planning 
authority approve the development, that drainage should avoid adverse impacts 

and that landscaping should include native and locally sourced species and 
include a management plan. 

7.12 Forestry Commission: Standing advice provided.  No objection raised. 

7.13 Sussex Gardens Trust: No objection.  Recommends conditions minimising 
traffic impacts on Standen House. 

7.14 The Gardens Trust: Does not wish to comment. 

7.15 WSCC Archaeology: No objection subject to the removal of redundant signage 

upon completion. 

7.16 WSCC Drainage: No objection subject to approving the submitted drainage 
scheme. 

7.17 WSCC Ecology: No objection subject to conditions relating to the protection of 
bats and badgers. 

7.18 WSCC Tree Officer: No objection subject to the inclusion of a condition 
requiring the submission of a landscaping scheme. 

7.19 WSCC PROW: No objection, advice given. 

Page 31

Agenda Item 4



7.20 WSCC Highways: No objection subject to access and road widening and the 

submission of a construction management plan.  Also advises that the applicant 
will need to enter into a section 59 agreement to cover potential damage 

arising from the increase in extraordinary traffic. 

7.21 Local Councillor Jacquie Russell:  Concurs with the EAs comments and 

recommendations, highlights routing concerns and also dust and noise impacts.  
Supports section the need for a Section 59 agreement. 

8. Representations 

8.1 The application was publicised in accordance with Schedule 3 of the Town and 

Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015 
involving the erection of site notices located around the application site, an 

advertisement in the local newspaper, and neighbour notification letters. 

8.2 255 representations have been received from third parties; 249 objecting to the 
development and 6 commenting on the proposal. 

8.3 The main issues raised in representations are that: 

 Traffic movements are excessive and will cause congestion, traffic jams and 

collisions; 

 The local area cannot support any more traffic and are difficult to navigate; 

 The proposal would generate unacceptable noise, dust and odour close to 

properties; 

 Traffic will lead to potholes and deterioration of the local roads; 

 There will be risks to the safety of pupils at the local school; 

 Increased risk to pedestrians, cyclists and other road users; 

 Traffic information is incorrect; 

 There will be an adverse impact upon the environment and wildlife; 

 The scheme would have an adverse impact on local residents, including 

schools, care home and Standen House; 

 Evidence provided is unreliable/no need for the development; 

9. Consideration of Key Issues 

9.1 The main planning matters to consider in relation to this application are 
whether it: 

 is acceptable in principle with regard to waste planning policy; 

 is acceptable in terms of impacts on landscape character and the AONB; 

 is acceptable in terms of highway capacity and road safety; and 

 has an acceptable impact on local amenity and the local environment. 

Acceptable in Principle with Regard to Waste Planning Policy 

9.2 Policy W8 of the WLP supports recovery operations involving the deposition of 

inert waste to land where they meet various criteria.  For the proposed 
development to be considered a recovery operation, and thus acceptable in 

Page 32

Agenda Item 4



principle in accordance with Policy W8, these criteria must be satisfied.  

Consideration of each of these is set out below. 

(a) the proposal results in clear benefits for the site and, where possible, the 

wider area. 

9.3 The applicant has several objectives in relation to the need for the 

development.  The principal objective of the proposal is to control risk to human 
health from the historic tipping and to also mitigate the physical landform as a 
result of the exposed previously deposited materials.  In this regard, the 

applicant states that the development would: 

 reduce the on-going risk to controlled water from contaminants on the site 

which are mobile and leaching by reducing infiltration through the waste 
materials; 

 eliminate existing physical risks to any future use of the site posed by 

materials close to the surface (for example brick, tarmacadam, metal, and 
glass).  The applicant states that the site has previously been used for sheep 

grazing which stopped due to loss of sheep through illness or maiming from 
landfilled materials.  More recently, the site has accommodated horses but 
due to injuries sustained on the former landfill, were confined to a path 

between the stables and woodland which was inadequate, and which led to 
the use ceasing; and 

 reduce risks of asphyxiation/fire/explosion as identified during the desk-top 
survey.  Therefore, the existing site is inappropriate for any use which 
involves people or animals due such risks; and 

 prevent damage to the environment because methane and carbon dioxide 
from the landfill materials are likely to be impacting trees adjacent to the 

landfill site and potentially the ancient woodland. 

9.4 Essentially, the applicant states that the site is unusable in its existing condition 
and that it is having a detrimental effect upon the environment. 

9.5 In terms of the level of contamination, the reports submitted with the 
application clearly identify contamination of the former landfill and on-going 

risks to controlled waters.  Following a review of the surveys, Mid Sussex 
District Council’s Contaminated Land Officer accepts that the site does contain 
contaminants, stating that “the site contains contaminates and we would want 

to encourage and support the voluntary remediation”.   

9.6 It is accepted that the proposed capping is an opportunity to mitigate 

contamination produced by historic landfilling. 

9.7 The proposed development would result in the direct loss of existing grassland 

habitats and disturbance to adjacent ancient woodland.  Such impacts are 
unavoidable as the scheme extends up to the boundary of the site.  However, 
there is already evidence of damage to the edge ancient woodland from 

previous operations.  The ecological assessment states that the capping of the 
site would result in an “unavoidable impact on a small number of trees, 

(however, this) is outweighed by the wider environmental benefits of capping 
the landfill site and containing the leachate”. 

9.8 On completion, it is considered that the proposed package of planting and 

ecologic enhancements would provide an improved habitat in the long-term and 

Page 33

Agenda Item 4



compensate for loss of any habitats and vegetation.  WSCC Ecologist raises no 

objection to the proposal, subject to a condition securing bat and badger 
protection. 

9.9 Overall, it is agreed that the proposed development would result in 
environmental and ecological benefits compared with the existing situation, 

particularly in the long-term.  The benefits would be to the site and the wider 
area, the latter being a desirable but not essential requirement under Policy 
W8.  The proposal is therefore considered to accord with this criterion. 

(b) the material to be used is only residual waste following recycling and/or 
recovery or it is a waste that cannot be recycled or treated. 

9.10 The imported inert wastes would comprise clay and soils.  Material that could be 
recycled or otherwise be put to use would have been removed from elsewhere 
by the waste operator prior to coming to the site, particularly as the financial 

returns for recycling are greater than for waste deposit.  The proposal is, 
therefore, considered to accord with this criterion. 

(c) there is a genuine need to use the waste material as a substitute for a 
non-waste material that would otherwise have to be used. 

9.11 The development would make use of inert waste rather than ‘virgin’ soils to 

create the capping system.  Using any material other than waste would make 
the scheme unviable. 

(d) the material to be reused is suitable for its intended use. 

9.12 The imported inert wastes would comprise clay and soils, all typical materials 
used in land raising, engineering and restoration projects.  In addition, an 

Environmental Permit would most likely be required that would ensure incoming 
waste is checked by trained operatives.  The proposal is, therefore, considered 

to accord with this criterion. 

(e) the amount of waste material to be used is no more than is necessary to 
deliver the benefits identified under (a). 

9.13 The proposed development is considered to be the minimum required to deliver 
the benefits highlighted in paragraph 9.3.  The applicant has stated that the 

amount required to complete the scheme is 126,677.74m3.  Although the 
applicant is content for this amount to be controlled by condition, this would not 
be workable given that the scheme does not include a weighbridge.  However, 

the applicant has produced existing and post-development site levels, which 
can be used to control the levels of imported material.   

9.14 The clay capping is required to be a minimum of 1m thickness to limit water 
infiltration, with the soil on top of this varying across the site; it would be 

thicker where planting is required and thinner where there are steeper slopes 
and where areas require only grassing.  

9.15 During discussion at Committee on 29 June 2021, Councillors requested that 

the level of imported material be reviewed and asked whether less material 
could be brought into the site.  The applicant has advised that it is not possible 

to provide the design of capping system with a reduced volume of material.  
They have stated that the proposal: 

Page 34

Agenda Item 4



“represents the minimum amount of material required to achieve the 

proposed restoration scheme and landscape strategy which a composite 
solution balancing drainage, stability, landscape and pollution control 

criteria.  The incorporation of trees, apart from the aesthetic and 
ecological benefits help to stabilise the surface, on what will always be a 

sloping site, where rainfall is design to move through the restoration 
layer and not penetrate the landfill below.  Tree roots help with the 
stability of surface soil and add a safety factor into the overall design.  

They (also) provide invaluable habitats for wildlife, and largely due to 
annual leaf fall leading to a build-up of litter, they improve prospects of 

soil formation”.  

9.16 It is considered that the scheme creates a landform that responds to the 
existing topography whilst producing benefits to the local environment.  

Therefore, the proposal is considered to accord with this criterion. 

(f) there would be no unacceptable impact on natural resources and other 

environmental constraints. 

9.17 The development has the potential to have detrimental effects on the 
environment and natural resources.  However, the Environment Agency has 

raised no objection to the proposal. 

9.18 The WSCC Drainage and Flood Risk engineer is satisfied that the drainage 

matters have been dealt with and have no objection to the development subject 
to the drainage plan being approved.  The site is in an area that is at a low risk 
of flooding, and overall flood risk is low.  On this basis, it is considered, that 

drainage matters have been adequately addressed. 

9.19 The development would be adjacent to an area of Ancient Woodland to the east 

and there would be some impact upon the root protection zones of some trees.  
However, there is evidence that damage to trees in the area has occurred from 
the historic landfill contaminants, it is not proposed to remove any trees.  

Subject to conditions to secure the implementation of the site wide Landscaping 
Scheme and Ecological Management Plan, and management of construction 

activities (e.g. dust suppression and minimisation of noise), it is not considered 
there would be any unacceptable impact on the Ancient Woodland or 
biodiversity more generally. 

9.20 Therefore, the proposed scheme, subject to conditions, would not result in any 
unacceptable impact upon wider amenity, air quality, ecology or the water 

environment and is considered to accord with this criterion. 

(g) the proposal accords with Policy W13 (Protected Landscapes) 

9.21 In terms of impacts on the landscape, landscape character and the AONB as 
discussed later in this report; the proposed development is considered 
acceptable. 

(h) any important mineral reserves would not be sterilised 

9.22 Ground investigation reports have shown the site to be contaminated and a 

historic landfilling site.  It is therefore unlikely that mineral extraction would be 
economically or practicably viable given the history of the site.  Accordingly, it 

Page 35

Agenda Item 4



is not considered that there would be any unacceptable sterilisation of mineral 

reserves.  The proposal is, therefore, considered to accord with this criterion. 

(i) restoration of the site to a high-quality standard would take place in 

accordance with Policy W20 

9.23 In terms of impacts on the landscape, landscape character and the AONB Policy 

W20 seeks to protect these and as discussed in the following section, the 
proposed development is considered acceptable. 

9.24 In conclusion, the WLP supports recovery operations involving the deposition of 

inert waste to land where it would meet certain criteria.  The proposed capping 
of the site is considered to meet these, and as such to represent a genuine 

‘recovery’ operation that provides for the movement of waste up the waste 
hierarchy, in accordance the West Sussex Waste Local Plan (2014) and NPPW 
(2014). 

Impacts on Landscape Character and the AONB 

9.25 The application site extends to 4.4. hectares and the development would 

involve the importation of 126,677m3 (190,015 tonnes) of waste clay 
soils/material in a protected landscape; it is, therefore considered to be ‘major’ 
development. 

9.26 Policy W11 of the WLP states that proposals for waste development will be 
permitted provided that they would not have an unacceptable impact upon the 

character, distinctiveness and sense of place of the area. 

9.27 Policy W13(c) of the WLP states that proposals for major waste development in 
protected landscapes, in this case the High Weald AONB, will not be permitted 

unless: 

(i) there is an overriding need for the development within the designated 

area; and 

(ii) the need cannot be met in some other way or met outside the 
designated area; and 

(iii) any adverse impacts on the environment, landscape, and recreational 
opportunities can be satisfactorily mitigated. 

9.28 This reflects paragraph 176 of the NPPF, relating to development in 
AONBs/National Parks, which states that “great weight should be given to 
conserving and enhancing landscape and scenic beauty in AONBs”. 

9.29 The development has the potential to result in two main types of landscape and 
visual impact: temporary changes to views during the capping operations; and 

permanent changes to the landscape character through the creation of a raised 
landform and loss existing grassland habitats and disturbance to adjacent 

ancient woodland. 

9.30 The site is located within a very rural area with few residential properties in the 
immediate area, with only the Beechcroft Care Centre and Trefoil Montessori 

Farm School likely to have direct views of the proposed new landform upon 
completion. 

Page 36

Agenda Item 4



9.31 In terms of temporary impacts during construction, the Landscape and Visual 

Assessment submitted with the application concludes that visual effects would 
be medium adverse.  However, there are very limited viewpoints of the site and 

any impact would be both transitory and temporary in nature.  Upon 
completion, the proposal would bring forward a landform broadly matching the 

character of the surrounding area. 

9.32 The Landscape and Visual Assessment identifies the visual impact on the 
Beechcroft Care Centre as being low adverse, with effects improving over time 

and once mitigation planting beds in.  The proposed capping is also unlikely to 
be visible from West Hoathly Road, with it being screened from view by the 

intervening properties, mature trees and vegetation.  The Landscape and Visual 
Assessment concludes that “due to the undulating topography, the local trees 
and vegetation, the site is well concealed from view.” 

9.33 Policy W13 reflects the fact that a ‘high bar’ is set by national policy for major 
development in protected landscapes.  Sub-paragraph (i) is discussed in 

paragraphs 9.2–9.24 of this report.  In essence, it is concluded that there is a 
benefit to the site, a genuine need for the development and it is the minimal 
amount to achieve the benefits set out. 

9.34 With regard to sub-paragraph (ii), it is important to consider that the land has 
been found to contain contaminants.  In response to meeting the need some 

other way, the applicant states that: 

“The contaminants leaching from the site, gases present and materials 
just below and exposed at the surface cannot be addressed in any other 

way than to cap the site and form a protective layer. Attempting to 
mitigate the impact of the contaminants on an ongoing basis rather than 

prevent the impacts entirely is an unacceptable option for preventing 
harm to the environment and also economically unviable considering the 
costs involved and lack of any end use. 

9.35 In addition, the need clearly cannot be met outside the designated area, insofar 
as the site is located within the AONB and the works proposed are intended to 

address the problems that already exist on the site.  The reason put forward by 
the applicant is therefore considered realistic and reasonable.  In this regard, 
the development is considered to meet with sub-paragraph (ii). 

9.36 With regard to sub-paragraph (iii), environmental matters are discussed in 
paragraphs 9.50-9.60 of this report.  They conclude that, while there would be 

some adverse impacts on the environment, they can be satisfactorily addressed 
by condition in order to make the development acceptable. 

9.37 With regards to impacts upon the landscape, the submitted Landscape and 
Visual Impact Assessment identifies that the development would result in a 
slight adverse impact upon the High Weald AONB.  However, overall, this 

assessment must also be balanced against the overriding need to secure 
acceptable remediation of the contaminants within the poorly restored historic 

landfilling site. 

9.38 Overall, the temporary construction operations and the loss existing grassland 
habitats and disturbance to the adjacent area of Ancient Woodland would not 

result in significant impacts on the landscape.  Upon completion, the proposed 
development would result in an improvement, in landscape terms, over the 

Page 37

Agenda Item 4



existing site.  The proposed landscaping works would enhance the future 

landscape and ecological value of the site.  Accordingly, the impact on the 
landscape character of the area is considered to be acceptable. 

9.39 In conclusion, the application site is situated within the countryside, in the High 
Weald AONB, a protected designation.  The site is well-screened by its 

topography and surrounding vegetation, and much of the operations and final 
form would take place with only limited visible impact.  Any impacts caused 
during capping operations would be temporary and would not be significant.  In 

addition, when complete it is considered that the proposed development would 
not give rise to any significant unacceptable impact on the character, 

distinctiveness and sense of place of the location or undermine the objectives of 
the AONB designation. 

Impact on Highway Capacity and Road Safety 

9.40 One of the key issues raised in objections to the application has been the 
impact of HGVs on the road network.  The application site is located on the 

southern side of West Hoathly Road with access to the site to be provided via 
an upgraded bell-mouth access.  Routing to and from the site would be from 
the south of West Hoathly Road, turning right into the site, and when exiting, 

turning left from the site. 

9.41 It is proposed that the importation of the required soils by HGV would take 

place over two years, which equates to 25 daily deliveries (that is, 50 daily 
movements).  

9.42 The site would operate from 08.00 to 18.00 Monday to Friday, with no 

deliveries or working on weekends or Bank Holidays.  The applicant has agreed 
that deliveries would only take place between 09.30 and 15.30.  Although this 

would mean that deliveries would occur at a greater rate between these hours, 
that peak traffic hours in the area, including during school pick up and dropping 
off hours, would be avoided. 

9.43 Between the hours of 09.30–15.30, HGV deliveries would equate to just over 
four deliveries every hour, or one delivery every 15 minutes (approximately). 

9.44 In addition to the concerns about HGV numbers, concerns have also been 
raised regarding the routing and that the local highway network is not adequate 
due to issues ranging from narrow roads, pinch points, conflict with other 

operations and activities and potential road blockages with visitors to Standen 
House.   

9.45 As highlighted in Section 3 of this report, the previous application for the 
development that was withdrawn proposed HGVs routeing through centre of 

East Grinstead.  In particular, there was concern that an alternative route 
should be chosen to avoid existing built-up areas that suffer from congestion 
and where HGVs would pass schools and nurseries along the route into the 

town.  The applicant has worked closely with the Highway Authority to address 
these concerns and the Highway Authority has concluded that the route 

proposed in this application, which avoids East Grinstead, is the best route to 
and from the site.  A Road Safety Audit (RSA) has been undertaken along with 
a formal Designers Response.  A number of matters have been highlighted in 

the RSA, namely the narrow carriageway, restricted visibility and routing 
difficulties. 

Page 38

Agenda Item 4



9.46 The applicant has agreed to address each highlighted point.  Where possible, 

the carriageway along West Hoathly Road would be widened (permanently), 
vegetation will be cut back to ensure visibility, routing would be altered along 

Saint Hill Road junction to avoid potential collisions and additional temporary 
signage would be erected. 

9.47 The Highway Authority comment that “All matters raised in the RSA have now 
been addressed in accordance with the Auditor recommendations and there are 
no outstanding matters raised through the audit process”.  They raise no 

objection to the proposal subject to securing routing arrangements through a 
Section 106 Agreement and a Construction Management Plan (CMP) by 

planning condition.  The applicant has confirmed that they are willing to enter 
into a routing agreement and submit a CMP, which would include a community 
liaison programme and co-ordination with the National Trust. 

9.48 The Section 106 Agreement would also secure road widening, vegetation 
removal, and the provision of road signs.  In addition, the applicant has agreed 

to enter into a Section 59 Agreement to cover the increase in extraordinary 
traffic that would result from construction vehicles.  This would require the 
provision of a bond to enable the recovery of costs of any potential damage 

that may result to the public highway as a direct consequence of the 
construction traffic.  The securing of the Section 59 Agreement would be a 

requirement of the Section 106 Agreement. 

9.49 In conclusion, the proposed development would result in a maximum of 50 HGV 
movements each weekday as a result of the capping operation.  The route has 

been reviewed with the Highway Authority and is considered to be the most 
appropriate route to and from the site.  The Highway Authority have considered 

the potential impacts and concluded that, subject to securing HGV routing and a 
CMP, the proposed development would not have a significant adverse impacts 
and, as such, it accords with the NPPF.  Therefore, the proposed development is 

considered acceptable with regard to highway capacity and road safety. 

Impact on Local Amenity and the Environment 

9.50 By its nature, the importation of waste in HGVs and restoration operations 
involving plant and machinery, has the potential to result in noise, vibration and 
dust, and impacts that have the potential to adversely affect local amenity and 

the local environment.  Potential impacts on the amenity of local residents and 
the local environment must be considered.  Landscape impacts and the benefits 

of the proposal are considered elsewhere in this report. 

9.51 With regard to noise, the applicant has submitted an acoustic report.  The 

report acknowledges in relation to the Beechcroft Care Centre and Trefoil 
Montessori Farm School, that the works are likely to exceed recommended 
noise limits.  However, the report also indicates that it does not exceed noise 

levels for shorter term works.  Therefore, the applicant has agreed that in order 
to minimise the impacts of works on these receptors, work in this area will only 

take place eight weeks per year and that “initial works on site will comprise the 
build-up of ground levels to around final height along the western boundary of 
the site, to prove a natural barrier to the passage of noise from the capping 

works. Continuation of the capping works will then begin closest to the formed 
natural barrier working backwards away from the receptors.” 

Page 39

Agenda Item 4



9.52 The District Council’s Environmental Health Officer (EHO) is satisfied with the 

conclusions of the assessment.  Subject to the noise mitigation measures being 
secured through a Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP), the 

development is considered acceptable.  The CEMP would require compliance 
with noise limits and mitigation measures set out in the acoustic report, which if 

necessary can be enforced, in the event that the noise limits are breached. 

9.53 With regard to air quality, the applicant has submitted a Dust Risk Assessment, 
which concludes that the air quality and dust effect from the development is 

considered to be ‘not significant’.  However, it does predict at Trefoil Montessori 
Farm School and Lister Avenue, that operations may cause a slight adverse 

effect from dust.  The District Council’s Environmental Health Officer (EHO) 
raises no objection to the development, but recommends that the submission of 
a Dust Management Plan be conditioned with a requirement that, if dust 

emissions should adversely affect adjacent residential properties, sensitive 
receptors and/or the local environment, the activity will be suspended until 

such time as conditions allow it to continue without given rise to a further 
adverse effects. 

9.54 The District Council’s EHO has also recommended a condition requiring the 

submission for approval of lighting details for the site.  However, no lighting is 
proposed and a condition restricting use of lighting is proposed instead. 

9.55 The District Council’s Contaminated Land Officer has reviewed the application 
and, subject to the imposition of condition seeking the submission of a 
verification report prior to future use of the site and a condition dealing with 

any contamination not previously identified, raises no objection to the 
development.  Following review of the ground investigation report and 

geotechnical design studies, he concludes that “ultimately the site contains 
contaminates and we would want to encourage and support the voluntary 
remediation that is proposed.” 

9.56 In terms of the water environment, the application site is located in Flood Zone 
1 (at a low risk of flooding).  The proposal would direct surface run-off into 

newly laid drains, swales and culverts.  The WSCC Drainage Officer raises no 
objection to the proposals and is satisfied that the drainage arrangements for 
the development are fit for purpose and would not exacerbate flooding off-site. 

9.57 Standen House lies approximately 500m to the south of the site, with the 
entrance approximately 150m south of the proposed access.  The National Trust 

has objected to the development on the grounds that additional traffic will 
cause a detrimental impact on highway network and have an adverse impact on 

the appreciation of the heritage asset and the attractiveness of the setting.  The 
traffic impact could arise from congestion on the network, with vehicles unable 
to pass each other, and signage becoming a hinderance. 

9.58 Matters involving highway capacity and safety are dealt with in previous 
sections and are considered to be acceptable.  However, the impact on heritage 

assets and amenity matters are also material considerations.  It is 
recommended that some of the mitigation requested by the National Trust, for 
example restricting access to the development and the submission of a CEMP, 

be required by condition.  Overall, however, it is considered that a delivery of 
material to the site every 15 minutes (on average) is not unacceptable in 

relation to the setting of Standen House. 

Page 40

Agenda Item 4



9.59 Historic England have been consulted and have raised no objection, stating that 

they are “pleased that the access has been altered so as to limit the impact to 
Standen House” and “no longer have concerns regarding this application as it 

stands.” 

9.60 In conclusion, the site is close to a number of sensitive receptors.  Although 

there would inevitably be some disturbance in the locality as a result of the 
proposed development, this would be temporary and limited in nature.  The 
imposition of conditions to control hours of operation, noise impacts and 

impacts on air quality should ensure that there are no unacceptable impacts 
upon amenity and the local environment.  The proposed development would 

also have no impact on the water environment, nor on the setting and 
appreciation of Standen House.  Overall, the proposed development would 
deliver better long-term benefits for the site and surrounding environment once 

the site is capped and restored.  It is therefore considered that the 
development is acceptable in terms of impacts on local amenity and the local 

environment. 

10. Overall Conclusion and Recommendation 

10.1 The application was considered by the Planning and Rights of Way Committee 
at its meeting on 29 June 2021, at which determination was deferred to enable 

the applicant to reconsider the volume of imported inert material required and 
the impacts of the proposal in relation to highway capacity, road safety and 

traffic management.  As a result, the applicant has proposed amendments to 
remove working on Saturdays and to import the material over a longer period 
of time; this would result in fewer daily HGV movements but increase the total 

length of time to undertake the development, including for the progressive 
restoration of the site. 

10.2 Local and National planning policy supports recovery operations involving the 
deposition of inert waste to land where this would move waste up the waste 

hierarchy.  The proposed capping of the site is considered to represent a 
genuine ‘recovery’ operation that is required to mitigate the presence of 
contaminants on the site and deal with the physical landform. 

10.3 The site is well-screened by its topography and surrounding vegetation, and 
much of the operations and final form would take place with only limited visible 

impact.  Any impacts caused during capping operations would be temporary 
and, given limited views into the site, would not be significant.  Upon 
completion, the proposed development would be sympathetic to the character, 

distinctiveness and sense of place of the location and not undermine the 
objectives of the AONB designation. 

10.4 The HGV movements associated with the development are considered to be 
acceptable and the routing appropriate.  The Highway Authority have no 
objection to the development with regards to highway safety and capacity. 

10.5 Finally, subject to the control of hours of operation, noise impacts, impacts on 
air quality and the water environment, the proposed development would not 

have any significant adverse impact on sensitive receptors, the local 
environment, nor the heritage asset of Standen House and Standen Park and 
Garden. 

Page 41

Agenda Item 4



10.6 Overall, the proposed development would deliver better long-term benefits for 

the site and surrounding environment once the capping is complete and the site 
fully restored.  In conclusion, the proposal accords with the relevant 

development plan policies relating to waste, as well as other material 
considerations including national policy. 

10.7 In considering the application, the County Council has, through consultation 
with the appropriate statutory bodies and having regard to the Development 
Plan and all other material considerations, considered the objectives of 

protection of human health and the environment and self-sufficiency and 
proximity as required by Article 18 of the Waste (England and Wales) 

Regulations 2011. 

10.8 It is recommended, therefore, that planning permission be granted subject to: 

(a) the conditions as set out in Appendix 1 of this report; and 

(b) the completion of a Section 106 Agreement relating to: 

(i) the routeing of HGVs to and from the application site; 

(ii) road widening works and maintaining visibility along West Hoathly 
Road; 

(iii) road signage along the prescribed route; and 

(iv) the securing of a Section 59 Agreement. 

Factors taken into account 

11. Consultations 

11.1 See Sections 7 and 8. 

12. Resource Implications and Value for Money 

12.1 Not applicable. 

13. Equality and Human Rights Assessment 

13.1 The County Council has a duty to have regard to the impact of any proposal on 
those people with characteristics protected by the Equality Act.  Officers 
considered the information provided by the applicant, together with the 

responses from consultees and other parties, and determined that the proposal 
would have no material impact on individuals or identifiable groups with 

protected characteristics.  Accordingly, no changes to the proposal were 
required to make it acceptable in this regard. 

13.2 The Human Rights Act requires the County Council to take into account the 

rights of the public under the European Convention on Human Rights and 
prevents the County Council from acting in a manner which is incompatible with 

those rights.  Article 8 of the Convention provides that there shall be respect for 
an individual’s private life and home save for that interference which is in 

accordance with the law and necessary in a democratic society in the interests of 
(inter alia) public safety and the economic wellbeing of the country.  Article 1 of 
protocol 1 provides that an individual’s peaceful enjoyment of their property 

shall not be interfered with save as is necessary in the public interest. 

13.3 For an interference with these rights to be justifiable the interference (and the 

Page 42

Agenda Item 4



means employed) needs to be proportionate to the aims sought to be realised.  

The main body of this report identifies the extent to which there is any 
identifiable interference with these rights.  The Planning Considerations identified 

are also relevant in deciding whether any interference is proportionate.  Case 
law has been decided which indicates that certain development does interfere 

with an individual’s rights under Human Rights legislation.  This application has 
been considered in the light of statute and case law and the interference is not 
considered to be disproportionate. 

13.4 The Committee should also be aware of Article 6, the focus of which (for the 
purpose of this committee) is the determination of an individual’s civil rights and 

obligations.  Article 6 provides that in the determination of these rights, an 
individual is entitled to a fair and public hearing within a reasonable time by an 
independent and impartial tribunal.  Article 6 has been subject to a great deal of 

case law.  It has been decided that for planning matters the decision-making 
process as a whole, which includes the right of review by the High Court, 

complied with Article 6. 

14. Risk Management Implications 

14.1 Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 provides that 
the determination of planning applications must be made in accordance with the 

policies of the development plan unless material considerations indicate 
otherwise.  If this is not done, any decision could be susceptible to an application 

for Judicial Review. 

15. Crime and Disorder Reduction Assessment 

15.1 There are no implications. 

16. Social Value and Sustainability Assessment 

16.1 Not applicable. 

Michael Elkington 

Head of Planning Services 

Contact Officer: Chris Bartlett, Principal Planner, 0330 22 25571 

Appendices 

Appendix 1 – Conditions 

Appendix 2 – June Committee Report 

Appendix 3 – Area Plan 

Appendix 4 – Location Plan 

Appendix 5 – Block Plan 

Appendix 6 – Landscape Plan 

Appendix 7 – Proposed Final Levels 

Appendix 8 – Cross Section A-A to C-C 

Appendix 9 – Cross Section D-D to F-F 

Page 43

Agenda Item 4



Appendix 10 – Cross Section G-G 

Background papers 

See Section 6. 

Page 44

Agenda Item 4



Appendix 1 – Conditions and Informatives 

CONDITIONS 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of 

three years from the date of this permission.  Written notification of the date of 
commencement shall be sent to the Waste Planning Authority not less than 

seven days before the commencement of development. 

Reason: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act, 
1990. 

Cessation 

2. The development hereby permitted shall cease and the land be restored in full 

(in accordance with Condition 3 of this permission) not later than 30 months 
from the commencement of the development hereby permitted. 

Reason: To comply with Schedule 5 of the Town and Country Planning Act 

1990. 

Approved Plans 

3. The proposed development shall not take place other than in accordance with 
the approved information and plans:  

 Location Plan (Drawing No. fp0043.1);  

 Block Plan (Drawing No. fp0043.2);  

 Proposed Final Levels (Drawing No. fp0043.4 Rev B);  

 Proposed Levels with below ground infrastructure (Drawing No. 
fp0043.5);  

 Cross Sections A-A to C-C (Drawing No. fp0043.7 Rev B);  

 Cross Sections D-D to F-F (Drawing No. fp0043.7B Rev B);  

 Cross Sections G-G (Drawing No. fp0043.7C Rev B);  

 Typical Cap Construction Detail (Drawing No. fp0043.8);  

 Construction Phasing Plan (Drawing No. fp0043.11);  

 Tree Protection Plan (dated May 2019);  

 Landscape Plan Schedules & Specification (Drawing WD806L01); and 

 Access Plan (Drawing 10908/101 RevP6) 

save as varied by the conditions hereafter. 

Reason: To secure a satisfactory development comes forward, carried out in 
accordance with the details considered in approving it.  

PRE-COMMENCEMENT CONDITIONS 

Construction Management Plan  

4. No development shall take place, including any works of demolition, until a 
Construction Management Plan has been submitted to and approved in writing 

Page 45

Agenda Item 4



by the County Planning Authority.  Thereafter the approved Plan shall be 

implemented and adhered to throughout the entire construction period.  The 
Plan shall provide details as appropriate but not necessarily be restricted to the 

following matters:  

 the anticipated number, frequency and types of vehicles used during 

construction,  

 the method of access and routing of vehicles during construction,  

 the parking of vehicles by site operatives and visitors,  

 the loading and unloading of plant, materials and waste,  

 the storage of plant and materials used in construction of the 

development,  

 the erection and maintenance of security hoarding,  

 the provision of wheel washing facilities and other works required to 

mitigate the impact of construction upon the public highway (including 
the provision of temporary Traffic Regulation Orders), 

 details of public engagement both prior to and during construction works, 

 details of a community liaison programme, including co-ordination with 
the National Trust, 

 communication procedures with community regarding key operational 
timings and a named person for residents to contact, and 

 waste management including prohibition of burning at the scheme, and 
for the storage and disposal of waste providing maximum recycling 
opportunities and disposal and control of litter.  

Reason: In the interests of highway safety and the amenities of the area. 

Construction Environmental Management Plan 

5. The development hereby permitted shall not commence until a Construction 
Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) in respect of; noise, odour, dust, gas, 
leachate and surface water drainage, including a timetable of monitoring and 

submission of reports to the Waste Planning Authority, has been submitted to, 
and approved in writing by the Waste Planning Authority.  Reports as specified 

in the approved plan, including details of any necessary contingency action 
arising from the monitoring, shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, 
the Waste Planning Authority at the required intervals indicated in the CEMP 

and agreed by the Waste Planning Authority. 

Reason: To ensure that the site does not pose any further risk to human health 

or the water environment by managing any ongoing contamination issues and 
completing all necessary long-term remediation measures. This is in line with 

paragraph 174 of the National Planning Policy Framework. 

Ecological Management and Aftercare Plan 

6. Prior to the commencement of development, an Ecological Management and 

Aftercare Plan (EMAP) shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the 
Waste Planning Authority.  The Plan shall provide biodiversity and habitat 

management details for a five-year period after completion of restoration for 
each phase and shall include ecological enhancement measures as specified 

Page 46

Agenda Item 4



within the Ecological Assessment (dated 8 May 2019 – Project No.P2692) 

submitted with the application.  The approved Ecological Management and 
Aftercare Plan shall be implemented in full throughout development and the 

agreed five-year management period. 

Reason: To ensure the long-term management of habitats, species and other 

biodiversity features.  Required prior to commencement to ensure that the 
scheme is robust and will protect and enhance the biodiversity and habitats of 
the site. 

Sequence of Phasing 

7. Prior to the commencement of development, a sequence of phasing plans 

detailing the capping/restoration operations at the site shall be submitted to 
and approved in advance and in writing by the Waste Planning Authority.  The 
plans shall detail and set out when and where works will take place, heights and 

locations of stockpiles and, in particularly, when work is to take place on the 
western boundary.  Once approved, the working of the site shall take place in 

accordance with the approved plans. 

Reason: To secure a satisfactory programme of works in the interests of the 
amenity of the locality. 

Verification Plan 

8. No development shall commence until a verification plan has been submitted to, 

and approved in writing by, the Waste Planning Authority.  The verification plan 
shall provide details of the data that will be collected in order to demonstrate 
that the approved works set out in the planning submission/restoration strategy 

are complete and identifying any requirements for longer-term monitoring of 
pollutant linkages, maintenance and arrangements for contingency action.  Any 

changes to these components will require the written consent of the Waste 
Planning Authority.  Once approved, the plan shall be implemented as 
approved.  

Reason: To ensure that the development does not contribute to, or is not put at 
unacceptable risk from, or adversely affected by, unacceptable levels of water 

pollution in line with paragraph 174 of the National Planning Policy Framework  

Soft Landscaping Scheme  

9. Prior to the commencement of development, a detailed soft landscaping 

scheme has been submitted to, and approved in advance by, the Waste 
Planning Authority.  The scheme shall include full details of species, planting 

sizes, planting spacing, plant protection, tree pits, soil amelioration / 
improvement, seeding, on-going maintenance provision and compliance with 

biosecurity regulations.  Once approved the scheme shall be implemented in 
full, with all planting carried out in the first planting season (November to 
February) following the completion of each stage of the development.  Any 

plants which die, are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased within 
the first five years shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of a 

similar size and species. 

Page 47

Agenda Item 4



Reason: To ensure that trees and vegetation are maintained and enhanced, to 

protect and enhance the character and biodiversity of the site and surrounding 
area. 

CONTROL OVER DEVELOPMENT CONDITIONS 

Surface Water Drainage 

10. No infiltration of surface water drainage into the landfill or adjacent land is 
permitted.  The development shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved details only.  

Reason:  To ensure that the development does not contribute to, or is not put 
at unacceptable risk from, or adversely affected by, unacceptable levels of 

water pollution caused by mobilised contaminants in line with paragraph 174 of 
the National Planning Policy Framework.  

Bats  

11. Prior to the commencement of the felling of any tree(s) along the ancient 
woodland edge or any other tree deemed to have bat potential, an Ecological 

Clerk of Works will be commissioned to undertake a check for bats and oversee 
the 'soft-felling' of affected trees.  Should protected bat species be present 
work must stop and Natural England informed.  A license may be required from 

Natural England before works can re-commence; Natural England will advise.  

Reason: To safeguard bat species and in accordance with paragraph 8c, 174, 

180 of the National Planning Policy Framework.  

Badgers  

12. Prior to the commencement of any aspect of the proposed development within 

30m of the existing or any new badger sett, an Ecological Clerk of Works will be 
commissioned to monitor and advise on the precautionary approach required to 

secure the welfare of this species.  All recommended action shall be undertaken 
promptly and reported to the County Planning Authority.  

Reason: To safeguard the welfare of badgers and in accordance with paragraph 

8c, 174, 180 of the National Planning Policy Framework.  

Tree Protection 

13. Trees which are to be retained, as detailed on the approved Tree Protection 
Plan (dated May 2019), shall be protected in accordance with BS 5837:2012 – 
Trees in relation to design, demolition and construction, throughout the 

construction of the development hereby permitted. 

Reason: In the interests of the locality 

Hours of Operation 

14. No operations associated with the construction of the development hereby 

permitted shall take place outside the hours of:  

 08.00 and 18.00 Monday to Friday; and 

Page 48

Agenda Item 4



 no operations whatsoever as authorised by this planning permission shall 

occur on Saturdays, Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays. 

Reason: To protect the amenities of occupiers of nearby residential properties. 

HGV deliveries 

15. No HGV vehicles associated with the installation and construction of the 

development hereby permitted shall be received by or despatched from the site 
except between the hours of 09:30 and 15:30 on weekdays only.  

Reason: In the interests of highway safety and of the amenities of the locality. 

Vehicle Access  

16. No vehicular access or egress to or from the site in relation to the development 

hereby approved shall be obtained other than through the entrance shown on 
approved plan Access Plan (Drawing 10908/101 RevP6) 

Reason: In the interests of highway safety and of the amenities of the locality. 

Noise - Reversing Alarms 

17. All vehicles as well as all plant and machinery that are used on site and those 

under the applicant’s control moving to and from the site that are required to 
emit reversing warning noise, shall use white noise alarms as opposed to single 
tone ‘bleeping’ alarms throughout the operation of the development hereby 

permitted. 

Reason: To protect the amenities of the local residents and the local 

environment. 

Vehicular Operations and Controls 

18. The site shall not be used as an operating base for any Heavy Goods Vehicles, 

or the repair and/or maintenance of any Heavy Goods Vehicles and plant, 
equipment and/or machinery which are not under the direct control of the 

operator and not normally used for the delivery, handling or sorting of imported 
wastes to or within the site. 

Reason: In the interests of road safety and of the general amenities of the 

locality. 

Lighting 

19. No external lighting shall be installed anywhere within the site. This exclusion 
shall not prohibit the use of lighting on plant, equipment, machinery and 
vehicles required during the permitted hours of working or the installation of 

sensor-controlled security lighting, which shall be designed and shielded at all 
times to minimise light spillage beyond the site boundary. 

Reason: To prevent light pollution in the interests of the amenity of the locality 
and of local residents. 

Page 49

Agenda Item 4



Contamination 

20. If during construction, contamination not previously identified is found to be 
present at the site then no further development shall be carried out until a 

method statement identifying, assessing the risk and proposing remediation 
measures, together with a programme of works, shall be submitted to and 

approved in writing by the Waste Planning Authority.  The remediation 
measures shall be carried out as approved and in accordance with the approved 
programme of works.  If no unexpected contamination is encountered during 

development works, on completion of works and prior to occupation and use, a 
letter confirming this should be submitted to the Waste Planning Authority.  If 

unexpected contamination is encountered during development works, on 
completion of works and prior to occupation and use, the agreed information, 
results of investigation and details of any remediation undertaken will be 

produced to the satisfaction of and approved in writing by the Waste Planning 
Authority.  

Reason: To ensure that the site does not pose any further risk to human health 
or the water environment by managing any ongoing contamination issues and 
completing all necessary long-term remediation measures.  This is in line with 

paragraph 174 of the National Planning Policy Framework. 

Removal of Buildings, Plant, Equipment and Machinery 

21. All buildings, plant, equipment and machinery required in connection with the 
operations permitted under this planning permission shall be dismantled or 
demolished and removed from the site and the site thereof restored in 

accordance with the scheme of restoration approved under Condition 3 within 
six months of the completion of the restoration scheme. 

Reason: In the interests of the amenities of the locality. 

Permitted Restoration Materials 

22. Imported and any on-site materials required for the purposes of the 

development hereby permitted shall comprise only inert and uncontaminated 
waste materials. 

Reason: To avoid pollution through contamination of the soil, water and/or air, 
in the interests of the general amenities of the locality. 

Submission of Topographical Surveys 

23. Detailed topographical surveys, providing an update on the approved 
restoration works, shall be submitted every calendar year from the date of 

commencement to the Waste Planning Authority following the commencement 
of the development hereby permitted. 

Reason: To ensure that the restoration of the site is completed to an acceptable 
standard within agreed timescales and in the interests of the general amenities 
of the locality 

Page 50

Agenda Item 4



Completion Verification Report 

24. Prior to any future use of the site following completion of the works hereby 
approved, a verification report demonstrating satisfactory completion of works 

set out in the approved restoration strategy and the effectiveness of the 
remediation shall be submitted to, and approved in writing, by the Waste 

Planning Authority.  The report shall include results of sampling and monitoring 
carried out in accordance with the approved verification plan to demonstrate 
that the site remediation criteria have been met. 

Reason: To ensure that the site does not pose any further risk to human health 
or the water environment by demonstrating that the requirements of the 

approved verification plan have been met and that remediation of the site is 
complete.  This is in line with paragraph 174 of the National Planning Policy 
Framework  

INFORMATIVES 

a) In accordance with paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy Framework, 

the Waste Planning Authority has approached the determination of this 
application in a positive and creative way, and has worked proactively with the 
applicant by:  

 Providing pre-application advice;  

 Seeking amendments early on in the application process to see if a 

sustainable solution can be agreed;  

 Discussing issues of concern as early as possible, including those raised by 
consultees and third parties;  

 Giving them the opportunity to provide further information/changes to 
overcome material impacts; and 

 Working with consultees.  

As a result, the Waste Planning Authority has been able to recommend the 
grant of planning permission for an acceptable proposal, in accordance with the 

presumption in favour of sustainable development. 

b) The granting of any planning permission does not in any way indemnify against 

statutory nuisance action being taken should substantiated complaints within 
the remit of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 be received. For further 
information please contact Mid Sussex District Council Environmental Health 

Department.  The developer should at all time employ best practical means to 
minimise noise disturbance to nearby residents.  All construction work practises 

should comply with B.S. 5228 1:2009 `Code of practice for noise and vibration 
control on construction and open sites'. 

Page 51

Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank



Key decision: Not applicable 
Unrestricted 

 

Planning and Rights of Way Committee 

29 June 2021 

County Matter Waste Application 

Restoration of the former Standen Landfill site with a woodland and 
pasture landfill cap system 

Evergreen Farm, West Hoathley Road, East Grinstead, RH19 4NE 

Application No: WSCC/004/20 

Report by Head of Planning Services 

Local Member: Jacquie Russell     District: Mid Sussex 

 

Summary 

Evergreen Farm contains the former ‘Standen Tip’, a historic inert landfill site, 
completed in the early 1990s and restored to rough pasture and equestrian use.  The 
site is currently in poor condition, with ground investigation works identifying 
contaminants which include elevated concentrations of benzo(a)pyrene, high levels of 
methane and risks to controlled waters through leaching. 

The proposed development seeks to import 120,000-150,000m3 (180,000-225,000 
tonnes) of inert clay/soil waste to restore the site to a mix of native broadleaf 
woodland and native grassland meadow.  The capping of the site would help prevent 
direct infiltration and mitigate risk associated with leaching of contaminants.  Such a 
system would also require a gas venting system. 

The importation of the material could be achieved in approximately 80 weeks, which 
would equate to 31 daily HGV deliveries (62 two-way movements).  Full restoration is 
expected to take between twenty-four and thirty months. 

The proposed development would necessitate a change in profiles to the site and 
would require the removal of some trees/vegetation, which the applicant proposes to 
mitigate through replanting and ecological enhancements. 

This report provides a generalised description of the site and a detailed account of the 
proposed development and appraises it against the relevant policy framework from 
national to local level. 

The main policies of relevance to this application are Policies W1, W8, W11, W12, 
W13, W14, W15, W16, W17, W18, W19 and W20 of the West Sussex Waste Local Plan 
(WLP April 2014), Policies DP12, DP16, DP17, DP26, DP29, DP34, DP36, DP37, DP38, 
DP41 and DP42 of the Mid Sussex District Plan (2014 – 2031) and policies EG1, EG3, 
EG4 and EG11 of the East Grinstead Neighbourhood Plan (November 2016). 

Page 53

Agenda Item 4
Appendix 2



Apart from the National Trust, no other consultees raise objection to the proposal.   
Notwithstanding this, various consultees highlight areas of concern and request 
conditions for, but not limited to, highway matters, dust and noise impacts, impacts 
on Standen House and landscaping. 

There have been 255 representations from third parties, 249 of those objecting and 
six commenting on the proposal. 

Consideration of Key Issues 

The main material planning considerations in relation to the determination of the 
application are whether the proposal: 

• is acceptable in principle with regard to waste planning policy; 

• is acceptable in terms of the impacts on landscape character and the AONB; 

• is acceptable in terms of highway capacity and road safety; and 

• has an acceptable impact on local amenity and the local environment. 

Acceptable in Principle with regard to Waste Planning Policy 

The WLP supports recovery operations involving the deposition of inert waste to land 
where it would meet various criterion.  The proposed capping of the site is considered 
to meet these, and as such to represent a genuine ‘recovery’ operation that provides 
for the movement of waste up the waste hierarchy, in accordance the West Sussex 
Waste Local Plan (2014) and NPPW (2014) 

Impacts on Landscape Character and the AONB 

The application site is situated within the countryside, in the High Weald AONB, a 
protected designation.  The site is well-screened by its topography and surrounding 
vegetation, and much of the operations and final form would take place with limited 
visible impact.  Any temporary impacts caused during capping operations would be 
temporary and would not be significant.  In addition, when complete it is not 
considered that the proposed development would give rise to any significant 
unacceptable impact on the character, distinctiveness and sense of place of the 
location or undermine the objectives of the AONB designation 

Impact on Highway Capacity and Road Safety 

The proposed development would result in a maximum of 62 (31 to and 31 from) HGV 
movements each weekday as a result of the capping operation.  However, the route 
has been reviewed with the Highway Authority and is considered to be the most 
appropriate route to and from the site.  The Highway Authority have considered the 
potential impacts and concluded that, subject securing HGV routing and a construction 
management plan, the proposed development would not have a significant impact and 
as such accords with the NPPF.  Therefore, the proposed development is considered 
acceptable with regard to highway capacity and road safety. 

Impact on Local Amenity and the Local Environment 

The site is in close proximity to a number of sensitive receptors.  Although there 
would inevitably be some disturbance in the locality as a result of the proposed 
development, this would be temporary and limited in nature.  The imposition of 
conditions to control hours of operation, noise impacts and impacts on air quality 

Page 54

Agenda Item 4
Appendix 2



should ensure that there are no unacceptable impacts upon amenity and the local 
environment.  The proposed development would also have no impact to the water 
environment, nor on the setting and appreciation of Standen House.  Overall, the 
proposed development would deliver better long-term benefits for the site and 
surrounding environment once the site is capped and restored.  It is therefore 
considered that the development is acceptable in terms of impacts on local amenity 
and the local environment. 

Conclusion 

Local and National planning policy supports recovery operations involving the 
deposition of inert waste to land where waste is moved up the waste hierarchy.  The 
proposed capping of the site is considered to represent a genuine ‘recovery’ operation 
that is required to mitigate the presence of contaminants on the site and deal with the 
physical landform. 

The site is well-screened by its topography and surrounding vegetation, and much of 
the operations and final form would take place with limited visible impact.  In addition, 
any temporary impacts caused during capping operations would be temporary and, 
given limited views into the site, would not be significant.  Upon completion the 
proposed development would be sympathetic to the character, distinctiveness and 
sense of place of the location and not undermine the objectives of the AONB 
designation. 

The resultant HGV movements associated with the development are considered to be 
acceptable and the routing appropriate.  The Highway Authority have no objection to 
the development with regards to highway safety and capacity. 

Finally, subject to the control of hours of operation, noise impacts, impacts on air 
quality and the water environment, the proposed development would not have any 
significant adverse impacts on sensitive receptors, the local environment, nor the 
heritage asset of Standen House and its garden. 

Overall, the proposed development would deliver better long-term benefits for the site 
and surrounding environment once the site capping is complete and fully restored.  In 
conclusion, the proposal accords with the relevant development plan policy and 
national planning policy. 

 

Recommendation 

That planning permission be granted subject to: 

(a) the conditions as set out in Appendix 1 of this report; and 

(b) the completion of a Section 106 Agreement concerning: 

(i) the routing of HGVs to and from the application site; 

(ii) road widening works and maintaining visibility along West Hoathly Road; 

(iii) road signage along the prescribed route; and 

(iv) the securing of a Section 59 Agreement. 

 

 

Page 55

Agenda Item 4
Appendix 2



1. Introduction 

1.1 Evergreen Farm contains the former ‘Standen Tip’, a historic inert landfill site, 
completed in the early 1990s and restored to rough pasture and equestrian 
use.  The applicant’s recent surveys/investigation show that the restoration 
quality is poor and that the site contains contaminated material making the 
land both unsuitable for equestrian use and having the potential to pose a high 
risk to human health from landfill gas and groundwater leachate emissions to 
controlled waters. 

1.2 The proposal is for the importation of 120,000-150,000m3 (180,000-225,000 
tonnes) of waste clay soils/material to create a ‘landfill cap system’ minimising 
any emissions to air, water or soil, and securing a high quality restoration to a 
mixture of native broadleaf woodland and native grassland. 

1.3 The importation of the material would take approximately 80 weeks and involve 
up to 31 daily HGV deliveries (62 two-way movements), with full site 
restoration taking between twenty-four and thirty months. 

2. Site and Description 

2.1 The application site extends to 4.4 hectares including the access road (see 
Appendix 2 - Location Plan) and sits in open countryside within the High 
Weald AONB.  The land is not currently being used in any form of agricultural or 
equestrian use due to its undulating topography and the exposure in places of 
previously deposited materials. 

2.2 It is situated within East Grinstead in Mid Sussex District.  The site is located 
approximately 300m south of the boundary of East Grinstead’s built-up area.  
Vehicular access into the site would be via West Hoathly Road and an access to 
the north of the existing Evergreen Farm residential property rather than the 
access to Standen House. 

2.3 The site comprises an irregular shaped parcel of land and is generally 
undeveloped fields with several equestrian buildings, barns, and a residential 
property with an associated garden situated on the central western part of the 
site.  On the north-eastern boundary of the site, there is an area of ‘Ancient 
Woodland’, which contains several pathways and clearings that have been in 
use as camping pitches.  Access to the site was via a gateway to the west. 

2.4 The south-west of the site comprised two fields, with the western-most 
comprising undeveloped grassland and the eastern field occupied by several 
mature trees.  The central and northern portions of the site comprised 
undeveloped grassland, which had previously been used for pasture.  The area 
is very undulating with a sloping landscape. 

2.5 A number of mature and semi-mature trees are present across the site and 
along its boundaries together with the area of ancient woodland.  Several Public 
Rights of Way (PROWs) surround the application site, but none abut it. 

2.6 The closest residential property, Beechcroft Care Centre, a care home for young 
adults with physical and learning difficulties, abuts the site on its northern 
boundary.  Trefoil Montessori Farm School also lies to the north of the site. 

Page 56

Agenda Item 4
Appendix 2



2.7 About 500m to the south of the application site is Standen House, a Grade I 
Listed Building and is a designated heritage asset of the highest significance.  
The house lies within a park/garden, also known as Standen, which is a Grade 
II Registered Parks and Garden of Special Historic Interest and also a 
designated heritage asset. 

3. Relevant Planning History 

3.1 The application site includes a historic landfill known as ‘Standen Tip’.  Approval 
of the landfill was given by Mid-Sussex District Council in March 1981 for ‘the 
reclamation of land for agricultural use by tipping’.  Permission to extend the 
time period for the completion of works was approved in March 1992. 

3.2 Various permissions relating to the Evergreen Farm property (located to the 
south-west of the site and outside the red-line boundary) have been approved 
dating from the late 1980s.  These include planning permissions for a 
temporary timber dwelling house on the site (which is still present) and 
approvals for a replacement house. 

4. The Proposal 

4.1 Planning permission is sought for the importation of 120,000-150,000m3 
(180,000-225,000 tonnes) of waste clay soils/material to create a ‘landfill cap 
system’ minimising any emissions to air, water or soil, and securing a high 
quality restoration to a mixture of native broadleaf woodland and native 
grassland (see Appendix 3 – Block Plan). 

4.2 The development is sought due to the risks posed by the deposit of waste 
beneath the site.  Survey work identified elevated concentrations of the 
carcinogen benzo(a)pyrene and concentrated and high levels of methane.  The 
associated assessment also identified risks to controlled waters through the 
leaching of groundwater contaminants. 

4.3 A restoration layer designed to modern standards is proposed, which would 
control the risk to human health identified.  The restoration layer would require 
a 1.0-1.1 metre impermeable clay cover system topped with layers of subsoils 
and topsoil.  This cap would mitigate the risk associated with the physical 
quality of soil encountered near the surface (i.e. brick, tarmacadam, metal and 
glass).  The installation of a capping system on site would increase overland 
flow, rather than allowing direct infiltration, thereby protecting controlled 
waters by limiting the potential leaching of the elevated contaminants of 
concern identified beneath the site.  The capping system includes a gas venting 
and surface water drainage system to prevent gas build up below the new cap 
and minimise the identified risks.  Any leachate from the landfill would channel 
to the outfall via a small swale and wetland system to be installed as a 
secondary precaution. 

4.4 Where the afteruse would be pasture, the restoration layer over top of the clay 
cap will be 1 metre thick.  Where the afteruse would be woodland, a 2-metre-
thick layer is required.  The transition between the two thickness of restoration 
layer and the merging of the cap with existing contours would require sculpting 
and careful management that, in some areas, results in slightly more depth 
(see Appendix 4 – Proposed Final Levels, Appendix 5 – Cross Section A-
A to C-C, Appendix 6 – Cross Section D-D to F-F and Appendix 7 – Cross 
Section G-G). 

Page 57

Agenda Item 4
Appendix 2



4.5 Around half the cap area, located on the shallower slopes of the landfill would 
be part planted with a native broadleaf woodland to extend the wooded area of 
the Ancient Woodland to the north-east of the site.  A degree of natural 
regeneration of woodland around the planted areas would be allowed to 
establish.  The steeper sections of the landfill would be grassed with mix native 
to the High Weald Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty.  Only 1 metre depth of 
restoration layer could be added to the steeper sections due to stability 
considerations. 

4.6 Construction of the cap would take place in two halves.  To help control noise 
impacts, operations would be limited to eight weeks per annum along the 
north-western boundary to protect nearby receptors.  To ensure work in this 
area would be limited to eight weeks, material would be stockpiled on site in 
advance.  Stockpiled material would be kept in bunds 3m in height along the 
boundary of the 8-week zone ready for placement.  The remainder of the cap 
would be built year round. 

4.7 The existing topsoil is thin and contaminated with debris but would remain in 
situ.  HGVs would drive across the land and tip imported material as close to 
the placement area as possible.  One bulldozer and one 360 digger would 
operate to spread the material.  The 360 would normally be stationary, turning 
180 degrees to move the material from the point of deposit to placing it ready 
for the bulldozer to spread.  HGVs would tip off haul roads that would be 
constructed when required and would also ensure mud is not tracked back onto 
the haul road.  Smaller trenching machines would construct the pipe work 
system.  Once the impermeable layer of the cap has been constructed, it would 
be topsoiled. 

4.8 The scheme would require the removal of some trees and vegetation.  Trees 
along the western boundary are generally of lower value or are immature.  The 
root protection areas of those in the western area would be compromised and 
the capping cannot be fully built without their removal.  In this location, the 
restoration layer would not provide sufficient depth to protect the clay cap. 
Mitigatory tree planting is proposed elsewhere on site where sufficient soil 
depths allow. 

4.9 The site would operate 08.00 to 18.00 Monday to Friday and occasionally 
Saturdays 09.00 to 13.00.  There would be no working on Bank Holidays or 
Sunday.  Plant would move around the site according to weather and types of 
material imported.  Wheel wash facilities would be located at the egress from 
the site.  A road sweeper would be situated on site and deployed as required. 

4.10 HGVs would deliver the material to the site, and for the amount of waste 
proposed, would equate to around 12,000-15,000 HGV deliveries.  It is 
estimated that importation of the required soils could be achieved in 
approximately 80-weeks, with full restoration expected to take approximately 
two to two and a half years. 

4.11 HGVs would enter the site using one access from West Hoathly Road.  The 
proposed construction route between the A22 and the site would be via 
Imberhorne Lane, Saint Hill Road and West Hoathly Road.  HGVs would enter 
from the south, turning right into the site.  When leaving, HGVs would turn left 
onto West Hoathly Road and follow a prescribed route. 

  

Page 58

Agenda Item 4
Appendix 2



5. Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) 

5.1 The development falls within Part 11(b) of Schedule 2 to the Town and Country 
Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment Regulations 2017 as  an 
‘installation for the disposal of waste’, and has a development area of more 
than 0.5 hectare and is within a ‘sensitive area’, and within 100m of controlled 
waters. 

5.2 The County Council provided a Screening Opinion on 9 August 2019 confirming 
that, having regard to the selection criteria in Schedule 3 of the EIA 
Regulations, the proposed development would not have the potential for 
significant effects on the environment within the meaning of the EIA 
Regulations 2017. 

6. Policy 

6.1 Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that 
applications are determined in accordance with the statutory ‘development plan’ 
unless material considerations indicate otherwise. 

6.2 For the purposes of this application, the statutory development plan is 
considered to comprise the West Sussex Waste Local Plan (2014), the Mid 
Sussex District Plan (2014-2031), and the East Grinstead Neighbourhood Plan 
(November 2016). 

6.3 The key policies in the development plan which are material to the 
determination of the application, are summarised below.  In addition, reference 
is made to relevant national planning policy and other policies that guide the 
decision-making process and which are material to the determination of the 
application. 

West Sussex Waste Local Plan (April 2014)(‘the WLP’) 

6.4 Policy W1 relates to the need for waste management facilities and seeks to 
prevent waste landfill/disposal operations, with an objective of zero waste to 
landfill in West Sussex by 2031. 

6.5 Policy W8 of the WLP relates to recovery operations involving the deposition of 
inert waste to land.  These are supported providing a number of criteria are 
met, which are considered further in Section 9 of this report.  These are: 

“(a) the proposal results in clear benefits for the site and, where possible, the 
wider area; 

(b) the material to be used is only residual waste following recycling and/or 
recovery or it is a waste that cannot be recycled or treated; 

(c) there is a genuine need to use the waste material as a substitute for a 
non-waste material that would otherwise have to be used; 

(d) the material to be reused is suitable for its intended use; 

(e) the amount of waste material to be used is no more than is necessary to 
deliver the benefits identified under (a); 

(f) there would be no unacceptable impact on natural resources and other 
environmental constraints; 

(g) the proposal accords with Policy W13 (Protected Landscapes); 

Page 59

Agenda Item 4
Appendix 2



(h) any important mineral reserves would not be sterilised; and 

(i) restoration of the site to a high quality standard would take place in 
accordance with Policy W20.” 

6.6 Policies W11–W20 relate to development management and are designed to 
ensure that there would be no unacceptable harm to amenity, character, and 
the environment or to other material considerations from waste development 
proposals.  Of particular relevance to the proposals are: Character (Policy 
W11), High Quality Development (Policy W12), Protected Landscapes (Policy 
W13), Biodiversity and Geodiversity (Policy W14), Historic Environment (Policy 
W15), Air, Soil and Water (Policy W16), Flooding (Policy W17), Transport 
(Policy W18), Public Health and Amenity (Policy W19) and Restoration and 
Aftercare (Policy W20). 

Mid Sussex District Plan (2014 - 2031) 

6.7 The relevant policies are: DP12 – Protection and Enhancement of Countryside, 
DP16 – High Weald Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty, DP17 – Ashdown 
Forest Special Protection Area (SPA) and Special Area of Conservation (SAC), 
DP26 – Character and Design, DP29 – Noise, Air and Light Pollution, DP34 – 
Listed Buildings and other Heritage Assets, DP36 – Historic Parks and Gardens, 
DP37 – Trees, Woodlands and Hedgerows, DP38 – Biodiversity, DP41 – Flood 
Risk and Drainage and DP42 – Water Infrastructure and the Water Environment 

East Grinstead Neighbourhood Plan (November 2016). 

6.8 The relevant policies are: EG1 – Protection of the High Weald AONB, EG3 – 
Promoting Good Design, EG4 – Designated and Non-Designated Assets and 
EG11 – Mitigating Highway Impact. 

National Planning Policy Framework (2019) 

6.9 The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) promotes, wherever possible, 
the use of waste as a resource and the movement of waste management up the 
‘waste hierarchy’, thereby only supporting the disposal of waste as a last resort.  
It also sets out the approach waste authorities should take to determining 
applications. 

6.10 The paragraphs in the NPPF of greatest relevance to the present proposal are: 

Paragraph 11 (presumption in favour of sustainable development, and 
approving development that accords with the development plan); 
paragraphs 54 -56 (planning conditions and obligations), 118 (making 
effective use of land), 127 (well-designed places), 163 (ensuring flood 
risk is not increased elsewhere); 170 (contributing to and enhancing the 
natural environment), 175 (protecting and enhancing biodiversity and 
geodiversity), 178 (ground conditions and pollution), 180 (ensuring new 
development is appropriate for its location. taking into account the 
impact of pollution on health and the environment). 

National Planning Policy for Waste (2014) 

6.11 Paragraph 7 of the National Planning Policy for Waste (NPPW) relates to 
determining waste planning applications.  In summary, sections of key 
relevance to this application require planning authorities to: 

Page 60

Agenda Item 4
Appendix 2



• “Consider the likely impact on the local environment and amenity against 
the locational criteria set out in Appendix B (see below); and 

• Ensure that facilities are well-designed, contributing positively to the 
character and quality of the area; and 

• Concern themselves with implementing the strategy in the Local Plan and 
not control of processes which are a matter for pollution control 
authorities, on the assumption that such regimes are properly applied 
and enforced.” 

Appendix B to the NPPW sets out locational criteria for testing the suitability of 
sites, namely the protection of water quality and resources and flood risk 
management; land instability; landscape and visual impacts; nature 
conservation; conserving the historic environment; traffic and access; air 
emissions including dust; odours; vermin and birds; noise, light and vibration; 
litter; and potential land conflict. 

National Planning Practice Guidance 

6.12 This is a web-based resource which provides national planning guidance and is 
regularly updated. Of particular relevance to the development proposals are 
‘waste’ (October 2015), ‘Noise’ (6 March 2014), ‘Natural environment’ (21 
January 2016). 

EU Council Directives 2008/98/EC and 1999/31/EC 

6.13 By virtue of the Waste (England and Wales) Regulations 2011 when 
determining any application for planning permission that relates to waste 
management (article 18), or landfill (article 20), the planning authority is 
required to take into account EU Council Directives; 2008/98/EC (the Waste 
Framework Directive) (which sets out the objectives of the protection of human 
health and the environment and self-sufficiency and proximity) and; 
1999/31/EC (the Landfill  Directive (which sets out which sets out the key 
considerations for the location of a landfill and requirement to prevent serious 
environmental risk and nuisance).  Case law has confirmed that these are 
objectives at which to aim.  As objectives they must be kept in mind whilst 
assessing the application and provided this is done, any decision in which the 
furtherance of the objectives are not achieved, may stand. 

7. Consultations 

7.1 Mid Sussex District Council: No objection subject to Environmental Health 
and Contaminated Land Officer comments being addressed. 

7.2 Mid Sussex District Council – Environmental Health Officer: No objection 
subject to conditions securing a Construction Environmental Management Plan 
(CEMP) which covers dust management, noise management and lighting. 

7.3 Mid Sussex District Council – Contaminated Land Officer: No objection 
subject to a verification report has been submitted and approved showing that 
the scheme has been implemented properly.  Also recommend a condition 
covering any unsuspected contamination. 

Page 61

Agenda Item 4
Appendix 2



7.4 East Grinstead Town Council: Neither support nor object to the 
development.  Highlights concerns relating in the main to traffic, but also that 
Mid Sussex Officers must be satisfied. 

7.5 Environment Agency: No objection subject to conditions requiring the 
submission for approval of a verification plan and a verification report, by the 
Waste Planning Authority.  Also recommends a condition to ensure that there is 
no infiltration of surface water and requiring the submission of a Construction 
Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) covering noise, odour, dust, gas, 
leachate and surface water drainage and timetables of monitoring and the 
submission of reports. 

7.6 NATS: No safeguarding objection. 

7.7 Gatwick Safeguarding: No safeguarding objection. 

7.8 Natural England: Standing advice provided raising no objection. 

7.9 Historic England: No objection to the application on heritage grounds. 

7.10 National Trust:  Objects due to the significant impacts on Standen House 
visitor attraction.  However, should approval be granted, it recommends 
conditions covering requiring the submission of a CEMP, details of signage, 
limiting deliveries, and reducing traffic movements at certain times. 

7.11 High Weald Advisory Joint Committee: Neither supports nor objects to the 
development.  Provides standing advice.  Recommends, should the planning 
authority approve the development, that drainage should avoid adverse impacts 
and that landscaping should include native and locally sourced species and 
include a management plan. 

7.12 Forestry Commission: Standing advice provided.  No objection raised. 

7.13 Sussex Gardens Trust: No objection.  Recommends conditions minimising 
traffic impacts on Standen House. 

7.14 The Gardens Trust: Does not wish to comment. 

7.15 WSCC Archaeology: No objection subject to the removal of redundant signage 
upon completion. 

7.16 WSCC Drainage: No objection subject to approving the submitted drainage 
scheme. 

7.17 WSCC Ecology: No objection subject to conditions relating to the protection of 
bats and badgers. 

7.18 WSCC Tree Officer: No objection subject to the inclusion of a condition 
requiring the submission of a landscaping scheme. 

7.19 WSCC PROW: No objection, advice given. 

7.20 WSCC Highways: No objection subject to access and road widening and the 
submission of a construction management plan.  Also advises that the applicant 
will need to enter into a section 59 agreement to cover potential damage 
arising from the increase in extraordinary traffic. 

Page 62

Agenda Item 4
Appendix 2



7.21 Local Councillor Jacquie Russell:  Concurs with the EAs comments and 
recommendations, highlights routing concerns and also dust and noise impacts.  
Supports section the need for a section 59 agreement. 

8. Representations 

8.1 The application was publicised in accordance with Schedule 3 of the Town and 
Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015 
involving the erection of site notices located around the application site, an 
advertisement in the local newspaper, and neighbour notification letters. 

8.2 255 representations have been received from third parties; 249 objecting to the 
development and 6 commenting on the proposal. 

8.3 The main issues raised in representations are that: 

• Traffic movements are excessive and will cause congestion, traffic jams and 
collisions; 

• The local area cannot support any more traffic and are difficult to navigate; 

• The proposal would generate unacceptable noise, dust and odour close to 
properties; 

• Traffic will lead to potholes and deterioration of the local roads; 

• There will be risks to the safety of pupils at the local school; 

• Increased risk to pedestrians, cyclists and other road users; 

• Traffic information is incorrect; 

• There will be an adverse impact upon the environment and wildlife; 

• The scheme would have an adverse impact on local residents, including 
schools, care home and Standen House; 

• Evidence provided is unreliable/no need for the development; 

9. Consideration of Key Issues 

9.1 The main planning matters to consider in relation to this application are 
whether it: 

• is acceptable in principle with regard to waste planning policy; 

• is acceptable in terms of impacts on landscape character and the AONB; 

• is acceptable in terms of highway capacity and road safety; and 

• has an acceptable impact on local amenity and the local environment. 

Acceptable in Principle with Regard to Waste Planning Policy 

9.2 Policy W8 of the WLP supports recovery operations involving the deposition of 
inert waste to land where they meet various criteria.  For the proposed 
additional area of fill to be considered a recovery operation, and thus 
acceptable in principle in accordance with Policy W8, these criteria must be 
satisfied.  Consideration of each of these is set out below. 

(a) the proposal results in clear benefits for the site and, where possible, the 
wider area. 

Page 63

Agenda Item 4
Appendix 2



9.3 The applicant has outlined a number of benefits the project would bring.  The 
principle objective of the proposal is to control risk to human health from the 
historic tipping and to also mitigate the physical landform as a result of the 
exposed previously deposited materials.  In the additional information 
submitted the applicant lists the benefits as being the following: 

• Capping will prevent leaching of the contaminants confined within the waste 
body by reducing infiltration through the waste materials and what does 
infiltrate will be controlled/treated via a leachate collection blanket/swale 
and wetland system; 

• The development will result in ecological and landscape enhancements and 
also biodiversity; 

• The completed capping system will help with slope stability as it prevents 
any waterlogging on the slopes which is the main risk to slope stability; 

• The capping would eliminate the existing physical risks to any future use of 
the site posed by materials close to the surface (for example brick, 
tarmacadam, metal, and glass).  The applicant states that the site has 
previously been used for sheep grazing which stopped due to loss of sheep 
through illness or maiming from the landfill.  More recently, the site has 
accommodated horses but due to injuries sustained on the former landfill, 
were confined to a path between the stables and woodland which was 
inadequate, and which led to the use ceasing; 

• Landfill gas was identified as high risk for site users with risks of 
asphyxiation/fire/explosion.  Therefore, the existing site is inappropriate for 
any use which involves people or animals due such risks; and 

• There are also clear indications that the landfill site is damaging the 
environment.  Methane and carbon dioxide from the landfill materials are 
likely to be impacting trees adjacent to the landfill site and potentially the 
ancient woodland. 

9.4 Essentially, the applicant considers that the existing site is unusable in its 
current state and is having a detrimental effect upon the environment. 

9.5 In terms of benefits, it is accepted that the proposed capping is an opportunity 
to mitigate contamination produced by historic landfilling. 

9.6 In terms of ecological benefits, the proposed development would result in the 
direct loss of existing grassland habitats and disturbance to adjacent ancient 
woodland.  Such impacts are unavoidable as the scheme extends up to the 
boundary of the site.  However, there is already evidence of damage to the 
edge ancient woodland from previous operations.  The ecological assessment 
states that the capping of the site would result in an “unavoidable impact on a 
small number of trees, (however, this) is outweighed by the wider 
environmental benefits of capping the landfill site and containing the leachate.” 

9.7 On completion, the proposed package of planting and ecologic enhancements 
would provide an improved habitat in the long-term and compensate for loss of 
any habitats and vegetation.  WSCC Ecologist raises no objection to the 
proposal, subject to a condition securing bat and badger protection. 

9.8 Overall, it is agreed that the proposed development would result in 
environmental and ecological benefits compared with the existing situation, 
particularly in the long-term.  The benefits would be to the site and the wider 

Page 64

Agenda Item 4
Appendix 2



area, the latter being a desirable but not essential requirement under Policy 
W8.  The proposal is therefore considered to accord with this criterion. 

(b) the material to be used is only residual waste following recycling and/or 
recovery or it is a waste that cannot be recycled or treated. 

9.9 The imported inert wastes would comprise clay and soils.  Material that could be 
recycled or otherwise be put to use would have been removed from elsewhere 
by the waste operator prior to coming to the site, particularly as the financial 
returns for recycling are greater than for waste deposit.  The proposal is, 
therefore, considered to accord with this criterion. 

(c) there is a genuine need to use the waste material as a substitute for a 
non-waste material that would otherwise have to be used. 

9.10 The development would make use of inert waste rather than ‘virgin’ soils to 
create the capping system.  Using any material other than waste would make 
the scheme unviable. 

(d) the material to be reused is suitable for its intended use. 

9.11 The imported inert wastes would comprise clay and soils, all typical materials 
used in land raising, engineering and restoration projects.  In addition, an 
Environmental Permit would most likely be required that would ensure incoming 
waste is checked by trained operatives.  The proposal is, therefore, considered 
to accord with this criterion. 

(e) the amount of waste material to be used is no more than is necessary to 
deliver the benefits identified under (a). 

9.12 The proposed development is considered to be the minimum required to deliver 
the benefits highlighted in paragraph 9.3.  Further clarification from the 
applicant has found that the amount required to complete the scheme is 
126,677.74m3, with the applicant content for this amount to be controlled by 
condition. 

9.13 The clay capping is required to be a minimum of 1m thickness to limit water 
infiltration, with the soil on top of this varying across the site; it is thicker 
where planting is required and  thinner where there are steeper slopes and 
where areas require only grassing.  The scheme creates a landform that 
responds to the existing topography whilst producing benefits to the local 
environment.  Therefore, the proposal is considered to accord with this 
criterion. 

(f) there would be no unacceptable impact on natural resources and other 
environmental constraints. 

9.14 The development has the potential to have detrimental effects on the 
environment and natural resources.  However, the Environment Agency has 
raised no objection to the proposal. 

9.15 The WSCC Drainage and Flood Risk engineer is satisfied that the drainage 
matters have been dealt with and have no objection to the development subject 
to the drainage plan being approved.  The site in an area at a low risk of 

Page 65

Agenda Item 4
Appendix 2



flooding, and overall flood risk is low.  On this basis, it is considered, that 
drainage matters have been adequately addressed. 

9.16 The development would be adjacent to an area of ancient woodland to the east 
and there would be some impact upon the root protection zones of some trees.  
However, no trees in this area are proposed to be removed and there is 
evidence that damage to trees in the area has occurred from the historic landfill 
contaminants.  Subject to conditions to secure the implementation of the site 
wide Landscaping Scheme and Ecological Management Plan, and management 
of construction activities (e.g. dust suppression and minimisation of noise), it is 
not considered there would be any unacceptable impact on the ancient 
woodland or biodiversity more generally. 

9.17 Therefore, the proposed scheme, subject to conditions, would not result in any 
unacceptable impact upon wider amenity, air quality, ecology or the water 
environment and is considered to accord with this criterion. 

(g) the proposal accords with Policy W13 (Protected Landscapes) 

9.18 In terms of impacts on the landscape, landscape character and the AONB as 
discussed later in this report; the proposed development is considered 
acceptable. 

(h) any important mineral reserves would not be sterilised 

9.19 Ground investigation reports have shown the site to be contaminated and a 
historic landfilling site.  It is therefore unlikely that mineral extraction would be 
economically or practicably viable given the history of the site.  Accordingly, it 
is not considered that there would be any unacceptable sterilisation of mineral 
reserves.  The proposal is, therefore, considered to accord with this criterion. 

(i) restoration of the site to a high-quality standard would take place in 
accordance with Policy W20 

9.20 In terms of impacts on the landscape, landscape character and the AONB Policy 
W20 seeks to protect these and as discussed in the following section, the 
proposed development is considered acceptable. 

9.21 In conclusion, the WLP supports recovery operations involving the deposition of 
inert waste to land where it would meet various criterion.  The proposed 
capping of the site is considered to meet these, and as such to represent a 
genuine ‘recovery’ operation that provides for the movement of waste up the 
waste hierarchy, in accordance the West Sussex Waste Local Plan (2014) and 
NPPW (2014). 

Impacts on Landscape Character and the AONB 

9.22 The proposed development involves a site of 4.4. hectares and the importation 
of 120,000-150,000m3 (180,000-225,000 tonnes) of waste clay soils/material 
in a protected landscape; therefore, it is considered to be ‘major’ development 
in planning terms. 

9.23 Policy W11 of the WLP states that proposals for waste development will be 
permitted provided that they would not have an unacceptable impact upon the 
character, distinctiveness and sense of place of the area. 

Page 66

Agenda Item 4
Appendix 2



9.24 Policy W13(c) of the WLP states that proposals for major waste development in 
protected landscapes, in this case the High Weald AONB, will not be permitted 
unless: 

(i) there is an overriding need for the development within the designated 
area; and 

(ii) the need cannot be met in some other way or met outside the 
designated area; and 

(iii) any adverse impacts on the environment, landscape, and recreational 
opportunities can be satisfactorily mitigated. 

9.25 This reflects paragraph 172 of the NPPF, relating to development in 
AONBs/National Parks, which states that “great weight should be given to 
conserving and enhancing landscape and scenic beauty in AONBs”. 

9.26 The development has the potential to result in two main types of landscape and 
visual impact: temporary changes to views during the capping operations; and 
permanent changes to the landscape character through the creation of a raised 
landform and loss existing grassland habitats and disturbance to adjacent 
ancient woodland. 

9.27 The site is located within a very rural area with few residential properties in the 
immediate area, with only Beechcroft Care Centre and Trefoil Montessori Farm 
School likely to have direct views of the proposed new landform upon 
completion. 

9.28 In terms of temporary impacts during construction, the Landscape and Visual 
Assessment submitted with the application concludes that visual effects would 
be medium adverse.  However, there are very limited viewpoints of the site and 
any impact would be both transitory and temporary in nature.  Upon 
completion, the proposal would bring forward a landform broadly matching the 
character of the surrounding area. 

9.29 The Landscape and Visual Assessment identifies the visual impact on Beechcroft 
Care Centre as being low adverse, with effects improving over time and once 
mitigation planting beds in.  The proposed capping is also unlikely to be visible 
from West Hoathly Road, being screened from view by the intervening 
properties, mature trees and vegetation.  The Landscape and Visual 
Assessment concludes that “due to the undulating topography, the local trees 
and vegetation, the site is well concealed from view.” 

9.30 Policy W13 reflects the fact that a ‘high bar’ is set by national policy for major 
development in protected landscapes.  Sub-paragraph (i) is discussed in 
paragraphs 9.2–9.21 of this report.  In essence, it is concluded that there is a 
benefit to the site, a genuine need for the development and it is the minimal 
amount to achieve the benefits set out. 

9.31 With regard to sub-paragraph (ii), it is important to consider that the land has 
been found to contain contaminants.  In response to meeting the need some 
other way, the applicant states that: 

“The contaminants leaching from the site, gases present and materials 
just below and exposed at the surface cannot be addressed in any other 
way than to cap the site and form a protective layer. Attempting to 
mitigate the impact of the contaminants on an ongoing basis rather than 

Page 67

Agenda Item 4
Appendix 2



prevent the impacts entirely is an unacceptable option for preventing 
harm to the environment and also economically unviable considering the 
costs involved and lack of any end use. 

9.32 In addition, the need clearly cannot be met outside the designated area, insofar 
as the site is located within the AONB and the works proposed are intended to 
address the problems that exist on the site.  The reason put forward by the 
applicant is therefore considered realistic and reasonable.  In this regard, the 
development is considered to meet with sub-paragraph (ii). 

9.33 With regard to sub-paragraph (iii), environmental matters are discussed in 
paragraphs 9.46-9.56 of this report.  They concludes that, while there would be 
some adverse impacts on the environment, they can be satisfactorily addressed 
by condition in order to make the development acceptable. 

9.34 With regards to impacts upon the landscape, the submitted Landscape and 
Impact Assessment determines that the development would result in a slight 
adverse impact upon the High Weald AONB.  However, overall, this assessment 
must also be balanced against the overriding need to secure acceptable 
remediation of the contaminants within the poorly restored historic landfilling 
site. 

9.35 Overall, the temporary construction operations and the loss existing grassland 
habitats and disturbance to adjacent area of ancient woodland would not result 
in significant impacts on the landscape.  Upon completion, the proposed 
development would result in an improvement, in landscape terms, over the 
existing site.  The proposed landscaping works would enhance the future 
landscape and ecological value of the site.  Accordingly, the impact on the 
landscape character of the area is considered to be acceptable. 

9.36 In conclusion, the application site is situated within the countryside, in the High 
Weald AONB, a protected designation.  The site is well-screened by its 
topography and surrounding vegetation, and much of the operations and final 
form would take place with limited visible impact.  Any temporary impacts 
caused during capping operations would be temporary and would not be 
significant.  In addition, when complete it is not considered that the proposed 
development would give rise to any significant unacceptable impact on the 
character, distinctiveness and sense of place of the location or undermine the 
objectives of the AONB designation. 

Impact on Highway Capacity and Road Safety 

9.37 One of the key issues raised in objections to the application has been the 
impact of HGVs on the road network.  The application site is located on the 
southern side of West Hoathly Road with access to the site to be provided via 
an upgraded bell-mouth access.  Routing to and from the site would be from 
the south of West Hoathly Road, turning right into the site, and when exiting, 
turning left from the site. 

9.38 During the operations, HGVs deliveries would equate to around 12,000-15,000 
HGV deliveries for the entire operation.  It is estimated that importation of the 
required soils can be achieved in approximately 80-weeks, which would equate 
to 31 daily HGV deliveries (62 two-way movements), with full restoration 
expected to take approximately two to two and a half years. 

Page 68

Agenda Item 4
Appendix 2



9.39 The site would operate from 08.00 to 18.00 Monday to Friday and occasionally 
on Saturdays from 09.00 to 13.00.  There would be no working on Bank 
Holidays or Sunday.  The applicant has agreed that deliveries would only take 
place between 09.30 and 15.30.  This means that deliveries would occur at a 
greater rate between these hours but that peak traffic hours in the area are 
avoided, including during school pick up and dropping off hours. 

9.40 Between the hours of 09.30–15.30, HGV deliveries would equate to 5.1 
deliveries every hour, or one delivery every 12 minutes. 

9.41 In addition to the concerns regarding HGV numbers, concerns have also been 
raised regarding the routing and that the local highway network is not adequate 
due to issues ranging from narrow roads, pinch points, conflict with other 
operations and activities and potential road blockages with visitors to Standen 
House.  The applicant has worked closely with the Highways Authority in order 
to overcome such concerns and has the Highways Authority has concluded that 
the proposed route is the best route to and from the site.  A Road Safety Audit 
(RSA) has been undertaken along with a formal Designers Response.  A number 
of matters have been highlighted in the RSA, namely the narrow carriageway, 
restricted visibility and routing difficulties. 

9.42 The applicant has agreed to address each highlighted point.  Where possible, 
the carriageway along West Hoathly Road would be widened (permanently), 
vegetation will be cut back to ensure visibility, routing would be altered along 
Saint Hill Road junction to avoid potential collisions and additional temporary 
signage will be erected along the route. 

9.43 The Highway Authority comment that “All matters raised in the RSA have now 
been addressed in accordance with the Auditor recommendations and there are 
no outstanding matters raised through the audit process.”   They raise no 
objection to the proposal subject to securing a section 106 Agreement for 
routing arrangements and a construction management plan. 

9.44 The Section 106 Agreement would be used to secure routing, road widening, 
vegetation removal and road signage locations.  In addition, the applicant has 
agreed to enter into a Section 59 Agreement to cover the increase in 
extraordinary traffic that would result from construction vehicles.  It requires a 
bond to enable the recovery of costs of any potential damage that may result to 
the public highway as a direct consequence of the construction traffic.  The S59 
Agreement would be a requirement of the S106 Agreement. 

9.45 In conclusion, the proposed development would result in a maximum of 62 (31 
to and 31 from) HGV movements each weekday as a result of the capping 
operation.  However, the route has been reviewed with the Highway Authority 
and is considered to be the most appropriate route to and from the site.  The 
Highway Authority have considered the potential impacts and concluded that, 
subject securing HGV routing and a construction management plan, the 
proposed development would not have a significant impact and as such accords 
with the NPPF.  Therefore, the proposed development is considered acceptable 
with regard to highway capacity and road safety. 

Impact on Local Amenity and the Environment 

9.46 By its nature, the importation of waste in HGVs and restoration operations 
involving plant and machinery, has the potential to result in noise, vibration and 

Page 69

Agenda Item 4
Appendix 2



dust, impacts that have the potential to adversely affect local amenity and the 
local environment.  Potential impacts on the amenity of local residents and the 
local environment must be considered.  Landscape impacts and the benefits of 
the proposal are considered elsewhere in this report. 

9.47 With regard to noise, the applicant has submitted an acoustic report.  The 
report acknowledges in relation to the Beechcroft Care Centre and Trefoil 
Montessori Farm School, that the works are likely to exceed recommended 
noise limits.  However, the report also indicates that it does not exceed noise 
levels for shorter term works.  Therefore, the applicant has agreed that in order 
to minimise the impacts of works on these receptors, work in this area will only 
take place eight weeks per year and that “initial works on site will comprise the 
build-up of ground levels to around final height along the western boundary of 
the site, to prove a natural barrier to the passage of noise from the capping 
works. Continuation of the capping works will then begin closest to the formed 
natural barrier working backwards away from the receptors.” 

9.48 The District Council’s Environmental Health Officer (EHO) is satisfied with the 
conclusions of the assessment.  Subject to the noise mitigation measures being 
secured through a CEMP, the development is considered acceptable.  The CEMP 
would require compliance with noise limits and mitigation measures set out in 
the acoustic report, which if necessary can be enforced, in the event that the 
noise limits are breached. 

9.49 With regard to air quality, the applicant has submitted a Dust Risk Assessment, 
which concludes that the air quality and dust effect from the development is 
considered to be ‘not significant’.  However, it does predict at Trefoil Montessori 
Farm School and Lister Avenue, that site activities may cause a slight adverse 
effect from dust.  The District Council’s Environmental Health Officer (EHO) 
raises no objection to the development, but recommends that a Dust 
Management Plan be conditioned with a requirement that, if dust emissions 
should adversely affect adjacent residential properties, sensitive receptors 
and/or the local environment, the activity will be suspended until such time as 
conditions allow it to continue without given rise to a further adverse effects.. 

9.50 The District Council’s EHO has also recommended a condition requiring the 
submission for approval of lighting details for the site.  However, no lighting is 
proposed to be used and therefore a condition restricting use of lighting has 
been included instead. 

9.51 The District Council’s Contaminated Land Officer has reviewed the application 
and, subject to the imposition of condition seeking a verification report prior to 
future use of the site and a condition dealing with any contamination not 
previously identified, raises no objection to the development.  Following review 
of the ground investigation report and geotechnical design studies, he 
concludes that “ultimately the site contains contaminates and we would want to 
encourage and support the voluntary remediation that is proposed.” 

9.52 In terms of the water environment, the application site is located in Flood Zone 
1 (at a low risk of flooding).  The proposal would direct surface run-off into 
newly laid drains, swales and culverts.  The WSCC Drainage Officer raises no 
objection to the proposals and is satisfied that the drainage arrangements for 
the development are fit for purpose and would not exacerbate flooding off-site. 

Page 70

Agenda Item 4
Appendix 2



9.53 Standen House lies approximately 500m to the south of the development, with 
the entrance approximately 150m south of the proposed access.  The National 
Trust has objected to the development on the grounds that additional traffic will 
cause a detrimental impact on highway network and have and adverse impact 
on the appreciation of the heritage asset and the attractiveness of the setting.  
The traffic impact could be derived from congestion on the network, vehicles 
unable to pass each other, and signage becoming a hinderance. 

9.54 Matters involving highway capacity and safety are dealt with in previous 
sections and are considered to be acceptable.  However, the impact on heritage 
assets and amenity matters are also material considerations.  It is 
recommended that some of the mitigation requested by the National Trust, for 
example restricting access to the development and the submission of a CEMP, 
be required by condition.  Overall, however, it is not considered that a delivery 
of material to the site every 12 minutes (on average) is unacceptable in relation 
to the setting of Standen House. 

9.55 Historic England have been consulted and have raised no objection, stating that 
they are “pleased that the access has been altered so as to limit the impact to 
Standen House” and “no longer have concerns regarding this application as it 
stands.” 

9.56 In conclusion, the site is close to a number of sensitive receptors.  Although 
there would inevitably be some disturbance in the locality as a result of the 
proposed development, this would be temporary and limited in nature.  The 
imposition of conditions to control hours of operation, noise impacts and 
impacts on air quality should ensure that there are no unacceptable impacts 
upon amenity and the local environment.  The proposed development would 
also have no impact to the water environment, nor on the setting and 
appreciation of Standen House.  Overall, the proposed development would 
deliver better long-term benefits for the site and surrounding environment once 
the site is capped and restored.  It is therefore considered that the 
development is acceptable in terms of impacts on local amenity and the local 
environment. 

10. Overall Conclusion and Recommendation 

10.1 Local and National planning policy supports recovery operations involving the 
deposition of inert waste to land where this would move waste up the waste 
hierarchy.  The proposed capping of the site is considered to represent a 
genuine ‘recovery’ operation that is required to mitigate the presence of 
contaminants on the site and deal with the physical landform. 

10.2 The site is well-screened by its topography and surrounding vegetation, and 
much of the operations and final form would take place with limited visible 
impact.  In addition, any temporary impacts caused during capping operations 
would clearly be temporary and, given limited views into the site, would not be 
significant.  Upon completion, the proposed development would be sympathetic 
to the character, distinctiveness and sense of place of the location and not 
undermine the objectives of the AONB designation. 

10.3 The resultant HGV movements for the development are considered acceptable 
and the routing appropriate.  The Highway Authority have no objection to the 
development with regards to highway safety and capacity. 

Page 71

Agenda Item 4
Appendix 2



10.4 Finally, subject to the control of hours of operation, noise impacts, impacts on 
air quality and the water environment, the proposed development would not 
have any significant adverse impact on sensitive receptors, the local 
environment, nor the heritage asset of Standen House and Standen Park and 
Garden. 

10.5 Overall, the proposed development would deliver better long-term benefits for 
the site and surrounding environment once the site capping is complete and 
fully restored.  In conclusion, the proposal accords with the relevant 
development plan policies relating to the waste, as well as other material 
considerations including national policy. 

10.6 In considering the application, the County Council has, through consultation 
with the appropriate statutory bodies and having regard to the Development 
Plan and all other material considerations, considered the objectives of 
protection of human health and the environment and self-sufficiency and 
proximity as required by Article 18 of the Waste (England and Wales) 
Regulations 2011. 

10.7 It is recommended, therefore, that planning permission be granted subject to: 
(a) the conditions as set out in Appendix 1 of this report; and 

(b) the completion of a Section 106 Agreement concerning: 

(i) the routeing of HGVs to and from the application site; 

(ii) road widening works and maintaining visibility along West Hoathly 
Road; 

(iii) road signage along the prescribed route; and 

(iv) the securing of a Section 59 Agreement. 

Factors taken into account 

11. Consultations 

11.1 See Sections 7 and 8. 

12. Resource Implications and Value for Money 

12.1 Not applicable. 

13. Equality and Human Rights Assessment 

13.1 The County Council has a duty to have regard to the impact of any proposal on 
those people with characteristics protected by the Equality Act.  Officers 
considered the information provided by the applicant, together with the 
responses from consultees and other parties, and determined that the proposal 
would have no material impact on individuals or identifiable groups with 
protected characteristics.  Accordingly, no changes to the proposal were 
required to make it acceptable in this regard. 

13.2 The Human Rights Act requires the County Council to take into account the 
rights of the public under the European Convention on Human Rights and 
prevents the County Council from acting in a manner which is incompatible with 
those rights.  Article 8 of the Convention provides that there shall be respect for 
an individual’s private life and home save for that interference which is in 

Page 72

Agenda Item 4
Appendix 2



accordance with the law and necessary in a democratic society in the interests of 
(inter alia) public safety and the economic wellbeing of the country.  Article 1 of 
protocol 1 provides that an individual’s peaceful enjoyment of their property 
shall not be interfered with save as is necessary in the public interest. 

13.3 For an interference with these rights to be justifiable the interference (and the 
means employed) needs to be proportionate to the aims sought to be realised.  
The main body of this report identifies the extent to which there is any 
identifiable interference with these rights.  The Planning Considerations identified 
are also relevant in deciding whether any interference is proportionate.  Case 
law has been decided which indicates that certain development does interfere 
with an individual’s rights under Human Rights legislation.  This application has 
been considered in the light of statute and case law and the interference is not 
considered to be disproportionate. 

13.4 The Committee should also be aware of Article 6, the focus of which (for the 
purpose of this committee) is the determination of an individual’s civil rights and 
obligations.  Article 6 provides that in the determination of these rights, an 
individual is entitled to a fair and public hearing within a reasonable time by an 
independent and impartial tribunal.  Article 6 has been subject to a great deal of 
case law.  It has been decided that for planning matters the decision-making 
process as a whole, which includes the right of review by the High Court, 
complied with Article 6. 

14. Risk Management Implications 

14.1 Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 provides that 
the determination of planning applications must be made in accordance with the 
policies of the development plan unless material considerations indicate 
otherwise.  If this is not done, any decision could be susceptible to an application 
for Judicial Review. 

15. rime and Disorder Reduction Assessment 

15.1 There are no implications. 

16. Social Value and Sustainability Assessment 

16.1 Not applicable. 

Michael Elkington 

Head of Planning Services 

Contact Officer: Chris Bartlett, Principal Planner, 0330 22 25571 

Appendices 

Appendix 1 – Conditions 

Appendix 2 - Location plan 

Appendix 3 – Block Plan 

Appendix 4 – Proposed Final Levels 

Page 73

Agenda Item 4
Appendix 2



Appendix 5 – Cross Section A-A to C-C 

Appendix 6 – Cross Section D-D to F-F 

Appendix 7 – Cross Section G-G 

Background papers 

See Section 6. 

Page 74

Agenda Item 4
Appendix 2



Appendix 1 – Conditions and Informatives 

CONDITIONS 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of 
three years from the date of this permission.  Written notification of the date of 
commencement shall be sent to the Waste Planning Authority not less than 
seven days before the commencement of development. 

Reason: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act, 
1990. 

Cessation 

2. The development hereby permitted shall cease and the land be restored in full 
(in accordance with Condition 3 of this permission) not later than 30 months 
from the commencement of the development hereby permitted. 

Reason: To comply with Schedule 5 of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990. 

Approved Plans 

3. The proposed development shall not take place other than in accordance with 
the approved information and plans:  

• Location Plan (Drawing No. fp0043.1);  

• Block Plan (Drawing No. fp0043.2);  

• Proposed Final Levels (Drawing No. fp0043.4 Rev B);  

• Proposed Levels with below ground infrastructure (Drawing No. 
fp0043.5);  

• Cross Sections A-A to C-C (Drawing No. fp0043.7 Rev B);  

• Cross Sections D-D to F-F (Drawing No. fp0043.7B Rev B);  

• Cross Sections G-G (Drawing No. fp0043.7C Rev B);  

• Typical Cap Construction Detail (Drawing No. fp0043.8);  

• Construction Phasing Plan (Drawing No. fp0043.11);  

• Tree Protection Plan (dated May 2019);  

• Landscape Plan Schedules & Specification (Drawing WD806L01); and 

• Access Plan (Drawing 10908/101 RevP6) 

save as varied by the conditions hereafter. 

Reason: To secure a satisfactory development comes forward, carried out in 
accordance with the details considered in approving it.  

PRE-COMMENCEMENT CONDITIONS 

Construction Environmental Management Plan 

4. The development hereby permitted shall not commence until an Construction 
Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) in respect of; noise, odour, dust, gas, 

Page 75

Agenda Item 4
Appendix 2



leachate and surface water drainage, including a timetable of monitoring and 
submission of reports to the Waste Planning Authority, has been submitted to, 
and approved in writing by the Waste Planning Authority. Reports as specified 
in the approved plan, including details of any necessary contingency action 
arising from the monitoring, shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, 
the Waste Planning Authority at the required intervals indicated in the CEMP 
and agreed by the Waste Planning Authority. 

Reason: To ensure that the site does not pose any further risk to human health 
or the water environment by managing any ongoing contamination issues and 
completing all necessary long-term remediation measures. This is in line with 
paragraph 170 of the National Planning Policy Framework. 

Ecological Management and Aftercare Plan 

5. Prior to the commencement of development, an Ecological Management and 
Aftercare Plan (EMAP) shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the 
Waste Planning Authority.  The Plan shall provide biodiversity and habitat 
management details for a five-year period after completion of restoration for 
each phase and shall include ecological enhancement measures as specified 
within the Ecological Assessment (dated 8 May 2019 – Project No.P2692) 
submitted with the application.  The approved Ecological Management and 
Aftercare Plan shall be implemented in full throughout development and the 
agreed five-year management period. 

Reason: To ensure the long-term management of habitats, species and other 
biodiversity features.  Required prior to commencement to ensure that the 
scheme is robust and will protect and enhance the biodiversity and habitats of 
the site. 

Sequence of Phasing 

6. Prior to the commencement of development, a sequence of phasing plans 
detailing the capping/restoration operations at the site shall be submitted to 
and approved in advance and in writing by the Waste Planning Authority.  The 
plans shall detail and set out when and where works will take place, heights and 
locations of stockpiles and, in particularly, when work is to take place on the 
western boundary.  Once approved, the working of the site shall take place in 
accordance with the approved plans. 

Reason: To secure a satisfactory programme of works in the interests of the 
amenity of the locality. 

Verification Plan 

7. No development shall commence until a verification plan has been submitted to, 
and approved in writing by, the Waste Planning Authority. The verification plan 
shall provide details of the data that will be collected in order to demonstrate 
that the approved works set out in the planning submission/restoration strategy 
are complete and identifying any requirements for longer-term monitoring of 
pollutant linkages, maintenance and arrangements for contingency action.  Any 
changes to these components will require the written consent of the Waste 
Planning Authority.  Once approved, the plan shall be implemented as 
approved.  

Page 76

Agenda Item 4
Appendix 2



Reason: To ensure that the development does not contribute to, or is not put at 
unacceptable risk from, or adversely affected by, unacceptable levels of water 
pollution in line with paragraph 170 of the National Planning Policy Framework  

Soft Landscaping Scheme  

8. Prior to the commencement of development, a detailed soft landscaping 
scheme has been submitted to, and approved in advance by, the Waste 
Planning Authority.  The scheme shall include full details of species, planting 
sizes, planting spacing, plant protection, tree pits, soil amelioration / 
improvement, seeding, on-going maintenance provision and compliance with 
biosecurity regulations. Once approved the scheme shall be implemented in full, 
with all planting carried out in the first planting season (November to February) 
following the completion of each stage of the development.  Any plants which 
die, are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased within the first five 
years shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of a similar size 
and species. 

Reason: To ensure that trees and vegetation are maintained and enhanced, to 
protect and enhance the character and biodiversity of the site and surrounding 
area. 

CONTROL OVER DEVELOPMENT CONDITIONS 

Surface Water Drainage 

9. No infiltration of surface water drainage into the landfill or adjacent land is 
permitted.  The development shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved details only.  

Reason:  To ensure that the development does not contribute to, or is not put 
at unacceptable risk from, or adversely affected by, unacceptable levels of 
water pollution caused by mobilised contaminants in line with paragraph 170 of 
the National Planning Policy Framework.  

Bats  

10. Prior to the commencement of the felling of any tree(s) along the ancient 
woodland edge or any other tree deemed to have bat potential, an Ecological 
Clerk of Works will be commissioned to undertake a check for bats and oversee 
the 'soft-felling' of affected trees.  Should protected bat species be present 
work must stop and Natural England informed. A license may be required from 
Natural England before works can re-commence, Natural England will advise.  

Reason: To safeguard bat species and in accordance with NPPF 8c, 170, 175  

Badgers  

11. Prior to the commencement of any aspect of the proposed development within 
30m of the existing or any new badger sett, an Ecological Clerk of Works will be 
commissioned to monitor and advise on the precautionary approach required to 
secure the welfare of this species. All recommended action shall be undertaken 
promptly and reported to the County Planning Authority.  

Page 77

Agenda Item 4
Appendix 2



Reason: To safeguard the welfare of badgers and in accordance with NPPF 8c, 
170, 175 

Tree Protection 

12. Trees which are to be retained, as detailed on the approved Tree Protection 
Plan (dated May 2019), shall be protected in accordance with BS 5837:2012 – 
Trees in relation to design, demolition and construction, throughout the 
construction of the development hereby permitted. 

Reason: In the interests of the locality 

Hours of Operation 

13. No operations associated with the construction of the development hereby 
permitted shall take place outside the hours of:  

• 08.00 and 18.00 Monday to Friday;  

• 09.00 to 13.00 Saturdays: and  

• no operations whatsoever as authorised by this planning permission shall 
occur on Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays. 

Reason: To protect the amenities of occupiers of nearby residential properties. 

HGV deliveries 

14. No HGV vehicles associated with the installation and construction of the 
development hereby permitted shall be received by or despatched from the site 
except between the hours of 09:30 and 15:30 on weekdays and 09:00 and 
13:00 on Saturdays only.  

Reason: In the interests of highway safety and of the amenities of the locality. 

Vehicle Access  

15. No vehicular access or egress to or from the site in relation to the development 
hereby approved shall be obtained other than through the entrance shown on 
approved plan Access Plan (Drawing 10908/101 RevP6) 

Reason: In the interests of highway safety and of the amenities of the locality. 

Noise - Reversing Alarms 

16. All vehicles as well as all plant and machinery that are used on site and those 
under the applicant’s control moving to and from the site that are required to 
emit reversing warning noise, shall use white noise alarms as opposed to single 
tone ‘bleeping’ alarms throughout the operation of the development hereby 
permitted. 

Reason: To protect the amenities of the local residents and the local 
environment. 

Page 78

Agenda Item 4
Appendix 2



Vehicular Operations and Controls 

17. The site shall not be used as an operating base for any Heavy Goods Vehicles, 
or the repair and/or maintenance of any Heavy Goods Vehicles and plant, 
equipment and/or machinery which are not under the direct control of the 
operator and not normally used for the delivery, handling or sorting of imported 
wastes to or within the site. 

Reason: In the interests of road safety and of the general amenities of the 
locality. 

Lighting 

18. No external lighting shall be installed anywhere within the site. This exclusion 
shall not prohibit the use of lighting on plant, equipment, machinery and 
vehicles required during the permitted hours of working or the installation of 
sensor-controlled security lighting, which shall be designed and shielded at all 
times to minimise light spillage beyond the site boundary. 

Reason: To prevent light pollution in the interests of the amenity of the locality 
and of local residents. 

Contamination 

19. If during construction, contamination not previously identified is found to be 
present at the site then no further development shall be carried out until a 
method statement identifying, assessing the risk and proposing remediation 
measures, together with a programme of works, shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Waste Planning Authority.  The remediation 
measures shall be carried out as approved and in accordance with the approved 
programme of works.  If no unexpected contamination is encountered during 
development works, on completion of works and prior to occupation and use, a 
letter confirming this should be submitted to the Waste Planning Authority. If 
unexpected contamination is encountered during development works, on 
completion of works and prior to occupation and use, the agreed information, 
results of investigation and details of any remediation undertaken will be 
produced to the satisfaction of and approved in writing by the Waste Planning 
Authority.  

Reason: To ensure that the site does not pose any further risk to human health 
or the water environment by managing any ongoing contamination issues and 
completing all necessary long-term remediation measures. This is in line with 
paragraph 170 of the National Planning Policy Framework. 

Removal of Buildings, Plant, Equipment and Machinery 

20. All buildings, plant, equipment and machinery required in connection with the 
operations permitted under this planning permission shall be dismantled or 
demolished and removed from the site and the site thereof restored in 
accordance with the scheme of restoration approved under condition 3 within 
six months of the completion of the restoration scheme. 

Reason: In the interests of the amenities of the locality. 

Page 79

Agenda Item 4
Appendix 2



Permitted Restoration Materials 

21. Imported and any on-site materials required for the purposes of the 
development hereby permitted shall comprise only inert and uncontaminated 
waste materials. 

Reason: To avoid pollution through contamination of the soil, water and/or air, 
in the interests of the general amenities of the locality. 

Submission of Topographical Surveys 

22. Detailed topographical surveys, providing an update on the approved 
restoration works, shall be submitted every calendar year from the date of 
commencement to the Waste Planning Authority following the commencement 
of the development hereby permitted. 

Completion Verification Report 

23. Prior to any future use of the site following completion of the works hereby 
approved, a verification report demonstrating satisfactory completion of works 
set out in the approved restoration strategy and the effectiveness of the 
remediation shall be submitted to, and approved in writing, by the Waste 
Planning Authority. The report shall include results of sampling and monitoring 
carried out in accordance with the approved verification plan to demonstrate 
that the site remediation criteria have been met. 

Reason: To ensure that the site does not pose any further risk to human health 
or the water environment by demonstrating that the requirements of the 
approved verification plan have been met and that remediation of the site is 
complete. This is in line with paragraph 170 of the National Planning Policy 
Framework  

Reason: To ensure that the restoration of the site is completed to an acceptable 
standard within agreed timescales and in the interests of the general amenities 
of the locality 

INFORMATIVES 

a) In accordance with paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy Framework, 
the Waste Planning Authority has approached the determination of this 
application in a positive and creative way, and has worked proactively with the 
applicant by:  

• Providing pre-application advice;  

• Seeking amendments early on in the application process to see if a 
sustainable solution can be agreed;  

• Discussing issues of concern as early as possible, including those raised by 
consultees and third parties;  

• Giving them the opportunity to provide further information/changes to 
overcome material impacts; and 

• Working with consultees.  

As a result, the Waste Planning Authority has been able to recommend the 

Page 80

Agenda Item 4
Appendix 2



grant of planning permission for an acceptable proposal, in accordance with the 
presumption in favour of sustainable development. 

b) The granting of any planning permission does not in any way indemnify against 
statutory nuisance action being taken should substantiated complaints within 
the remit of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 be received. For further 
information please contact Mid Sussex District Council Environmental Health 
Department.  The developer should at all time employ best practical means to 
minimise noise disturbance to nearby residents.  All construction work practises 
should comply with B.S. 5228 1:2009 `Code of practice for noise and vibration 
control on construction and open sites'. 

Page 81

Agenda Item 4
Appendix 2



This page is intentionally left blank



P
age 83

A
genda Item

 4
A

ppendix 3



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Issues

Mast

Evergreen

131.7m

135.4m

T

r

a

c

k

T

r

a

c

k

R

O

A

D

Rockingshill Wood

Well

Farm

H

O

A

T

H

L

Y

W

E

S

T

114.2m

Beechcroft House

Track

109.3m

©

P
age 85

A
genda Item

 4
A

ppendix 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
Copyright Notice  2018 Fluid Planning Ltd, all rights reserved. 2018 Fluid Planning Ltd, all rights reserved. Material published by Fluid Planning Ltd is copyright of Fluid Planning Ltd and may not be reproduced without permission.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
PO Box 1014 Horsham RH12 9TJ           

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
t.  01403 288383 01403 288383 e.  info@fluidplanning.co.uk info@fluidplanning.co.uk w. fluidplanning.co.ukfluidplanning.co.uk

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
fluid planning

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
fp0043.1 Location Plan0043.1 Location Plan

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
Evergreen Farm, RH19 4NE 

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
Dec 2019 

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
1:1,250 @ A2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
60m



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Issues

Evergreen

131.7m

T

r

a

c

k

T

r

a

c

k

R

O

A

D

Rockingshill Wood

Well

Farm

H

O

A

T

H

L

Y

W

E

S

T

114.2m

Beechcroft House

Track

109.3m

Proposed deciduous

native broadleaf woodland

planting (see drawing

WD806L01 Landscape Plan

Schedule & Specification)

T40

T42

T44

H45

T41

G46

G47

G48

T49

G50

H51

G52

G53

G55

G54

H56

H57

H57

H57

W38

W39

W39

W39

W37

H36

T35

T34

G7

G8

G12

G9

G10

G13

G15

G20

G21

G22

G23

G24

G25

T5

T6

T4

T3

T11

T1

T2

T19

T18

T17

T14

T16

T26

G27

T28

T29

T30

T31

T32

T33

H51

H51

H51

A Class Tree

B Class Tree

B Class Hedge/Group

C Class Tree/Group

C Class Hedge

U Class Tree

Proposed native meadow

grassland (see drawing

WD806L01 Landscape Plan

Schedule & Specification)

Copyright Notice

© 2018 Fluid Planning Ltd, all rights reserved.

Material published by Fluid Planning Ltd is copyright of Fluid Planning

Ltd and may not be reproduced without permission.

PO Box 1014

Horsham

RH12 9TJ

t. 01403 288383

e. info@fluidplanning.co.uk

w. fluidplanning.co.uk

fluid

planning

fp0043.2 Block PlanEvergreen Farm, RH19 4NEDec 20191:1,250 @ A2

60m

P
age 87

A
genda Item

 4
A

ppendix 5



T
his page is intentionally left blank



C

U

L

V

E

R

T

S

U

R

F

A

C

E

 
W

A

T

E

R

 
D

R

A

I
N

S

W

A

L

E

 

/

 

F

I

L

T

E

R

 

S

T

R

I

P

8
7
.
0
0

8
7
.
0
0

8
7
.
0
0

8

7

.

0

0

8
6
.
0
0

8
6
.
0
0

8

6

.

0

0

8
8
.
0
0

8

8

.

0

0

8

8

.

0

0

8
8
.
0
0

8

8

.

0

0

8

5

.

0

0

8

5

.

0

0

8

5

.

0

0

8

4

.

0

0

8
4
.
0
0

8
9
.
0
0

8

9

.

0

0

89.00

8

9

.

0

0

8

9

.

0

0

8

9

.

0

0

8

3

.

0

0

8

3

.

0

0

9
0
.
0
0

9

0

.

0

0

9

0

.

0

0

9

0

.

0

0

9
0
.
0
0

9

0

.

0

0

9

0

.

0

0

9
1
.
0
0

9

1

.

0

0

9

1

.

0

0

9

1

.

0

0

9

1

.

0

0

9

1

.

0

0

9

1

.

0

0

9

1

.

0

0

9
2
.
0
0

9

2

.

0

0

9

2

.

0

0

9

2

.

0

0

9

2

.

0

0

9

2

.

0

0

9
2
.
0
0

9

2

.

0

0

9

2

.

0

0

9

3

.

0

0

9
3
.
0
0

9
3
.
0
0

9

3

.

0

0

9
3
.
0
0

9

3

.

0

0

9

3

.

0

0

9

3

.

0

0

9
3
.
0
0

9

3

.

0

0

9

3

.

0

0

9
4
.
0
0

9

4

.

0

0

9
4
.
0
0

9
4
.
0
0

9

4

.

0

0

9
4
.
0
0

9

4

.

0

0

9

4

.

0

0

9
4
.
0
0

9
4
.
0
0

9

4

.

0

0

9
4
.
0
0

9
5
.
0
0

9

5

.

0

0

9
5
.
0
0

9
5
.
0
0

9

5

.

0

0

9

5

.

0

0

9

5

.

0

0

9
5
.
0
0

9
5
.
0
0

9
5
.
0
0

9

5

.

0

0

9
6
.
0
0

9
6
.
0
0

9

6

.

0

0

9

6

.

0

0

96.00

9

6

.

0

0

9

6

.

0

0

9

6

.

0

0

9
6
.
0
0

9
6
.
0
0

9

6

.

0

0

9

6

.

0

0

9

7

.

0

0

9

7

.

0

0

9

7

.

0

0

97.00

9

7

.

0

0

9

7

.

0

0

9

7

.

0

0

9

7

.

0

0

9

7

.

0

0

9

7

.

0

0

9
7
.
0
0

9

7

.

0

0

9
7
.
0
0

9

8

.

0

0

9

8

.

0

0

9

8

.

0

0

9

8

.

0

0

9

8

.

0

0

9

8

.

0

0

9
8
.
0
0

9

8

.

0

0

9

8

.

0

0

9

8

.

0

0

9

8

.

0

0

9
8
.
0
0

9
8
.
0
0

9

8

.

0

0

1
0
0
.
0
0

1

0

0

.

0

0

1

0

0

.

0

0

1

0

0

.

0

0

1

0

0

.

0

0

1

0

0

.

0

0

100.00

1

0

0

.

0

0

1

0

0

.

0

0

1

0

0

.

0

0

1
0
0
.
0
0

1

0

0

.

0

0

1
0
0
.
0
0

9

9

.

0

0

9

9

.

0

0

9

9

.

0

0

9

9

.

0

0

9

9

.

0

0

9

9

.

0

0

9

9

.

0

0

9

9

.

0

0

9

9

.

0

0

9

9

.

0

0

9

9

.

0

0

9

9

.

0

0

9

9

.

0

0 9

9

.

0

0

1
0
1
.
0
0

1

0

1

.

0

0

1

0

1

.

0

0

1

0

1

.

0

0

1
0
1
.
0
0

1

0

1

.

0

0

1

0

1

.

0

0

1

0

1

.

0

0

1

0

1

.

0

0

1

0

1

.

0

0

1
0
1
.
0
0

1
0
1
.
0
0

1

0

1

.

0

0

1
0
2
.
0
0

1
0
2
.
0
0

1

0

2

.

0

0

102.00

102.00

1

0

2

.

0

0

1

0

2

.

0

0

1

0

2

.

0

0

1

0

2

.

0

0

102
.00

1

0

2

.

0

0

1
0
2
.
0
0

1
0
3
.
0
0

1

0

3

.

0

0

1

0

3

.

0

0

1

0

3

.

0

0

103.00

1

0

3

.

0

0

1

0

3

.

0

0

1
0
3
.
0
0

1

0

3

.

0

0

103.00

1
0
3
.
0
0

1
0
3
.
0
0

1
0
4
.
0
0

1

0

4

.

0

0

1

0

4

.

0

0

1

0

4

.

0

0

1

0

4

.

0

0

1
0
4
.
0
0

1

0

4

.

0

0

1

0

4

.

0

0

1

0

4

.

0

0

1
0
4
.
0
0

1
0
4
.
0
0

1
0
4
.
0
0

1

0

5

.

0

0

1

0

5

.

0

0

1

0

5

.

0

0

1

0

5

.

0

0

1

0

5

.

0

0

105.00

1

0

5

.

0

0

1

0

5

.

0

0

1

0

5

.

0

0

1
0
5
.
0
0

1
0
5
.
0
0

105.00

1

0

6

.

0

0

1

0

6

.

0

0

1

0

6

.

0

0

1

0

6

.

0

0

1

0

6

.

0

0

1

0

6

.

0

0

106.00

1
0
6
.
0
0

1

0

6

.

0

0

1

0

6

.

0

0

1
0
6
.
0
0

1
0
6
.
0
0

10
6.
00

1

0

6

.

0

0

1

0

7

.

0

0

1
0
7
.
0
0

1

0

7

.

0

0

1

0

7

.

0

0

1

0

7

.

0

0

1

0

7

.

0

0

107.00

107.00

1

0

7

.

0

0

1

0

7

.

0

0

1
0
7
.
0
0

1

0

7

.

0

0

107.00

1

0

7

.

0

0

1

0

8

.

0

0

1

0

8

.

0

0

10
8.
00

1

0

8

.

0

0

1

0

8

.

0

0

1
0
8
.
0
0

108.00

1

0

8

.

0

0

1

0

8

.

0

0

1

0

8

.

0

0

1
0
8
.
0
0

1

0

8

.

0

0

1

0

8

.

0

0

1

0

9

.

0

0

1

0

9

.

0

0

1
0
9
.
0
0

1

0

9

.

0

0

1

0

9

.

0

0

109.00

109.00

1

0

9

.

0

0

1

0

9

.

0

0

1

0

9

.

0

0

1

0

9

.

0

0

1

0

9

.

0

0

1

0

9

.

0

0

1

1

0

.

0

0

1

1

0

.

0

0

1

1

0

.

0

0

1

1

0

.

0

0

1

1

0

.

0

0

1

1

0

.

0

0

110.00

110
.00

1

1

0

.

0

0

1

1

0

.

0

0

1

1

0

.

0

0

1

1

0

.

0

0

1

1

0

.

0

0

1

1

1

.

0

0

1
1
1
.
0
0

1

1

1

.

0

0

1

1

1

.

0

0

1

1

1

.

0

0

1

1

1

.

0

0

1

1

1

.

0

0

111.00

111
.00

1

1

1

.

0

0

1

1

1

.

0

0

1

1

1

.

0

0

1

1

1

.

0

0

1

1

1

.

0

0

1
1
1
.
0
0

1

1

2

.

0

0

1

1

3

.

0

0

1

1

3

.

0

0

1

1

3

.

0

0

1

1

3

.

0

0

1

1

3

.

0

0

1

1

3

.

0

0

113.00

11
3.
00

1

1

3

.

0

0

1
1
3
.
0
0

1

1

3

.

0

0

1
1
3
.
0
0

1
1
3
.
0
0

1

1

3

.

0

0

1

1

3

.

0

0

1

1

2

.

0

0

1
1
2
.
0
0

1

1

2

.

0

0

1

1

2

.

0

0

1

1

2

.

0

0

1

1

2

.

0

0

11
2.
00

11
2.
00

1

1

2

.

0

0

1

1

2

.

0

0

1

1

2

.

0

0

1

1

2

.

0

0

1

1

2

.

0

0

1

1

2

.

0

0

1

1

4

.

0

0

1

1

4

.

0

0

1

1

4

.

0

0

1

1

4

.

0

0

1

1

4

.

0

0

1

1

4

.

0

0

114
.00

11
4.
00

1
1
4
.
0
0

1
1
4
.
0
0

1

1

4

.

0

0

1
1
4
.
0
0

1

1

4

.

0

0

1

1

4

.

0

0

1

1

6

.

0

0

1

1

6

.

0

0

1

1

6

.

0

0

1

1

6

.

0

0

1

1

6

.

0

0

1

1

6

.

0

0

11
6.
00

1
1
6
.
0
0

116
.00

116.00

1
1
6
.
0
0

1

1

6

.

0

0

1

1

6

.

0

0

1
1
6
.
0
0

1

1

5

.

0

0

1

1

5

.

0

0

1

1

5

.

0

0

1

1

5

.

0

0

1

1

5

.

0

0

1

1

5

.

0

0

11
5.
00

1
1
5
.
0
0

115.00

1
1
5
.
0
0

1
1
5
.
0
0

1

1

5

.

0

0

1

1

5

.

0

0

1

1

5

.

0

0

1

1

7

.

0

0

1

1

7

.

0

0

1
1
7
.
0
0

1

1

7

.

0

0

1

1

7

.

0

0

1

1

7

.

0

0

11
7.
00

1
1
7
.
0
0

11
7.
00

117.00

1
1
7
.
0
0

11
7.
00

1

1

7

.

0

0

1

1

7

.

0

0

1

1

8

.

0

0

1
1
8
.
0
0

1

1

8

.

0

0

1

1

8

.

0

0

1

1

8

.

0

0

1

1

8

.

0

0

1

1

8

.

0

0

1
1
8
.
0
0

1

1

8

.

0

0

1
1
8
.
0
0

118.00

1

1

8

.

0

0

1

1

8

.

0

0

1

1

8

.

0

0

1

2

0

.

0

0

1

2

0

.

0

0

1

2

0

.

0

0

1

2

0

.

0

0

1

2

0

.

0

0

1
2
0
.
0
0

1
2
0
.
0
0

1
2
0
.
0
0

1

2

0

.

0

0

1

2

0

.

0

0

1

2

0

.

0

0

120.00

1

2

0

.

0

0

1
2
0
.
0
0

1

2

0

.

0

0

1

2

0

.

0

0

1

2

0

.

0

0

1
2
0
.
0
0

1

2

0

.

0

0

1

2

0

.

0

0

1

2

0

.

0

0

1

1

9

.

0

0

1

1

9

.

0

0

1
1
9
.
0
0

1

1

9

.

0

0

1

1

9

.

0

0

1

1

9

.

0

0

1

1

9

.

0

0

1

1

9

.

0

0

1

1

9

.

0

0

1
1
9
.
0
0

1

1

9

.

0

0

1

1

9

.

0

0

1

1

9

.

0

0

1

1

9

.

0

0

1

1

9

.

0

0

1

1

9

.

0

0

1

2

1

.

0

0

1

2

1

.

0

0

1

2

1

.

0

0

1

2

1

.

0

0

1

2

1

.

0

0

1

2

1

.

0

0

1

2

1

.

0

0

1

2

1

.

0

0

1

2

1

.

0

0

1

2

1

.

0

0

122.00

1

2

2

.

0

0

1

2

2

.

0

0

122.00

122.00

1

2

2

.

0

0

122.00

1

2

2

.

0

0

1

2

3

.

0

0

1

2

4

.

0

0

123.00

12
3.
00

123
.00

121.00

1
2
1
.
0
0

1

2

1

.

0

0

1
2
1
.
0
0

1

2

1

.

0

0

1
2
1
.
0
0

1

2

1

.

0

0

121.00

1

2

1

.

0

0

1

2

1

.

0

0

1

2

1

.

0

0

1

2

2

.

0

0

122.00

1

2

2

.

0

0

1
2
2
.
0
0

1

2

2

.

0

0

1

2

2

.

0

0

1
2
3
.
0
0

1

2

3

.

0

0

122.00

1

1

9

.

0

0

1

1

9

.

0

0

1

1

9

.

0

0

1

1

9

.

0

0

1

1

9

.

0

0

119
.00

SWALE (2M WIDE X 500MM DEEP)

Length - 430LM

KEY:

CULVERT

SURFACE WATER DRAIN

SWALE & FILTER STRIP PLANTING

Area 860m2 (See Planting Schedule)

WOODLAND PLANTING

(See Planting Schedule)

Area - 5'993m2

WILDFLOWER  & MEADOW MIX PLANTING

Area - 22'254m2

EL3 or similar and approved

Proposed Native Broadleaf Planting Mix

WILDFLOWER & MEADOW PLANTING

GENERAL SEED PLANTING

Area 19'191m2

Proposed Planting

9

0

.

0

0

PROPOSED COUTOURS

LANDOWNERS BOUNDARY

APPLICATION SITE BOUNDARY

NOTES:

1. This drawing is to be read in conjunction with all

relevant contract drawings and specifications with any

conflicting information to be brought to the attention of

Weller Designs Ltd before works commence on site.

2. Do not scale from this drawing, always work to noted

dimensions.

3. All given dimensions in M.

DESCRIPTION OF REVISIONDATE DRAWN
REVISION LETTER CHECKED BY

DRAWING STATUS

DRAWING FILE LOCATION :

DRAWING NUMBER :

PAPER SIZE :

DRAWING SCALE :

DRAWING TITLE :

REVISION LETTER :

DRAWN BY :

APPROVED BY :

PROJECT NUMBER :

PROJECT TITLE :

PLOT DATE :

LANDSCAPE PLAN

SCHEDULES & SPECIFICATION

-

24.10.19WD806

BA

DW

#

A1

1:1000

WD806L01

EVERGREEN FARM

PLANNING

Bishopsmead House, Bishops Mead, West Street, Farnham, Surrey, GU9 7DU

Tel/Fax: 01252 712127  Email: info@wellerdesigns.co.uk  Web: www.wellerdesigns.co.uk

C
Copyright  - All Rights Reserved  Weller Designs 2016

PLANTING SPECIFICATION & AFTERCARE

PLANTING SCHEDULES

P
age 89

A
genda Item

 4
A

ppendix 6

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
W:\WD806_Evergreen Farm\04 Drawings\01 Autocad\Working\WD806_Landscape Plan.dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
0

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
100m

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
1 : 1000



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Issues

Evergreen

131.7m

Pond

T

r

a

c

k

T

r

a

c

k

R

O

A

D

Rockingshill Wood

Well

Farm

H

O

A

T

H

L

Y

Pond

W

E

S

T

114.2m

Beechcroft House

Track

109.3m

1
0

0
.0

1
2

6
.8

5
0

.
0

0

96.8

97.9

117.9

97.4

116.3

B

A

A

G

G

B

C

C

D

D

E

E

F

F

9
5
.0

100.0

105.0

9
3

.0

9

4

.
0

9

6

.
0

9
7

.0

98.0

9
9

.0

101.0

102.0

103.0

1
0

4
.0

1

0

0

.
0

1
0
5
.0

110.0

1
1

5
.0

1

1

5

.
0

115.0

1
2
0
.0

120.0

97.0

9
8

.0

9
9
.0

1
0
1
.0

1
0
2
.0

1
0
3
.0

1
0
4
.0

1
0
6
.0

1
0

7
.0

108.0

109.0

111.0

112.0

113.0

1

1

4

.
0

1

1

4

.
0

114.0

1
1
6
.
0

116.0

1
1

7
.
0

1
1

7
.0

1

1

8

.
0

1
1

8
.0

1

1

9

.
0

1
1

9
.0

1

1

0

.
0

1
1

5
.
0

106.0

107.0

1
0

8
.0

1

0

9

.
01

1

1

.
0

1
1
2
.
0

1
1

3
.
0

1
1

4
.
0

1
1

6
.
0

1
1

7
.
0

1
1

8
.
0

121.0

1
2

2
.
0

1
2

3
.
0

1

3

0

.
0

135.0

1

3

1

.
0

1

3

2

.
0

1

3

3

.
0

1

3

4

.
0

1

3

6

.
0

1

3

7

.
0

138.0

1

2

5

.
01

2
6
.
01

2

7

.
0

1

2

1

.
0

1

2

2

.
01

2

3

.
0

1

4

0

.
0

1

3

9

.
0

1
2
5
.0

1
3

0
.0

1
2

2
.01

2
3
.0

1
2
4
.0

1

2

6

.
0

1

2

7

.
0

1

2

8

.
01

2
9
.0

1
3
1
.
0

1

3

2

.
0

1
1
8
.0

1
1

9
.0

1
1

9
.0

1
2

0
.
0

1

2

1

.
0

9
5

.0

9

3

.
0

9
4

.0

9
0

.
0

9
1
.
0

9

2

.
0

Copyright Notice

© 2018 Fluid Planning Ltd, all rights reserved.

Material published by Fluid Planning Ltd is copyright of Fluid Planning

Ltd and may not be reproduced without permission.

PO Box 1014

Horsham

RH12 9TJ

t. 01403 288383

e. info@fluidplanning.co.uk

w. fluidplanning.co.uk

fluid

planning

fp0043.4 Proposed Final Levels rev BEVERGREEN FARMJanuary 20201:1250 @ A2

P
age 91

A
genda Item

 4
A

ppendix 7



T
his page is intentionally left blank



L
e

v
e

l

SECTION C-C (SCALE: H 1:1000,V 1:500)

100

105

110

115

120

125

 Proposed Topsoil Level

 Existing Ground Level

1
0

6
.
9

6

1
0

2
.
3

7

1
0

4
.
7

3

1
0

8
.
1

0

1
1

1
.
0

9

1
1

2
.
9

3

1
1

4
.
0

8

1
1

5
.
9

1

1
1

7
.
2

7

1
1

8
.
9

9

1
1

9
.
8

7

1
1

9
.
9

9

1
1

9
.
9

9

1
1

7
.
9

6

1
0

7
.
3

3

1
0

5
.
1

8

1
0

6
.
8

4

1
0

6
.
9

6

1
0

1
.
1

4

1
0

2
.
7

3

1
0

6
.
1

0

1
0

9
.
0

9

1
1

0
.
9

3

1
1

1
.
9

5

1
1

2
.
9

2

1
1

4
.
2

7

1
1

5
.
9

9

1
1

6
.
8

7

1
1

6
.
9

9

1
1

6
.
9

9

1
1

6
.
9

2

1
1

6
.
8

2

1
1

6
.
5

2

1
1

6
.
9

9

1
1

6
.
8

9

1
1

6
.
5

2

Proposed Surface Level

Existing Concrete

Driveway

Proposed Swale

L
e

v
e

l

SECTION B-B (SCALE: H 1:1000,V 1:500)

110

115

120

125

 Proposed Topsoil Level

 Existing Ground Level

1
1

3
.
6

3

1
1

2
.
2

8

1
1

2
.
7

5

1
1

4
.
0

0

1
1

5
.
6

7

1
1

6
.
9

0

1
1

7
.
8

6

1
1

8
.
9

9

1
2

0
.
0

9

1
2

1
.
1

6

1
2

2
.
2

4

1
2

2
.
0

7

1
1

1
.
4

3

1
1

1
.
7

3

1
1

0
.
6

5

1
1

0
.
7

5

1
1

2
.
0

0

1
1

3
.
0

3

1
1

3
.
9

0

1
1

4
.
8

6

1
1

5
.
9

9

1
1

7
.
0

9

1
1

8
.
1

6

1
1

9
.
2

3

1
2

0
.
1

8

1
2

0
.
7

5

1
2

1
.
5

6

1
2

1
.
4

0

1
2

0
.
7

4

1
2

1
.
5

2

1
2

3
.
2

9

1
2

3
.
1

0

1
2

2
.
7

8

L
e

v
e

l

SECTION A-A (SCALE: H 1:1000,V 1:500)

115

120

125

130

135

 Proposed Topsoil Level

 Existing Ground Level

1
1

8
.
8

9

1
1

8
.
4

0

1
1

9
.
5

8

1
2

1
.
2

1

1
2

2
.
9

2

1
2

1
.
9

7

1
1

8
.
2

8

1
1

8
.
4

2

1
1

8
.
8

9

1
1

6
.
4

0

1
1

7
.
5

1

1
1

9
.
0

2

1
1

9
.
9

3

1
2

0
.
1

0

1
2

2
.
8

8

1
2

6
.
8

6

1
2

8
.
0

5

1
2

9
.
2

4

1
3

0
.
2

3

1
2

5
.
4

4

1
2

6
.
7

7

1
2

8
.
0

9

1
3

1
.
2

2

1
3

0
.
9

5

1
3

0
.
4

7

Subsoil Level

General Fill Level

Clay Cap Level

Proposed Surface Level

Existing Ground

Subsoil Level

General Fill Level

Clay Cap Level

Proposed Swale

Proposed Surface Level

Existing Ground

Subsoil Level

General Fill Level

Clay Cap Level

Proposed Swale

A
p

p
l
i
c
a

t
i
o

n

B
o

u
n

d
a

r
y

A
p

p
l
i
c
a

t
i
o

n

B
o

u
n

d
a

r
y

A
p

p
l
i
c
a

t
i
o

n

B
o

u
n

d
a

r
y

A
p

p
l
i
c
a

t
i
o

n

B
o

u
n

d
a

r
y

A
p

p
l
i
c
a

t
i
o

n

B
o

u
n

d
a

r
y

A
p

p
l
i
c
a

t
i
o

n

B
o

u
n

d
a

r
y

Proposed woodland

planting

Existing Ground

Trackway

Trackway

1
1

9
.
7

7

1
2

6
.
8

6

1
2

8
.
0

5

1
2

9
.
2

4

1
3

0
.
2

3

1
2

5
.
4

4

1
2

6
.
7

7

1
2

8
.
0

9

1
3

1
.
2

2

1
3

0
.
9

5

1
3

0
.
4

7

1
1

9
.
7

7

1
2

0
.
4

3

1
2

0
.
7

5

1
2

1
.
5

6

1
2

1
.
4

0

1
2

0
.
7

4

1
2

1
.
5

2

1
2

3
.
2

9

1
2

3
.
1

0

1
2

2
.
7

8

1
1

1
.
4

7

1
1

6
.
8

9

1
1

6
.
8

2

1
1

6
.
5

2

1
1

6
.
9

9

1
1

6
.
8

9

1
1

6
.
5

2

1
0

5
.
7

6

Copyright Notice

© 2018 Fluid Planning Ltd, all rights reserved.

Material published by Fluid Planning Ltd is copyright of Fluid Planning

Ltd and may not be reproduced without permission.

PO Box 1014

Horsham

RH12 9TJ

t. 01403 288383

e. info@fluidplanning.co.uk

w. fluidplanning.co.uk

fluid

planning

fp0043.7 Cross Sections A-A to C-C Rev BEvergreen Farm, RH19 4NEJanuary 20201:1,000@A2

50m

P
age 93

A
genda Item

 4
A

ppendix 8



T
his page is intentionally left blank



L
e
v
e
l

SECTION D-D (SCALE: H 1:1000,V 1:500)

100

105

110

115

 Proposed Topsoil Level

 Existing Ground Level

9
8

.
3

0

1
0

0
.
7

2

1
0

1
.
9

7

1
0

3
.
7

9

1
0

5
.
7

6

1
0

7
.
4

0

1
0

8
.
4

0

1
0

9
.
2

4

1
1

0
.
5

6

1
1

0
.
9

6

1
1

1
.
2

1

1
1

0
.
6

1

9
6

.
5

7

9
6

.
3

4

9
6

.
0

8

9
7

.
0

4

9
8

.
7

2

9
9

.
9

7

1
0

1
.
7

9

1
0

3
.
7

6

1
0

5
.
4

0

1
0

6
.
4

0

1
0

7
.
1

0

1
0

7
.
5

6

1
0

7
.
9

6

1
0

8
.
2

1

1
0

6
.
6

7

1
0

4
.
8

3

1
0

4
.
4

7

1
0

4
.
7

3

1
0

5
.
8

4

L
e
v
e
l

SECTION E-E (SCALE: H 1:1000,V 1:500)

95

100

 Proposed Topsoil Level

 Existing Ground Level

9
3

.
5

6

9
5

.
3

9

9
6

.
8

1

9
8

.
0

7

9
8

.
6

9

9
9

.
7

2

9
9

.
2

1

9
9

.
2

5

9
3

.
2

9

9
1

.
8

9

9
2

.
4

2

9
3

.
5

6

9
4

.
8

1

9
6

.
0

7

9
6

.
6

9

9
6

.
8

2

9
6

.
3

5

9
5

.
8

9

9
5

.
8

1

9
6

.
5

0

9
7

.
2

4

9
6

.
7

6

9
6

.
7

1

L
e
v
e
l

SECTION F-F (SCALE: H 1:1000,V 1:500)

90

95

 Proposed Topsoil Level

 Existing Ground Level

9
0

.
6

5

9
3

.
2

4

9
3

.
6

7

9
3

.
7

1

9
1

.
5

2

9
1

.
7

0

9
1

.
8

9

8
9

.
2

0

9
0

.
2

5

9
0

.
6

6

9
0

.
6

5

9
0

.
5

9

9
1

.
5

5

9
2

.
1

2

Proposed Swale

Proposed Surface Level

Existing Ground

Subsoil Level

General Fill Level

Clay Cap Level

Proposed Swale

Proposed Surface Level

Existing Ground

Subsoil Level

General Fill Level

Clay Cap Level

Proposed Swale

Proposed Surface Level

Existing Ground

Subsoil Level

General Fill Level

Clay Cap Level

A
p

p
l
i
c
a

t
i
o

n
 
B

o
u

n
d

a
r
y

A
p

p
l
i
c
a

t
i
o

n

B
o

u
n

d
a

r
y

A
p

p
l
i
c
a

t
i
o

n

B
o

u
n

d
a

r
y

A
p

p
l
i
c
a

t
i
o

n

B
o

u
n

d
a

r
y

A
p

p
l
i
c
a

t
i
o

n

B
o

u
n

d
a

r
y

A
p

p
l
i
c
a

t
i
o

n

B
o

u
n

d
a

r
y

Proposed woodland

planting

Proposed woodland

planting

Proposed woodland

planting

9
6

.
0

8

1
0

4
.
4

7

1
0

4
.
8

7

1
0

4
.
8

3

9
2

.
3

2

9
5

.
8

9

9
5

.
8

1

9
1

.
8

9

8
8

.
7

5

9
0

.
9

5

9
6

.
7

1

Copyright Notice

© 2018 Fluid Planning Ltd, all rights reserved.

Material published by Fluid Planning Ltd is copyright of Fluid Planning

Ltd and may not be reproduced without permission.

PO Box 1014

Horsham

RH12 9TJ

t. 01403 288383

e. info@fluidplanning.co.uk

w. fluidplanning.co.uk

fluid

planning

fp0043.7B Cross Sections D-D to F-F Rev BEvergreen Farm, RH19 4NEAugust 20191:1,000@A2

50m

P
age 95

A
genda Item

 4
A

ppendix 9



T
his page is intentionally left blank



L
e

v
e

l

SECTION G-G (SCALE: H 1:1000,V 1:500)

85

90

95

100

105

110

115

120

125

 Proposed Topsoil Level

 Existing Ground Level

1
1

9
.
3

9

1
2

0
.
1

7

1
1

9
.
7

5

1
1

9
.
2

0

1
1

8
.
3

5

1
1

7
.
4

8

1
1

6
.
3

1

1
1

4
.
1

8

1
1

2
.
8

7

1
1

1
.
6

8

1
1

0
.
2

2

1
0

8
.
7

4

1
0

7
.
2

9

1
0

5
.
8

6

1
0

4
.
4

5

1
0

3
.
0

9

1
0

1
.
7

9

1
0

0
.
6

5

9
9

.
6

7

9
8

.
8

6

9
8

.
1

3

9
8

.
1

4

9
7

.
4

2

9
6

.
5

7

9
5

.
8

0

9
4

.
9

1

9
3

.
1

9

9
0

.
9

6

8
8

.
7

0

1
1

7
.
8

8

1
1

7
.
8

3

1
1

7
.
6

2

1
1

7
.
1

7

1
1

6
.
7

5

1
1

6
.
2

0

1
1

5
.
3

5

1
1

4
.
4

8

1
1

3
.
3

1

1
1

2
.
1

0

1
1

0
.
8

7

1
0

9
.
6

8

1
0

8
.
2

2

1
0

6
.
7

4

1
0

5
.
2

9

1
0

3
.
8

6

1
0

2
.
4

5

1
0

1
.
0

9

9
9

.
7

9

9
8

.
6

5

9
7

.
6

7

9
6

.
8

6

9
6

.
0

0

9
5

.
2

0

9
4

.
4

2

9
3

.
5

7

9
2

.
8

4

9
1

.
9

2

9
0

.
8

5

8
9

.
5

5

8
8

.
2

0

8
6

.
9

1

8
8

.
8

7

9
1

.
0

0

Proposed Surface Level

Existing Ground

Subsoil Level

General Fill Level

Clay Cap Level

A
p

p
l
i
c
a

t
i
o

n

B
o

u
n

d
a

r
y

A
p

p
l
i
c
a

t
i
o

n

B
o

u
n

d
a

r
y

Proposed woodland

planting

Trackway

1
1

7
.
7

7

8
7

.
6

8

Copyright Notice

© 2018 Fluid Planning Ltd, all rights reserved.

Material published by Fluid Planning Ltd is copyright of Fluid Planning

Ltd and may not be reproduced without permission.

PO Box 1014

Horsham

RH12 9TJ

t. 01403 288383

e. info@fluidplanning.co.uk

w. fluidplanning.co.uk

fluid

planning

fp0043.7C Cross Section G-G Rev BEvergreen Farm, RH19 4NEJanuary 20201:1,000@A2

50m

P
age 97

A
genda Item

 4
A

ppendix 10



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the last meeting of the Committee
	4 Planning Application: Waste
	Plng_RoW_07.09.21_Appendix_2
	Planning and Rights of Way Committee
	29 June 2021
	County Matter Waste Application
	Restoration of the former Standen Landfill site with a woodland and pasture landfill cap system
	Evergreen Farm, West Hoathley Road, East Grinstead, RH19 4NE
	Application No: WSCC/004/20
	Summary
	Consideration of Key Issues
	Acceptable in Principle with regard to Waste Planning Policy
	Impacts on Landscape Character and the AONB
	Impact on Highway Capacity and Road Safety
	Impact on Local Amenity and the Local Environment
	Conclusion

	Recommendation
	West Sussex Waste Local Plan (April 2014)(‘the WLP’)
	Mid Sussex District Plan (2014 - 2031)
	East Grinstead Neighbourhood Plan (November 2016).
	National Planning Policy Framework (2019)
	National Planning Policy for Waste (2014)
	National Planning Practice Guidance
	EU Council Directives 2008/98/EC and 1999/31/EC
	7. Consultations

	Acceptable in Principle with Regard to Waste Planning Policy
	Impacts on Landscape Character and the AONB
	Impact on Highway Capacity and Road Safety
	Impact on Local Amenity and the Environment
	Factors taken into account
	12.1 Not applicable.

	Appendices
	Background papers

	See Section 6.
	Appendix 1 – Conditions and Informatives
	CONDITIONS
	Cessation
	Approved Plans
	PRE-COMMENCEMENT CONDITIONS
	Construction Environmental Management Plan
	Ecological Management and Aftercare Plan
	Sequence of Phasing
	Verification Plan
	Soft Landscaping Scheme
	CONTROL OVER DEVELOPMENT CONDITIONS
	Surface Water Drainage
	Bats
	Badgers
	Tree Protection
	Hours of Operation
	HGV deliveries
	Vehicle Access
	Noise - Reversing Alarms
	Vehicular Operations and Controls
	Lighting
	Contamination
	Removal of Buildings, Plant, Equipment and Machinery
	Permitted Restoration Materials
	Submission of Topographical Surveys
	Completion Verification Report
	INFORMATIVES


	Plng_RoW_07.09.21_Appendix_3
	Plng_RoW_07.09.21_Appendix_4
	Sheets and Views
	(A2) fp0043.1 Location Plan


	Plng_RoW_07.09.21_Appendix_5
	Sheets and Views
	(A2) fp0043.2 Block Plan


	Plng_RoW_07.09.21_Appendix_6
	Sheets and Views
	WD_A1 plot landscape


	Plng_RoW_07.09.21_Appendix_7
	Sheets and Views
	(A2) fpes3.3 Proposed Topsoil


	Plng_RoW_07.09.21_Appendix_8
	Sheets and Views
	0043 Evergreen Farm (A2) 0043.7 Cross Sections A-A to C-C


	Plng_RoW_07.09.21_Appendix_9
	Sheets and Views
	(A2) fp0043.7B Cross Sections D-D to F-F


	Plng_RoW_07.09.21_Appendix_10
	Sheets and Views
	(A2) fpes3.3 Cross Sections




